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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
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RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®BTRE AREFTT ARBTT ARE®Tr ARETR

Revenue WA 25,797 17,356 15,693 24319 33,559

Loss for the year FEERE (52,400) (62414) (5,666) (157,898) (143,309)

EBIT SHEFE (59,903) (63,802) (134) (158,294) (139,009)

EBITDA SR E R HRI A (50,078) (55,222) 14,407 (125,269) (82,718)
Earnings/(loss) per share SREF/(BE)

— basic (RMB) —ER(ARE) (0.0067) (0.0117) 00033 (0.0366) (0.0409)
Earnings/(loss) per share BREN/(E1E)

— diluted (RMB) —#E(ARE) (0.0067) (0.0117) 00033 (0.0366) (0.0409)
Ordinary shares (shares) LRREE (R) 5,635970,924 5635970924 4762033424 4762033424 3968361424
Cash and cash equivalents ReRASEEY

(including pledged (BECEFRT

bank deposits) ER) 226,374 252459 20,551 100,545 95,515
Total assets BEE 322,433 377,323 246,080 248,061 292,751
Net asset value FEERE 268,416 317,060 150,480 137,487 221356
Net asset value per share RMB) BIUFEEB(ARE) 0.05 0.06 003 003 006
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Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Smartac Group China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
together with its subsidiaries, (the “Group”), | hereby present the
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Reviewing last year, as the China-US trade war has been lingering,
global markets faced a difficult environment. In Hong Kong, the social
unrest starting in June 2019 deepened the economic downturn in
the second half of the year. Nonetheless, with more e-commerce
platforms and an enriched product range, the Group was still able to
achieve a total revenue growth of 48.6% amidst the adverse
conditions. The decline of Online to Offline ("020") solutions
segment was mainly because the demand of the construction of Wi-
Fi platforms in shopping malls dropped owing to the lower costs and
preference for connecting to mobile data services among end users.
As for the WeChat Pay business, apart from the effects of the above-
mentioned social factors in Hong Kong, it also faced increased
operating costs under the intensified industry competition.

Looking forward to the year ahead, despite the alleviation of the
China-US trade war after Phase One of the Trade Deal was signed in
January, we expect the business environment in both the People’s
of Republic of China (the "“PRC") and Hong Kong will remain
uncertain, particularly in the first half of 2020, due to the spread of
the COVID-19 outbreak worldwide. However, this will not
undermine the Group’s determination to expand the e-commerce
solutions and WeChat Pay businesses. The advent of the 5G era and
the rise of the "home economy” will expedite the popularity of
online consumption. We believe that these two core businesses
have huge room for growth.

To capture the market potential and enhance the Group’s
profitability, we have strengthened our management team. On 16
December 2019, the Company appointed Mr. Ho Chi Kin as an
executive Director and the chief executive officer. Mr. Ho has
extensive experience being in charge of operations and
development of online social platforms, online advertising services
business and the launch of mobile online games in the PRC. In
addition, he possesses over 20 years of experience in wealth
management services in the United States of America, Hong Kong
and the PRC, focusing on corporate restructuring, mergers and
acquisitions and business integration. We eagerly look forward to
building our business and achieving new milestones under his
leadership.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Capitalizing on a strengthened management team, innovative
solutions and quality services, we are pleased to gain recognition
from internationally-branded clients recently. In March 2020, the
Group signed franchise agreements with international luxury
lifestyle brand Stella McCartney, gaining to the rights to sell its
fashion apparel and accessories on the designated online sales
platforms we operated in the PRC. The cooperation not only
diversifies the portfolio of our branded products, but more
importantly, paves the way for our greater cooperation with more
world-renowned brands and partners in the future.

As for the electronic payment business, despite being affected by
the above-mentioned social factors and the intensified industry
competition in the short run, electronic payment, in the long run,
has become the general trend and is developing rapidly. According
to market research data’, in 2019 over 40% of the sampled
population in Hong Kong have used WeChat pay. The number of
mobile payment users is expected to grow continuously and reach
3.3 million by 2023. Meanwhile, the total transaction value in the
mobile payment segment has amounted to approximately
USS$2,741 million in 2019 in Hong Kong, with an expected CAGR of
approximately 26.2% between 2019 and 2023, to reach
approximately US$6,961 million by 2023.

To tap the WeChat Pay industry which shows bright prospects in the
long term, the Group acquired 30% equity interest in Haihai Travel
Cloud Limited ("Haihai") from a minority shareholder in order to have
full control of the company. In addition to providing online and offline
WeChat Pay services to merchants, the Group also assists in setting up
WeChat official accounts, WeChat Mall and WeChat mini programs
through the WeChat ecosystem in order to attract users and help
merchants expand their business presence in the Greater Bay Area.

The Group will continue to explore opportunities to cooperate with
leading brands around the world along with major e-commerce
platforms and suppliers, aiming to gradually expand our core
businesses. We will also prudently evaluate strategic investment
and business opportunities aimed at expanding our business and
generating long-term return on investment for shareholders.

! According to third-party market research data obtained by Greater
China Appraisal Limited
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To more effectively promote the above business development
strategies, better reflect the Group’s new corporate image of
"Converging East and West, Building Global Connections” as well as
realize our vision of becoming a global leading smart business
service provider, the Board has proposed to change the English
name of the Company to “Smartac International Holdings Limited”
and adopt a dual foreign name in Chinese of "(R R & BE1Z ik B
[R 2 |]" The proposed name change is subject to the approval by
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting and the approval
by the Registrar of Companies in the Cayman Islands.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to the Board, the management team and our staff for
their contributions and dedication in the past year, and to all of our
customers, business partners and shareholders for their unwavering
trust and confidence in the Group.

Yang Xin Min
Chairman

27 March 2020
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company, through its
subsidiaries, providing (i) software sales and 020 consultation
services by 020 solutions segment; (ii) electronic payment
solutions and services by integrated digital marketing (“IDM")
solutions segment; and (iii) management, operation and market
strategy of online shops and e-commerce platforms by
E-commerce solutions segment.

020 solutions segment provides tailormade social customer
relationship management (“CRM") platforms and IT support
services to clients which are mainly shopping mall operators,
property management companies or developers in the PRC.
The use of big data in the social CRM platforms assists clients
in understanding consumers’ behavior and personalising
customers’ experience which facilitate targeted promotion
and marketing activities.

Segment revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately RMB2,701,000, representing
approximately 10.5% of the Group's total revenue (year ended
31 December 2018: approximately RMB3,900,000,
representing approximately 22.5% of the Group’s total
revenue). The drop was mainly due to decrease in demand of
the construction of Wi-Fi platforms in shopping malls along
with the lower cost and popularisation of connecting to
mobile data services by end users.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, IDM solutions
segment continued to provide mobile payment business in
Hong Kong through the subsidiary of the Company, Haihai to
assist merchants with WeChat Pay payment access,
settlement and marketing functions that WeChat Pay offered.
As at 31 December 2019, Haihai had been working with over
1,400 merchants who mainly engaged in retailing businesses
such as medical and pharmaceutical services, cosmetics and
beauty, jewellery, apparel, food and beverage, so as to offer
customers a more convenient and fast mobile payment
option when making both online and offline purchases.

WeChat Pay is becoming more popular in Hong Kong given
that more Hong Kong residents has started using WeChat Pay
as payment method and that more mainland Chinese tourists
are able to use WeChat Pay in Hong Kong. However, due to
the increasing competition resulting from more authorised
WeChat Pay service providers emerging in the market, the
cost of operation for WeChat Pay business increased for the
year ended 31 December 2019 resulting an overall drop in
gross profit recorded.

E-commerce solutions segment mainly builds and operates
single and multi-brand e-commerce platforms and flagship
stores on multiple online channels and provides tailored end-
to-end e-commerce solutions to customers. The Group
mainly (i) manages the online stores for customers on the
online e-commerce platforms such as Tmall, VIP.com and
JD.com; (ii) sells merchandises mainly through online
e-commerce platforms, self-owned online shops and through
offline channels such as corporate bulk purchase and direct
sales to dealers; and (i) provides online marketing services to
promote customers’ products through social media channels.

Segment revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately RMB19,672,000, representing
approximately 76.3% of the Group's total revenue (year ended
31 December 2018: approximately RMB11,343,000,
representing approximately 65.4% of the Group’s total
revenue). The growth was mainly contributed by the sales of
merchandises with increasing types of products sold on more
online e-commerce platforms for year ended 31 December
2019.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEE W& D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded an increase in revenue by 48.6% from
approximately RMB17,356,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018 to approximately RMB25,797,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019 which was mainly contributed by the revenue
growth in E-commerce solutions segment by approximately
RMB8,329,000.

Cost of sales mainly included cost of merchandises sold under
E-commerce solutions segment. The amount was approximately
RMB9,656,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 (year ended
31 December 2018: approximately RMB2,406,000) which was in line
with the growth of sales of merchandises in the E-commerce
solutions segment.

Other operating expenses mainly represented auditor’s
remuneration, legal and professional fee, business development
costs, travelling expenses and other office expenses. The amount
was approximately RMB12,109,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019 (year ended 31 December 2018: approximately
RMB14,715,000) mainly because of decrease in other operating
expenses incurred for 020 solutions segment.

Income tax credit for the year ended 31 December 2019 amount to
approximately RMB8,100,000 (year ended 31 December 2018:
approximately RMB1,921,000) mainly represented deferred tax
credit arising from the amortisation and impairment loss of the
intangible asset of E-commerce solutions segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI DN

Loss for the year ended 31 December 2019 decreased to HE-ZE—NF+_A=+—BLEFES
approximately RMB52,400,000 (year ended 31 December 2018: 18R E4 AR 52400000 T (HE=-F
approximately RMB62,414,000). The loss included the following —/\F+_-_A=+—HItFE : HARK

major non-cash items:

Loss for the year (included major
non-cash items)

Non-cash items:

Fair value (gain)/loss of investment properties
Fair value gain of contingent shares payable

(Reversal of)/impairment loss on
other receivables
Impairment loss on inventories

Reversal of allowance for trade receivables
Allowance for/(reversal of) allowance for

other receivables
Depreciation
Amortisation of intangible assets

Impairment loss on intangible assets

Impairment loss on goodwill
Provision for capital gain tax
Share of result of an associate
Income tax credit

Loss for the year (excluded major
non-cash items)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEE W& D

UPDATE ON ACQUIRED BUSINESS

The Group acquired 51% of the equity interest in LCE Group Limited
("LCE Group”) on 28 December 2017 and allocated the goodwill
arising from the acquisition to cash generating unit ("CGU") of
E-commerce solutions segment and recognised customer
relationship in respect of the business of LCE Group and its
subsidiaries (the “LCE Group”) as intangible assets.

However, although the LCE Group recorded an increase in revenue,
the LCE Group could not meet the profits target for the year ended
31 December 2019. The increase in revenue contributed by the
growth of sales of merchandises was partially offset with the drop
in commission income resulting from certain existing brand
partners not signing agency agreements with the LCE Group and
lower commission rates offered by brand partners in 2019. In view
of the above, the Group revised a forecast based on the latest
position. As a result, during the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group recognised non-cash impairment loss on goodwill of
approximately RMB11,451,000 and impairment loss on intangible
assets of approximately RMB26,962,000 allocated to the CGU of
E-commerce solutions segment.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of E-commerce solutions
segment has determined based on a value-in-use calculation
assessed by an independent valuer using discounted cash flow
method. The pre-tax discount rate decreased from 24.4% as at 31
December 2018 to 22.5% as at 31 December 2019. There was no
change to the valuation method adopted for the year ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

PROSPECT

Looking ahead, the management expects that the overall business
environment in China and Hong Kong is likely to remain uncertain
in view of the ongoing China-US trade tensions, social unrest and
the COVID-19 outbreak, especially in the first half of 2020. The
economies of both China and Hong Kong and the domestic
consumption sentiment have been negatively affected.
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Nevertheless, it would not affect the Group's effort in developing its
e-commerce business and partnering with different e-commerce
channels to increase product exposure and liaise with suppliers for
improvement on supply chain in order to provide timely and
quality-assured delivery for enhancing consumer shopping
experiences, drive sales and improve profit margin. In order to
capture the vast market potential of the e-commerce business and
improve profitability, the Group has strengthened its management
team and capability to help building cross-border e-commerce
business. On the back of its strong professional capability to come
up with creative solutions and its commitment to the provision of
quality services for clients, the Group has made a breakthrough in
the diversification of its client base to global brands. As announced
by the Company on 20 March 2020, the Group entered into
franchise agreements with Stella McCartney regarding the right to
sell Stella McCartney’s fashion apparel and accessories on the
designated online sales platforms operated by the Group in China.

Despite the social unrest in Hong Kong since June 2019 posed
challenges to the WeChat Pay business, as announced by the
Company on 5 March 2020, the Group obtained full control on
Haihai by acquiring 30% shareholding interest from its minority
shareholder taking into consideration towards the optimistic
outlook of WeChat Pay industry. In addition to providing online and
offline WeChat Pay services for merchants, the Group would assist
merchants to minimise the usage gap of WeChat Pay services and
reach its fullest potential between Hong Kong and Greater Bay Area
markets by leveraging the WeChat ecosystem and capturing its
audience through setting up of WeChat official account, WeChat
mall and WeChat mini programs.

By increasing scale, strong professional team experience and ability
to provide a one-stop value-added service to customers, it can
bring their brands to consumers in new and innovative ways and
thus enhance online shopping experience and customer loyalty.
The Group believes that the e-commerce solutions business and
WeChat Pay business would have good growth potential and
contribute fruitful results to the Group in the years to come. The
Group would continue to develop these core businesses and
cautiously assess suitable strategic investments and business
opportunities that could maximise returns for shareholders of the
Company.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's bank and cash balances were
approximately RMB226,374,000 (31 December 2018: approximately
RMB252,459,000) and bank loans were RMB9,000,000 (31 December
2018: RMB9,000,000). All bank loans were denominated in Renminbi
and repayable within one year. Bank loans of RMB9,000,000 were
arranged at fixed interest rates as at 31 December 2019 (31
December 2018: RMB2,000,000 arranged at fixed interest rates and
RMB7,000,000 arranged at floating interest rates). The bank loans
were secured by charge over the right-of-use assets, building,
investment properties and personal guarantee provided by a
director of subsidiaries of the Company. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the
following currencies:

REBEERMRER

R-ZE—NF+-A=+—H Hr&EBZ
RITRIRSETFH B AR 226,374,000 7T
TE-)\FE+-A=1t—H: HARK
25245900070 ) M RSRITE R A AR
9,000,000 L (ZE—N\F+ZA=+—8:
AR ®9,0000007T)  FIBIRITE RH N
AREHE  BZEAR—FRNEE - RZZ
—NF+A=+—HRETERARK
9,000,000 TLIZE E M| X5 E(ZF—/\F
+=—A=+—H: AR® 200000075 K& A
E# 7,000,000 7T 7 Bl 3% & 7E F & K& F B F
ReFB) RITERUFEAEEE - 12
FOREWENANRNBAR —ZRES
REZEAZRIEAER - AEERE K
REZEYZRAMBENTIE®EE -

2019 2018
—B-hnEFE —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT AR®BTT
Uss I 51 50
HKS B 212,664 229,764
RMB AR 13,652 22,635
Others Hih 7 10
226,374 252,459

As disclosed in 2018 annual report, the Company had completed ~ 1RIE—F— \FEFERBEMKE * AR 7

the placing of 812,500,000 ordinary shares on 12 December 2018
which generated a net proceed of approximately RMB226,926,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$257,380,000 after deducting
relevant expenses incurred in relation to the placing), which was
mainly used as general working capital for existing business and for
investment of new business in the upstream and downstream of
the Group’s principal business if opportunities arise.
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As at 31 December 2019, the aforesaid net proceed uses which are
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EEET R DM

RZZE—NF+=—_A=+—8 " LmE
FOBFREEIREMBHRERERE B2

consistent with the intended use of proceeds has been applied as

follows: REERT :
Utilised Unutilised
Intended use amount amount
of proceeds of proceeds of proceeds
FBRE  EBAMRB ABAMRS
RERZ MESHE NESHE
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
(i) General working capital for ) WEEBLKZ —BELEE 257,380 29,601 227,779
existing business % (for both (for both
(i) and (ii)) (i) and (ii))
(RIS A 1E (RIFFARE
(i) Investment of new business in (i) & EAANE B F B 7S 0 & (i) Nil ) R (i)
the upstream and downstream B2 E N T E =
of the Group's principal business 7%
Total #Et 257,380 29,601 227,779

It is the Group's strategy to keep the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio
as low as feasible.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted
capital. Net debt is calculated as total debts less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all capital and reserves
attributable to the owners of the Company. As at 31 December
2019, the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio was not applicable since
the Group had approximately RMB226,374,000 bank and cash
balances which can be sufficient to repay all the debts of the Group.

AEBZREABAIEKEBHERAEESR
AREL SR A HMER S
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A o SR R ABE TS FERbR A T B B A5+
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HMEEAKLGEER RZTE—NF+=A
=+—H  EFELCHABRERL IR TE
A REAREEE AR 226374000
TURTTRBRSHET - RAEEREEMNAT
BE® -
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PLEDGED ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the following assets of the Group were
pledged as securities, among others, for the banking facilities
granted by its banks:

(i)  Charge over the building with carrying amount of
approximately RMB4,812,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately RMB5,248,000);

(i) Charge over the right-of-use assets with carrying amount of
approximately RMB2,006,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately RMB2,062,000 classified as prepaid land lease
payments);

(i) Charge over the investment properties with fair value of
approximately RMB57,000,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately RMB55,800,000); and

(iv) Personal guarantee of a director of the Company’s
subsidiaries.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 97 employees (As at 31
December 2018: 93 employees). Employee benefits expenses
(including directors’ emoluments) for year ended 31 December
2019 were approximately RMB23,748,000 (year ended 31 December
2018: approximately RMB23,790,000). Employees were remunerated
based on their performance, experience and prevailing industry
practice. The Company has adopted a share option scheme for
eligible persons and discretionary bonuses are payable to staff
based on performance and in accordance with the Group's overall
remuneration policies.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any significant investments, material
acquisitions and disposals during the year ended 31 December
2019.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Major subsidiaries of the Group operate in the PRC and most of the
transactions are denominated in Renminbi. As certain of the
Group's monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and United States dollars, any significant exchange
rate fluctuations of Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars
against Renminbi may have financial impacts to the Group.
Currently, the Group does not use any derivative financial
instruments. Nevertheless, the Group will review the risk from time
to time and take response measures if necessary.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company acquired 51% equity interests in LCE Group from the
vendor (a BVI company) in 2017. This transaction is regarded as
indirect transfer of the PRC subsidiaries of LCE Group by non-tax
residents and fall within the scope as described in the Public Notice
[2015] No. 7 (“Public Notice 7") issued by the State Administration
of Taxation (the "SAT").

The capital gain derived from such indirect transfer will be subject
to enterprise income tax ("EIT") and the withholding agent should
withhold the EIT amount for settlement with the PRC tax authorities
pursuant to the Public Notice [2017] No. 37 and Public Notice 7
issued by the SAT. The PRC tax authorities would demand from the
withholding agent for the payment of EIT and impose penalty of
50% to 3 times of the unpaid EIT. The penalty may be relieved if the
share transfer transaction has been voluntarily reported to the PRC
tax authorities.
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On 28 December 2017, the Group paid RMB58,358,000 (equivalent
to HK$70,000,000) to the vendor. On 25 June 2018, the Company
issued consideration shares of RMB5,414,000 (equivalent to
HK$6,541,000) to the vendor as part of the consideration. Neither
the Group nor the vendor has reported the share transfer
transaction or has settled the EIT to the PRC tax authorities upon
consideration being partially settled according to the sale and
purchase agreement. The Directors, after consulting the Group's
PRC legal counsel, were of opinion that a provision of RMB5,581,000
calculated based on the cash consideration paid to the vendor as of
31 December 2017 and further provision of RMB566,000 regarding
the shares granted during 2018 was sufficiently made. They
considered that the risk of having a penalty imposed by the PRC tax
authorities arising from non-compliance was reasonably low.

Apart from the above, the Group has no other material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2019.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Saved as disclosed in note 43, note 44 and note 47(a) to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had not executed any
agreement in respect of material investments or capital assets and
did not have any other future plans relating to material investments
or capital assets as at the date of this annual report.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yang Xin Min, aged 70, senior economist, is the founding
chairman and substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Yang
resigned as an executive Director, the chief executive officer, a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company and was re-designated as a non-
executive Director with effect from 16 December 2019. Mr. Yang
graduated from the Beijing Economics Correspondence College.
Since August 1977, Mr. Yang has been the general manager of all
predecessor entities of the Group. Mr. Yang has over 30 years’
experience in the research, production management and
international market development of zirconium chemicals. Mr. Yang
is the father of Mr. Yang Zhen who resigned as an executive
Director of the Company with effect from 16 December 2019.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Chi Kin, aged 51, is an executive Director, the chief
executive officer and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company with effect from
16 December 2019 and holds directorship of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Ho has extensive experience in charge of
operation and development of online social platform, online
advertising service business and launch of mobile online games in
mainland China. In addition, he has over 20 years of experience in
wealth management services in the United States of America, Hong
Kong and mainland China, providing independent financial
consulting services for high-end customers, focusing on corporate
restructuring, mergers and acquisitions and assisting domestic
clients with managing assets in their overseas listings. Mr. Ho was
an executive director, the chief financial officer and a member of
the executive committee of the board of Daohe Global Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 915),
from 2018 to March 2020. He was also the company secretary and
authorised representative of Daohe Global Group Limited from
2018 to 2019. Prior to that, Mr. Ho began his career as an
accountant at Tang & Wong CPAs in Hawaii in 1993. From the year
of 2000 to 2005, he was a partner of CCP C.P.A. Limited where he
handled a variety of portfolios in auditing and assurance service in
the fields of properties, manufacturing, construction, trading and
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retailing business, hotels and financial institutions. From the year of
2005 to 2016, Mr. Ho was a founder and managing director of TAKA
International Corporation, which is a professional firm for provision
of corporate restructuring, company secretarial and accounting
services in mainland China. TAKA International Corporation was
acquired by Vistra Group in 2014. Mr. Ho holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from Hawaii Pacific University and a Bachelor
of Business Administration degree from the University of Hawaii. Mr.
Ho is a qualified accountant and a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Cheng Faat Ting Gary, aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in November
2001. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr. Cheng
was an independent non-executive director of Niche-Tech Group
Limited (stock code: 8490) from May 2018 to June 2019. In 2011, Dr.
Cheng graduated with a Doctor of Business Administration from the
City University of Hong Kong with research area in “Independent Non-
Executive Director and Corporate Governance”. He is one of few
practicing CPA in Hong Kong with DBA degree of research area
concentrated in INED study. Dr. Cheng is a Fellow Certified Public
Accountant in both Hong Kong and the United States of America
("USA") and a Certified Tax Advisor of the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Dr. Cheng received his Bachelor's degree in Accounting
(Honours) and Master's degree of Business Administration from
Southern lllinois University, USA, in 1992 and 1994 respectively. Dr.
Cheng had worked at the audit division of the international accounting
firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers, and has over 25 years of experience in
financial reporting, business advisory, auditing, accounting, tax
investigation and liquidation. Dr. Cheng is currently the managing
director of Gary Cheng CPA Limited. For public services, Dr. Cheng
currently serves as chairman of CityU Eminence Society, charter
president of the Lion Club of Huaxia Hong Kong and committee
member of Social Welfare Advisory Committee of HKSAR.
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Mr. Poon Lai Yin, Michael, aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in January
2010. Mr. Poon had acted as the chief financial officer in two
companies listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange since 2002,
and was mainly responsible for the overall financial management,
internal control function and accounting function. Mr. Poon has
over 20 years of experience in financial reporting, business advisory,
auditing, taxation, accounting, merger and acquisition. Mr. Poon is
a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a member of CPA Australia and a practicing member
of Asset Management Association of China. He holds a Bachelor's
degree in Administrative Studies with York University in Canada
and a Master’s degree in Practicing Accounting with Monash
University in Australia. Mr. Poon had been working for an
international accounting firm and was responsible for providing
business advisory and assurance services for some listed clients.

Mr. Poon is currently an executive director and the chief financial
officer of Huakang Biomedical Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 8622) since August 2017. He is also an independent non-
executive director of LFG Investment Holdings Limited (stock code:
3938) since September 2019, Niche-Tech Group Limited (stock
code: 8490) since June 2019, Teamway International Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1239) since March 2019 and China
Uptown Group Company Limited (stock code: 2330) since
November 2006.
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Mr. Poon was an independent non-executive director of CityNeon
Holdings Limited (a company previously listed on the main board
of the Singapore Exchange Limited) from August 2017 to 2019. He
was also the alternate to a non-executive director of Vincent
Medical Holdings Limited (stock code: 1612) from February 2016 to
July 2017, the chief executive officer and the company secretary of
Anxin-China Holdings Limited (a company previously listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange) from February 2017 to May 2017
and an independent non-executive director of Sun International
Resources Limited (stock code: 8029) from September 2008 to
August 2011. For Celebrate International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8212), Mr. Poon was the chief financial officer and company
secretary from June 2010 to April 201
October 2010 to July 2011 and a non-executive director from July
2011 to December 2011. Mr. Poon was the independent non-
executive director and chief financial officer of Enviro Energy
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1102) from December
2006 to July 2008 and from July 2008 to November 2009
respectively. He was the financial controller and company secretary
of KOALA Financial Group Limited (stock code: 8226) from March
2002 to June 2008.

1, an executive director from

Mr. Peng Bobo, aged 33, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company on 27 December 2018. Mr. Peng joined the
Microelectronics Research Institute of ZTE Corporation as the senior
engineer since December 2015 and has been subsequently
promoted and appointed as the expert engineer since June 2017.
Prior to that, Mr. Peng had been appointed as the engineer and the
senior engineer of Advantest Semiconductor Technology Company
Limited for the period from August 2012 to August 2014 and for
the period from August 2014 to August 2015 respectively. Mr. Peng
is a veteran with extensive experience in semiconductor related
fields. Mr. Peng obtained a Bachelor's degree and a Master's degree
in microelectronics from East China Normal University in 2009 and
2012 respectively. Mr. Peng is the joint inventor for certain invention
patents in semiconductor related fields.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung, aged 59, is an independent non-
executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company with effect from 16 December 2019. Mr. Tsui has
extensive experiences in financial advisory services, investor
relations, corporate restructuring, direct investment and business
development consultancy. Mr. Tsui is an independent non-
executive director of Delta-Asia Financial Group in Hong Kong and
Macau since 2018. Mr. Tsui was an independent non-executive
director of listed entities including Affluent Partners Holdings
Limited (formerly Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited) which was
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1466), from 2014 to 2016;
China MetroRural Holdings Limited which was listed on the NYSE
MKT (ticker symbol: CNR) and the successor of Man Sang Holdings
Inc. pursuant to a reorganisation in 2009, from 2009 to 2014; and
Man Sang Holdings Inc which was listed on the American Stock
Exchange, from 2006 to 2009. Since 2000, Mr. Tsui has founded and
served as the President and Director of DMC Investment Co. Ltd., a
private investment company in Hong Kong active in direct
investment. From 2007 to 2011, he was the International President
of Asian Outreach International. Currently, he serves on the Board of
AsiaCMS Berhad headquartered at Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia and also
the Board of Asian Access of the U.S. Mr. Tsui holds a Bachelor of
Arts and Master of Philosophy from the University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Tang Yat Ming Edward, aged 55, is an independent non-
executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company with effect from 16 December 2019. Mr. Tang is currently
the chief financial officer of SBE International Limited since 2017.
Mr. Tang was an executive director, chief financial officer, company
secretary and authorised representative of National Arts
Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (formerly National Arts
Holdings Limited) which was listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8228), from 2008 to 2011. Mr. Tang has over 20 years of
extensive experience in financial reporting, business advisory,
auditing, accounting, merger and acquisitions. Mr. Tang holds a
Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Manitoba,
Canada. Mr. Tang is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a chartered financial analyst of
Association for Investment Management and Research.

BEEREREBAEEHEN

EfhLE 59 BEZE—NF+H
TRNBRARRBZBIIERITEETAR
BEZELEE FHEEekRRZEEYZ
KB o EAAERBERRY  REEME
R HEEH BEEREREFEREM
FEHEELEELR BT \F - EX
AREXVEEBTER AR 2B IE
MITESF - EXRECEE LT ARINEL
FNTES - AREHERER T —NF
BT - RNFHEEBRT EMREER
AERAR(AIBREEKREZERER AR -
BRGBRIR:1466) 2EF  RZTETNF
ET-NFEARZTNFEMRE
Man Sang Holdings Inc. BY A E A R - A4
& H R 5 BT 3% £ ™ & China MetroRural
Holdings Limited (A% R 518 : CNR) 2 E 5
MRZZEERNFETTNHAEEER
5 FT_E T #J Man Sang Holdings Inc. Z & 5 »
B_ZTTF - EAADAIP I EEDMC
Investment Co, Ltd. (—/ERREHIRE R
W EBLARE RG] NBERFRES -
WZEZLFE_FT——F + K BAsian
Outreach International V& & o B Al * & A
I A2 48 B2 7O 5 2K 78 28 5 P& 3% Y AsiaCMS
Berhad J2 )R B E B A Asian Access NEEE
KE - EXEBEEBAREXELNETE
===l VA

WEBAKLE 555 BT NAEF+_A
TARBEERARRB 2B IFAITEETIAN
BERZES FHZESRRERZEEL
KB BB _T—tFRERAER
RUTERBRARNEFEYHE - L
ER_TTN\FE_T——FEBIMA L
MmEBEBIRE L EEAR AR (511 E
BIEAR QA - BRI 8228) HME
HITES BERVBE  ReWE EE
KK - BELEMBRE  XHERF
it EBEF - ASFRBE T mEA BB 20F
MEELR HEERANEAEEHEDE
RENEES LB - BEERBTEEST
MAEgERKREEEERRHERTE

B HTED o

2019 FFR



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENREREEBASEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Yeung Wai Ling, aged 39, is the chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Group. Ms. Yeung graduated from Hong
Kong Baptist University and received a bachelor degree in Business
Administration (Accounting). She is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Before joining the Group
in 2015, she has worked in international accounting firm and
Singapore listed company. She has extensive experience in auditing
and financial reporting.

Mr. Lu Qinglu, aged 47, is currently the director and general
manager of the LCE Group. Mr. Lu graduated from East China
Normal University with a master’s degree in business
administration. Mr. Lu established Lucky Creation Enterprise
(Shanghai) Limited and Jianyi Information Technology (Shanghai)
Limited, being a director and general manager since July 2010 and
is also an executive partner of L/ BRRIEEEREHE (AR
&%) since March 2016. Mr. Lu has been active in the investment
and consultancy management of the internet sector in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

Mr. Kwan Che Hang Jason, aged 52, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company in December 2013 to May 2018
and is currently the general manager of 020 solutions segment. He
was the founder and chief executive officer of Smartac Group. He
graduated in 1991 from the University of British Columbia, Canada
with a Bachelor of Commerce degree and in 2010 from the EMBA
program of Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business. During the
period of his university studies, Mr. Kwan was the first Chinese
marketing executive working for the Vancouver Board of Trade, as
well as a part-time writer for the financial section of a local
magazine. After graduation, Mr. Kwan joined the Jardines Group
and was assigned to work in the IT division of the Jardines Group. In
1995, Mr. Kwan was assigned as the regional manager in Vietnam,
and a year later he was assigned to work in the Shanghai subsidiary.
In 1998, Mr. Kwan was promoted as the general manager of Eastern
China region where he worked until 1999. In 2000, Mr. Kwan
founded the Smartac Group and had opened 9 branch offices in
China focusing on [T system integration business. In 2002, Mr. Kwan
was a member of the executive committee and the chairman of the
IT Committee of the Hong Kong Chamber of Commerce (Shanghai).
In 2007, the Suzhou subsidiary of Smartac Group was selected as
one of the key developing enterprises in the Suzhou Industrial Park
("SIP") and had been granted the right to construct an office block
in the SIP which is now used as the investment properties of the
Group. Mr. Kwan is highly experienced in providing services in
mobile internet technology, 020 solutions and retail big data
service operation. Mr. Kwan is the brother of Mr. Kwan Che Ho
Jacky.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Kwan Che Ho Jacky, aged 47, joined the Group's non-wholly
owned subsidiary — Smartac Solutions (Suzhou) Limited (“Smartac
Solutions”) in December 2014 as retail business general manager
and is currently the general manager of Shanghai branch office of
020 solutions segment. He graduated from the University of British
Columbia with a Master degree of Engineering in 1997. He joined
the Hong Kong GEM listed company — Proactive Technology
Holdings Limited in 1999, engaged in business communication
services and specialised in VolP communications and call center
operations. In 2001, he joined Smartac Group which was acquired
by the Group as a non-wholly owned subsidiary in 2013 as sales
and marketing general manager. Over these years, he provided
application solutions, established and maintained communications
and call center systems for various companies in logistics, retail and
foreign financial industries such as UPS, TNT, IKEA in China, Hang
Lung Properties, UBS, BNP Paribas, Standard Chartered Bank. Mr.
Kwan is the brother of Mr. Kwan Che Hang Jason.

Mr. Zhang Fang, aged 40, software development general manager
of Smartac Solutions, was responsible for developing online to
offline software solutions, SCRM system and processing massive
software data distribution and analysis. Mr. Zhang joined Smartac
Solutions in 2006 and had worked as senior software develop
engineer, project manager, CRM department manager and
developer director during the period from 2006 to August 2014. He
was promoted to software development general manager in
August 2014, Mr. Zhang graduated from Shanghai East China
Normal University and joined the direct marketing company —
Shanghai Mecox Lane International Mailorder Company Limited to
develop invoicing and workflow systems. He had also involved in
the development of customer relationship management, enterprise
resource planning, management information systems, call center
software and was responsible for software projects and database
management.
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The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to safeguard the interest of the Company’s
shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and achieved these by an
effective board, segregation of duties with clear accountability,
sound internal controls, appropriate risk assessment procedures
and transparency to all the Shareholders. Save as disclosed below,
the Company has complied with the code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange throughout
the year ended 31 December 2019. Under the Code Provision A.2.1,
the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Yang Xin Min
has ceased the position of the chief executive officer ("CEQ”) of the
Group with effect from 16 December 2019. Following the
appointment of Mr. Ho Chi Kin as CEO of the Group on the same
date, the Company has re-complied with Code Provision A.2.1 of
the Listing Rules.

The Board periodically reviews and monitors the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance or compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and employees’ code of conduct
to ensure that the Group’s operations are conducted in accordance
with the standards of the CG Code and applicable disclosure
requirements. Directors and senior management are provided with
appropriate ongoing training, continuing professional
development for reqular updates of the legal and regulatory
requirements relevant to their duties.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for supervision of the management of the
business and affairs, approval of strategic plans and reviewing of
financial performance. The Board currently comprises seven
members, including one executive Director, one non-executive
Director and five independent non-executive Directors.

Non-executive Director
Yang Xin Min (Chairman)

Executive Director
Ho Chi Kin (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Cheng Faat Ting Gary

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael

Mr. Peng Bobo

Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung

Mr. Tang Yat Ming Edward
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The changes to the composition of the Board and Board
committees during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

(@) Mr. Yang Xin Min resigned as an executive Director, the CEO, a
member of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the
Nomination Committee and an authorised representative of
the Company and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director with effect from 16 December 2019.

(b)  Mr. Ho Chi Kin was appointed as an executive Director, the
CEO, a member of the Remuneration Committee, a member
of the Nomination Committee and an authorised
representative of the Company with effect from 16 December
2079,

(©)  Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee, a
member of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
the Nomination Committee of the Company with effect from
16 December 2019.

(d) Mr. Tang Yat Ming Edward was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee, a
member of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
the Nomination Committee of the Company with effect from
16 December 2019.

(e) Mr. Yang Zhen resigned as an executive Director of the
Company with effect from 16 December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company had at all
times complied with Rules 3.10 and Rules 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed under the
section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management”
section of this annual report. An updated list of the Directors and
their roles and functions is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The overall management and control of the Company's business
are vested in its Board, which assumes responsibility for its
leadership and control of the Company and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs. All Directors carry out their
duties in good faith, take decisions objectively and act in the
interests of the Company and Shareholders at all times.
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Management, under the leadership of the CEQ, is responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Group's businesses and the
implementation of the strategies and policies as determined by the
Board. The delegations to the management are periodically
reviewed by the Board to ensure that they are appropriate and
continue to be beneficial to the Group as a whole. All Directors
could have recourse to seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’s expense, upon
reasonable request made to the Board and are encouraged to
access and to consult with the Company's executive Directors and
management independently.

Currently, the Chairman of the Board and the CEO of the Group are
Mr. Yang Xin Min and Mr. Ho Chi Kin (who was appointed on 16
December 2019 in replacement of Mr. Yang Xin Min) respectively.
The roles of Chairman and CEO are segregated and their respective
responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing.

The Chairman, Mr. Yang Xin Min, who is a non-executive Director, is
responsible for providing leadership for the Board on corporate and
strategic planning, overseeing the functioning of the Board and
encouraging all Directors to have active contributions to the
Board's affairs.

The CEO, Mr. Ho Chi Kin, who is an executive Director, supported by
management, is responsible for managing the Group’s business,
including implementation of major strategies, making day-to-day
decisions and managing business operations.

All Directors have formal letters of appointment with the Company,
which set out the key terms of their appointments. Executive
Director was appointed for a term of five years while each non-
executive Director and independent non-executive Director was
appointed for a term of one year from the date of appointment.
The term of appointment of each Director is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company and the
Listing Rules.
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According to the articles of association, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as
a Director throughout the meeting at which he retires. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of Shareholders after his appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the articles of association, Mr. Yang Xin Min shall
retire by rotation at the 2019 annual general meeting of the
Company. He, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Mr. Ho Chi
Kin, Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung and Mr. Tang Yat Ming Edward
who were new Directors appointed by the Board will hold office
until the first general meeting of the Company after their
appointments on 16 December 2019 and shall then be eligible for
re-election in the coming annual general meeting of the Company.

The biographies of the Directors proposed to be re-elected at the
annual general meeting are set out in the circular sent with this
annual report to provide information to Shareholders to decide on
their re-elections.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such
confirmation, the Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service, and any other factors that the
Board may consider relevant and applicable from time to time.
High emphasis is placed on ensuring a balanced composition of
skills and experience at the Board level for the benefits of diversity
on the Board and enabling the Board to discharge its duties and
responsibilities effectively.
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Selection of candidates will be based on the Company’s
nomination policy and will take into account the Board diversity
policy. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board,
having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board and also
the needs of the Board without focusing on a single diversity
aspect. The Nomination Committee shall report its findings and
make recommendation to the Board. Such policy and objectives
will be reviewed from time to time to ensure their appropriateness
in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

Objectives

The Nomination Committee assists the Board in making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors. The Nomination Policy
provides the key selection criteria and principles of the Nomination
Committee in making any such recommendations.

Selection Criteria

When making recommendations regarding the appointment of
any proposed candidate to the Board or reappointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall
consider a variety of factors including without limitation the
following in assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate:

Reputation for integrity;

Relevant skills and experience in the information technology
industry and other relevant sectors;

Commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and
attention to the Company’s business;

Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge;

Compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the appointment of an

independent non-executive Director; and

Any other relevant factors as may be determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time.
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The appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board shall be made
in accordance with the Company's articles of association and other
applicable rules and regulations.

Nomination Procedures

The Secretary of the Nomination Committee shall convene a
meeting, and invite nominations of candidates from Board
members (if any), for consideration by the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee may also nominate candidates for its
consideration.

In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate to the
Board, the Nomination Committee shall undertake adequate due
diligence in respect of such individual and make recommendations
for the Board's consideration and approval.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the
Board, the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to
the Board for its consideration and recommendation, for the
proposed candidates to stand for re-election at a general meeting.

Please refer to the “Procedures for shareholders to propose
candidates for election as Directors”, which is available on the
Company'’s website, for procedures for shareholders’ nomination of
any proposed candidate for election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee shall review and monitor the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity of perspectives) of the Board on an annual basis and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting.

Review of the Nomination Policy
The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy

periodically in line with the Company’s strategy and recommend
any proposed changes to the Board for approval.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for
dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.

The Company, having made specific enquiries from all the Directors
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
directors’ and officers’ liabilities of the Company in respect of any
legal actions taken against the Directors and officers of the
Company arising out of corporate activities.

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure proper understanding of the
Company's operations and businesses as well as responsibilities
under relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations. The company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) from time
to time provides the Directors with updates on latest development
and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements. The Company Secretary maintains records
of trainings attended by the Directors and the summary of trainings
is set out on page 36 of this annual report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board Committees to oversee
various aspects of the Group's affairs: the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Terms
of reference of all Board committees are available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee currently comprises five independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael, Mr. Peng
Bobo, Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung, Mr. Tang Yat Ming Edward and is
chaired by Dr. Cheng Faat Ting Gary who has substantial
accounting and related financial management expertise.
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The Audit Committee is responsible for (i) monitoring and
reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems; (ii)
reviewing the Group's financial information; and (iii) overseeing the
relationship with the auditor of the Company. The work performed
by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December 2019
were:

Reviewed the interim results and annual results;

Reviewed the auditing and financial reporting matters,
including the management letter from the external auditors
in relation to the audit of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019;

Recommended to the Board on the appointment of external
auditors;

Reviewed and approved the internal audit plans; and

Reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control
systems.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, RSM Hong Kong, in respect of audit services and non-
audit services for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out
below:
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Fees paid/
Service category R 75 %8 B payable
B E A
HK$’000
BT T
Audit service BEZIRTE

Annual audit for 2019 - ZE-NFFEEZ 1,280

Non-audit service FEEIZRTE
Agreed upon procedures - HERF 340
Taxation - I 26
1,646
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The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Ho Chi Kin and four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael, Mr. Tsui
Francis King Chung, Mr. Tang Yat Ming Edward and is chaired by Dr.
Cheng Faat Ting Gary. A majority of the members of the
Remuneration Committee consists of independent non-executive
Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for (i) reviewing the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and senior
management; (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
Directors’ fee structure; and (iii) reviewing and approving
compensation-related issues.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the adjustment and proposals of director fee,
salary and discretionary bonus of Directors and senior
management.

Remuneration payable to members of senior management of the
Company (excluding Directors) for the year of 2019 is within the
following bands:

HNEZBE AR - RAITESAREL
ERUABIYIFAITESAN - BERE
S BEYPEL WMAMEL  AHE
BHTHLHELE -FHEEENAZH
PX B BB IFMITE FAAK

FHZESRE () RIATEZLSAE
BABZHNGFSE  (IREFCRSERER
ExgHROERES  Ri)EHRILE
HEMEREE -

HE-Z-NF+ZA=+—RHLFE"
HINEZESEENEFAE  FEULE
ENEREBEABZHBIEAHENRZ

N
-
RS

“E-NFERNARREREEAR
(TEREF) ZMEN FIATHE :

Number of individuals

N -
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ET-N\F
Nil to RMB500,000 Tz ARM 500,000 7T 2 3
RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000 AR 500,001 JTE
AR #1,000,000 7T 1 1
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR ¥ 1,000,001 TTE
AR ¥ 1,500,000 7T 2 1
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The Nomination Committee currently comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Ho Chi Kin and four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael, Mr. Tsui
Francis King Chung, Mr. Tang Yat Ming Edward and is chaired by Dr.
Cheng Faat Ting Gary.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for (i) reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) assessing the
suitability and qualification of any proposed director candidate; (iii)
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; (iv) making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors; and (v) monitoring
and reviewing the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and
Nomination Policy.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2019 were:

Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

Assessed the independence of each independent non-
executive Directors; and

Reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and re-appointment of the Directors.
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2019 BOARD AND COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE AND
TRAINING RECORDS

The attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings, and Board
Committee meetings, annual general meeting of the Company and
training for the year ended 31 December 2019 was as follows:

—E-NFEEEREESHES
& N3 | RE 8%

EENARARE T NE+ A
SH-ALFEESRRE EFEEAW
i RRAFA G FE RN R
m

Attendance/Number of meeting(s) held during the
respective term of services

REBERHBLRE /BTERRY

Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual
Board  Committee = Committee ~ Committee General Training
Directors EE Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting (Note)
Exe EKZEE §MzEe REZEE RREE 2
g3 EE EE ] Xg (Br##)
Non-executive Director FHUTEE
Yang Xin Min (Chairman) GHR(EE) 1111 5/5 33 11 v
Executive Director HWTES
Ho ChiKin (Chief Executive Officer) ITHER (B EH/TE) 1/1 1/1 1 v
Independent Non-executive BV HTES
Directors
Dr. Cheng Faat Ting Gary gETEL /1 22 6/6 4/4 1/1 v
Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael BEELE 1/ 22 6/6 4/4 "N v
Mr. Peng Bobo YRREE 1M 212 "N v
Mr.TsuiFrancisKing Chung BSR4 1/1 11 1/1 %
Mr. Tang Yat Ming Edward HARLE 1 11 1 v
Directorsresignedduring ~ FREHIEES
the year
Mr. Yang Zhen BELE 111 11 v
Number of meetingsheld ~ R=F—fEEfT
in2019 Z8EA i 2 6 4 1

Note: Trainings included attending seminars and/or reading materials on
legal and regulatory updates, corporate governance, director’s duties
and responsibilities.

Apart from meetings in person or by other electronic means, the
Board and Board committees also circulate written resolutions for
approval by the relevant members of the Board and Board
committees in compliance with the Company’s articles of
association and Code Provision of the CG Code.
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The Company Secretary, Ms. Yeung Wai Ling, supports the Board
and Board committees by ensuring good information flow within
the Board and that the Board’s policy and procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed. The Company
Secretary is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters and facilitating the induction and continuous
professional development of Directors. During the ended 31
December 2019, the Company Secretary received not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training to update her skills and
knowledge. Her biography is set out in this annual report under the
section headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management”.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of financial statements for each financial period, which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flow for that period. The Directors confirm that, to the
best of their knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their
responsibilities for the audit of the Group's consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
83 10 90.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis in order to safeguard the Group’s assets, investments
and the shareholders’ interest, and in reviewing their effectiveness
at least annually through the Audit Committee.

The Group has engaged an external independent professional firm
as the outsourced internal auditor which provides an independent
review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems on an annual basis and in fulfilling its duties
to oversee corporate governance and material controls in the
Group's financial, operational and compliance controls. The systems
and internal controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss, as they are
designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's internal
auditor conducted selective reviews of the effectiveness of the
systems of risk management and internal controls of the Group
based on the audit plan agreed annually by the Audit Committee
over financial, operational and compliance controls. These results
were assessed by Group’s internal auditor and reported to the Audit
Committee, which then reviewed and reported the same to the
Board. The Board and Audit Committee closely monitor the findings
conducted and recommendations proposed by the internal auditor
and also the corrective measures taken by relevant departments.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems
established and maintained by the Group, the work performed by
the internal auditor, and reviews performed by the management,
the Audit Committee and the Board were not aware of any areas of
concern that would have a material impact on the Group's financial
position or operating results, and considered that the risk
management and internal control systems to be generally effective
and adequate.

POLICY AND PROCEDURES OF INSIDE INFORMATION
HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules and the overriding
principle that inside information should be announced immediately
when it is the subject of a decision. The procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information
are as follows:

The Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by
the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June
2012;

The Group strictly prohibits unauthorised use of confidential
or inside information applicable to all employees of the
Group;

The Group strictly keeps inside information confidential and
restricts to relevant parties on a need-to-know basis so as to
ensure confidentiality until consistent and timely disclosure of
the inside information in an equal and timely manner by way
of financial reporting, company announcements and its
website; and

The Board consults the Company’s legal advisor in assisting to
assess whether the relevant information is considered to be
inside information which needs to be disclosed as soon as
reasonably practicable.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safequard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual directors. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders may also propose a person for election as director
and the procedures for shareholders to propose candidates for
election as Directors are available on the Company’s website.

Shareholders are welcomed to put forward proposals relating to
the operations and management of the Group to be discussed at
general meetings. The proposals shall be sent to the Company
Secretary by a written requisition with his detailed contact
information to the Company’s head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong (details of which are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Information” of this annual report). Shareholders
who wish to put forward a proposal should convene an
extraordinary general meeting by following the procedures set out
in “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting” above.

Shareholders have a right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
should be in writing and sent to the Company Secretary at Room
1204, 12th Floor, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong or by email to investors@smartacgroup.com.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to
Shareholders to be our goal. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall
take into account, inter alia:

(i) the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

(i) the Group’s actual and future operations and liquidity
position;

(i)  the Group's expected working capital requirements, future
expansion plans and future commitments at the time of
declaration of dividend;

(iv) the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio, return on equity
and the relevant financial covenants;

(v) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders;

(vi) any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and any applicable laws, rules and regulations relevant
to the Group;

(vii) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

(viii) general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group

and other internal or external factors that may have an impact

on the business or financial performance and position of the

Group; and

(ix) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Dividend Policy and the declaration and/or payment of future
dividends under the Dividend Policy are subject to the Board's
continuing determination that the Dividend Policy and the
declaration and/or payment of dividends would be in the best
interests of the Group and shareholders, and are in compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations.

The Board endeavours to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with
a sustainable Dividend Policy.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves

the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend,
modify and/or cancel the Dividend Policy at any time.
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The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Group in respect of its future dividend and/or
in no way obligate the Group to declare a dividend at any time or
from time to time, there can be no assurance that dividends will be
paid in any particular amount for any given period.

Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay dividends, the
form, frequency and amount will depend upon the
abovementioned factors.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board recognises the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company’s general meeting is a valuable
forum for the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders.
The Chairmen of the Board Committees are present to answer
shareholders’ questions. The Company aims to be open and
transparent with Shareholders and encourages Shareholders’ active
participation at the Company’s general meetings.

Information would be communicated to the Shareholders mainly
through the Company’s corporate communications (such as
interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars), annual
general meeting and other general meetings, as well as disclosure
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Interim
reports, annual reports and circulars are sent to the Shareholders in
a timely manner and are also available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The Company's and the Stock
Exchange’s websites provides Shareholders with the corporate
information.

The Company’s annual general meeting allows the Directors to
meet and communicate with Shareholders. The Company ensures
that Shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board. The
notice of annual general meeting is distributed to all Shareholders
at least 21 days prior to the annual general meeting and the
accompanying circular also sets out the procedures for conducting
a poll and other relevant information of the proposed resolutions.
Voting results are posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange on the day of the annual general meeting.

Shareholders and investors may also contact the Company by email
to investors@smartacgroup.com or by mail to the Company
Secretary at Room 1204, 12th Floor, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The website of the Company at
www.smartacgroup.com also provides a medium to make
information of the Group available to shareholders.

There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year and up to the date of this annual report.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG”) Report
published by the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group” or “‘we") elaborates their commitment and strategies and
summarises the efforts and achievements on corporate social
responsibility and sustainable development for the reporting period
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (the “Year"). As for the
information on corporate governance, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report on page 26 to 41 of this annual report.

The ESG Report of the Year focuses on the sustainability approach,
performance in environmental and social aspects of our core
business in the PRC and Hong Kong, namely (i) sales of software
and provision of 020 consultation service; (i) provision of electronic
payment solutions and services; and (iii) management, operation
and provision of online shops and e-commerce platforms. The key
performance indicators (“KPIs”") disclosed in the ESG Report focused
on our subsidiaries located in Suzhou and Shanghai of the PRC. The
Group will make continual efforts in reviewing the performance in
environmental and social aspects, and consider expanding the
scope of the ESG Report in the future.

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with Appendix 27
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” to the
Listing Rules.

For detailed information about our environmental, social and
corporate governance, please refer to our official website
(www.smartacgroup.com) and this annual report. Your opinions will
be highly valued. Should you have any advice, please contact us at
investors@smartacgroup.com.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ESG MANAGEMENT

The Group fulffills its social responsibility willingly and appreciates the
benefits of good ESG management for providing a long-term
sustainable development strategy. In order to ensure the
establishment of competent ESG risk management measures and
internal control system, the Board is responsible for directing the
sustainability strategies and the reporting of ESG, while the
management of the Group would execute the strategies and practise
sustainability in their daily operation.

The Board reviews and revises the Group's policy on sustainable
development from time to time to ensure the effectiveness of the
system for accomplishing the expectations and needs of the
stakeholders. Internal reviews, such as independent assessments
and analysis, are also arranged to improve ESG management.

Communication with Stakeholders

The Group recognises the importance of stakeholders’ views to our
business. Exemplifying our commitment to communicating with
stakeholders, including both internal and external parties, we have
established diversified channels to understand their expectations
and needs, which are essential to our business development.

Expectations and
Stakeholders
&

Requirements
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Means of Communication
and Response

BEROERE

Government and Regulators

BN EEHE

laws and regulation

BFEREER AR ER

Support local economic growth

R 7 B R

Drive local employment
R 7 B3R

Pay taxes in full and on time
1R R R

Compliance with national policies,
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Regular information reporting
E HARE & A
Examinations and inspections
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RIR - e RERERE

Stakeholders

Expectations and
Requirements

Means of Communication
and Response

& HERER BBEROERE
Shareholders Returns General meetings
IR Y25 B ¥R RERAE
Compliant operation Announcements
BREE NG
Raise in Company value Email, telephone communication and
RARRNEE company website
Transparency of information and BIf - BiEABRAGIE
effective communication
AEBBREREREB
Partners Operate with integrity Business communications
BERH MEEE ESv 3]
Equal rivalry Engagement and cooperation
AFHS AA T
Performance of contracts
HOEBH
Mutual benefits and win-win result
BHHm
Customers Outstanding products and services Customer service centre and hotlines
TR BHE m MRS B RRA O R EAR
Health and safety Customer communication meetings
RS BEBBER
Performance of contracts Calling for feedback
HOEBH) =]
Operate with integrity
MELE
Environment Energy saving and emission reduction Reporting
B ERBERIBE BRWRE
Industry Drive industry development Participation in industry forums
175 REITRER SEITERIE
Visits and inspections
S kigE
Employees Protection of rights Employee communication meetings
BE& REZHER EEEBEH
Occupational health and safety House journal and intranet
BERERZE 25 BRI e N B 48

Community and the Public
HERAR

Remunerations and benefits
eSS TR
Career development

EE 9

Improve community environment
HEHRERE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

We have engaged employees from different departments in the
preparation of ESG Report, which enables us to better recognise
our current environmental and social development. The
information and data collected act as a summary of our
environmental and social initiatives carried out during the Year and
form the basis for us to map out short-term and long-term
strategies for sustainable development.

Materiality Assessment

The Group commissioned an independent third-party consultant
for assistance in conducting a just and fair materiality assessment
during the preparation of the ESG Report, thereby ensuring
comprehensive disclosure of information. The materiality
assessment was performed in the following three main phases:

() identifying potential material ESG issues that might affect the
Group’s business or stakeholders;

(i) inviting internal and external stakeholders, including
employees, management, directors, clients, suppliers, and
community, to conduct questionnaire survey for
understanding their views and expectations of the Group's
response to and disclosures of ESG issues; and

(iii)  prioritising the preliminarily identified ESG issues based on
the analysis results of the questionnaire survey.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RiE - B RERRS

We have mapped 30 ESG issues onto a matrix reflecting their R FfIAEEE&E T30HEIRE - € K&

significance to stakeholders (y-axis), and to our business (x-axis). EREBYEENE (vE) REREMER X
HMEZN -
=
2 i
T

Significance to Stakeholders
HEOENEERM
Medium
s

Low Medium High
& H =

Significance to the Group’s Business

HAREEMERNERM
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Environment
RiE

Labour Practices

BIER

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Operation Practices

EEED

RIR - 8 RERRE

Community Investment

HERE

1 Environmental
Compliance
RIREHR

2 Greenhouse Gas Emission
BERBEEN

3 Waste Management
BEEYER

4 Energy Consumption
BEIRE

5 Use of Water Resources

IKERIER

6 Green Office
R /N

7 Responding to Climate

Change
FEHRIREL

8 Employment Compliance

BIRER

9 Employees’ Remuneration
and Benefits

B BB &A= A

10 Employees’ Working Hours
and Rest Period
18 B TIFR B IK B
H

11 Diversity and Equal
Opportunity
LR TSRS

12 Occupational Health and
Safety

BxEERLZE

13 Training and Development
P B R

14 Prevention of Child Labour
and Forced Labour
BribZE T Koawlss T

15 Operational Compliance
LEAR

16 Managing Environmental
Risks of Supply Chain
BIEHERHRFAR

17 Managing Social Risks of
Supply Chain
BIRMHEENT S AR

18 Procurement Practices

REBED

19 Quality Management
gEEE

20 Customer Health and

Safety
BERPREERZ R

21 Responsible Sales and
Marketing
BEEEHEIEE

22 Customer Service
Management
EPRGER

23 Intellectual Property
Protection
FE R &

24 Research and
Development
fiff 5% B ) 3%

25 Information Security

BEftx

26 Customer Privacy
Protection
BEPALRBRE

27 Anti-corruption
RES
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28 Charity

A E=
NmEE=

29 Promotion of Community
Development

Rt R B R

30 Poverty Alleviation

KETIE
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B HAREARE

Through the aforementioned procedures, we have eventually #EiBIA FiBT2 @ RAZRKHBRN 7/ EZFEE
identified 7 most material ESG issues and responded in the IR - HE@NEAFE WA TEHES

following corresponding sections.

Material Aspect
EERE

EIfEL @ AE -

Corresponding Section

HESE

8 Employment Compliance

BREaR

9 Employees' Remuneration and Benefits

1 8 % il K Ag 7

10 Employees’ Working Hours and Rest Period
& B TER 8 MK B ]

13 Training and Development
H o)l B R

15 Operational Compliance
2EAR

Employment and Labour Practices
BRENSIER
> Employment
=
> Labour Standards

ke T 4T S
ST

Employment and Labour Practices
EBERBSIER
> Employment
(=
> Salary and Benefits
M N e A
> Labour Standards
BIRE

Employment and Labour Practices
BRENSIER
> Employment
(=
> Salary and Benefits
L E A
> Labour Standards

Wit T 4T S
BITIZE

Employment and Labour Practices
BIENETIER
> Development and Training

R MR

Operating Practices

= EED

> Product Responsibility
EmaE

> Data and Privacy Protection

B M AL SRR
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Material Aspect
EERE

RIR - 8 RERRE

Corresponding Section

HEZH

23 Intellectual Property Protection

Operating Practices

B E R (R LEED
> Data and Privacy Protection
BHR AL RIE
26 Customer Privacy Protection Operating Practices
B ILEARIE =EED
> Data and Privacy Protection
BHR RALRRE
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION BRIERE

Due to the absence of manufacturing and construction activities,
the operations of the Group do not generate significant air or water
pollutants. The wastewater generated by the Group is mainly
domestic sewage and is discharged into municipal wastewater
treatment plant for further treatment. The key environmental
impacts of the Group’s operations would be the indirect
greenhouse gas ("GHG") emissions from electricity, water
consumption at the workplace, overseas business travel, and paper
waste disposal at landfills. The wastes generated by the Group are
contributed by daily office operation. Non-hazardous waste
produced includes general domestic waste and waste paper;
whereas hazardous waste includes tube lights, batteries and
computers. During the Year, hazardous waste was produced only
by the Group's subsidiaries in Suzhou, amounting to 21 kg (2018: 24
kg), with every square metre of floor area of the subsidiaries
producing 0.04 kg of hazardous waste (2018: 0.05 kg/m?). No
hazardous waste with significant environmental impact is produced
due to the Group's business nature.

HRASEEERITES KRB EREEE
B B NS EEERTER N KTLEY)
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ZY) ERNAEBEMNEBKEE  AEEW
BELHRBEENEAVENEEREE
)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R - ERERERE

The data related to GHG emissions and non-hazardous waste
generation of the Group’s subsidiaries in Suzhou and Shanghai are

AEBREMN M LENHBARREER
BIFNE RELE N EEZEZEAEBIBIED

as follows: T
Indicators 2019 2018
EE —E-hE —ZT)\F
Total GHG emissions mE RIS
(tonnes CO.e) (M — AL E & 234 303
Scope 1 — direct emissions #HE 1 — BEEHERE
(tonnes CO.e) (Me -S| thixg = 74 118
Scope 2 — energy indirect emissions #HE 2 — gEREEERE
(tonnes CO.e) (B —Efbix &= 148 173
Scope 3 — other indirect emissions E3— AMmEEERE
(tonnes CO,e) (Wb E & 12 12
Intensity of GHG emissions BEREEREE
(tonnes CO,e/m? floor area) (Mg - bixg s FhHX
EmEmEE) 0.22 0.28
Intensity of GHG emissions BEREEREE
(tonnes CO,e/RMB'000) (B2t EE AR
F) 0.01 0.02
Total non-hazardous waste FTEXREEEMESE (RT)
produced' (kg) 3,351 3,380
Intensity of non-hazardous waste FEXREEENTE
produced (kg/m? floor area) (BT FERKEBMMEE) 3 3
Intensity of non-hazardous waste FEXBREEENTE
produced (kg/RMB'000) (AT / AREFT) 0.13 0.19

! The data of non-hazardous waste, including general domestic waste,
are based on the best estimation by the management.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Resources used by the Group are mainly attributed to electricity
and water consumption at its offices. In addition, the use of
packaging materials is not involved in the Group's business. During
the Year, water consumption of the Group’s subsidiaries in
Shanghai was amounted to 480 m? (2018: 490 m?), with every
square metre of floor area of the subsidiaries consuming 0.87 m? of
water (2018: 0.89 m*/m?). For the Group’s subsidiaries in Suzhou,
the data on water consumption is unavailable since the water bills
were paid as the entire building, covering lessees’ water bills that
were included in their management fees.

The total electricity consumption and intensity of the Group's
subsidiaries in Suzhou and Shanghai are as follows:

RIR - 8 RERRE

AEBFEANEREIFZEAENRAENE
SHERFK o oh  REBEBI TH K
BEMBNER - AFE AFER LS
RIKT B AR MFEKE B480 A K(ZF
—N\F 4903 FK)  WBREEFEH K
EEEBMNEKERISILAK(ZE
— )\ : 0893 75K FFK) o HRAARE
ERERMEM B AT - AREEEZFAK
BG—HN RECBESEEEEFR Y
EFARKE - B WEEKEEIE -

REBPBEMNE HENHBARINEEE
ERFREWT :

Indicators 2019 2018
BEE —E-NEF = — \ 5
Total electricity consumption (MWh) HEHE JKRE) 210 246
Intensity of electricity consumption FETE KRR FEHX

(MWh/m? floor area) EHEEE) 0.20 0.24
Intensity of electricity consumption HEZE KR ARETIT)

(MWh/RMB'000) 0.01 0.01
The Group believes that saving energy, water and other resources  ANEBHSETLER - FAK L EME R

are of great significance to reduce GHG emissions and waste
generation during operation, as well as helping achieve its
sustainable development and reducing operational costs.

The Group has adopted a number of measures to maximise energy
utilisation efficiency. For example, we encourage our employees to
switch off air conditioners, computers, lights and all electric devices
after work to avoid energy wastage. We also promote the use of
natural light so as to minimise electricity used for lighting. Filters of
air conditioners are regularly cleaned for improving refrigerating
efficiency. Due to the GHG emissions caused by vehicles and
planes, priority is given to teleconferencing to avoid unnecessary
business travel.

WA EBREEREERBHRKLERY
FEER  WHBPREXAIFEER R
DEREBRA

AEBECRNZ AL ARG ERE AR
e TFIJZZD &TFTiEbEETEﬂéFaTE/w
B BREMEETRSE  NER
RESR /J? ﬁﬂFﬁ)TT’ﬁMEFﬁE%%’LMEJZ
VIRAFME N - BITERBRL RER
EMANERSWEE - HRNERLREE
EROREREBYR - RMELKAES
SERAB RN DERER
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RIE - HERERHRE

To reduce water consumption, the Group has launched multiple
water efficiency initiatives. To raise the water-saving awareness
among the Group, we encourage our employees to conserve water
by controlling faucet at small to medium water flow. Maintenance
on water equipment is intensified whereas regular inspection and
replacement of ageing water pipes are conducted, so as to
minimise water leakage and maximise water use efficiency.

Since the Group operates its business principally in offices, green
office practices are particularly crucial in demonstrating our efforts
in environmental protection. Procurement of office supplies is
centralised and based on office needs in order to avoid wastage.
We also promote paper conservation by encouraging employees to
reuse single-sided printed papers and to adopt double-sided
printing mode. Where possible, documents are edited on the
computer before finalisation to avoid paper waste caused by
reprinting. Recyclable consumables are placed in designated areas
before being collected by property management, while
consumables for courier services are collected and recycled by
courier companies.

Although the Group's operations do not exert significant adverse
effects on the environment and natural resources, we strive to
minimise the potential environmental impacts. The Group
understands the importance of employees’ support and
participation in protecting the environment and natural resources.
In this connection, employees are frequently reminded through
emails and intranet to integrate the awareness of environmental
protection into their daily work. In strict compliance with all the
national and regional laws and regulations regarding pollution
control and environmental protection, including the Law of the PRC
on Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste
and Environmental Protection Law of the PRC, the Group continued
to execute its practices that improve energy efficiency and give
careful consideration to conserve resources during the Year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Employees are the most valuable assets and the core competitive
advantage of the Group. The Group's practices and policies with
respect to: (i) compensation and dismissal; (i) recruitment and
promotion; (iii) working hours; (iv) rest periods; (v) equal
opportunity; (vi) diversity; (vii) anti-discrimination; and (viii) other
benefits and welfare continued to comply with relevant laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the Labour Law of the PRC
and Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong. In order to ensure our
employees’ understanding of the Group's policies, employee
handbook has been issued to each employee. Terms and
conditions of employment, staff compensation and benefits
(including yearly bonus, allowances, leave entitlement, medical
benefits, social security, mandatory provident fund and training),
chance of promotion, occupational health and safety, complaint
channels and office rules are clearly stated in the employee
handbook.

The Group conducts recruitment and promotion in accordance to
employees’ ability, performance, experience and the requirements
of the position. No discriminatory policies or activities based on
race, religion, gender, marital status and disability will be allowed.
The Group endeavours to provide a good working environment
free from discrimination and harassment by putting the principle of
equality and fairess into practice. We understand the importance
of employees’ opinions in enhancing workplace productivity and
building a united and harmonious professional team. Therefore,
contribution of valuable opinions from employees through verbal
or written channels is encouraged to promote effective
communication within the Group.
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RIE - HERERHRE

The Group offers competitive remuneration and implements a
sound performance appraisal system with appropriate incentives.
Salaries are reviewed and adjusted on a yearly basis. Working hours
are clearly set out in the employment contract. When working
hours are extended, employees will be entitled to overtime pay or
compensation leave upon prior approval of their managers. The
Group offers our employees a yearly bonus based on their
performance appraisals and the market trend. Employees are also
entitled to paid leave for statutory holidays, annual leave, sick leave,
marriage leave, compassionate leave and maternity leave.

To create a harmonious working environment and enhance
employees’ sense of belongings towards the Group, the Group
organises leisure activities to employees from time to time. For
example, the Group has organised annual party and offered
birthday and festive gifts to the employees in Shanghai during the
Year.

To protect employees’ occupational health and safety, the Group is
committed to creating a safe, healthy and comfortable working
environment. The Group complies with relevant laws and
regulations on occupational health and safety, including but not
limited to the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases and Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
of Hong Kong.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group offers its employees medical insurance coverage and
health check plans. Employees are trained to follow the safety rules
and regulations in accordance to employee handbook and
employment contract. Training on utilising available and
appropriate protection measures at all times is also provided to
employees, in order to avoid accidents and protect both
themselves and their coworkers from safety risks. The Group is
obliged to provide necessary personal protective equipment up to
national standard at workplaces such as warehouse. Employees
have to keep the environment clean and tidy to ensure the
nattiness of the workplaces. For employees operating special
equipment like forklift, they are required to obtain a valid license
and pass our specific tests. In addition, fire safety is regarded as an
integral part of our business operation. We have established a
comprehensive fire protection system, clarifying departmental
responsibilities and setting out rules regarding fire safety. Regular
safety checks have been conducted to identify potential safety risks.
During the Year, subsidiaries in Suzhou and Shanghai have
conducted multiple fire drills and safety checks to promote
awareness of health and safety among our employees.

During the Year, the Group did not encounter any major accidents,
employee fatalities or serious work-related injuries during
operation.

The Group believes that expertise and knowledge of our employees
are the keys to its business success. In face of today’s changing
market environment, employees are encouraged to enrich their
knowledge and improve their skills and abilities through high
quality training, so as to continually enhance the Group’s
performance and keep it in the forefront of the competitors.
Therefore, the Group is committed to providing high quality
training for employees.

The Group provides induction training for new employees on the
business operation, vision and mission, core values, business goals
and overview, and the product knowledge. On-the-job training,
covering knowledge of company policies, safety, management and
technical skills, is also provided to improve employees’
performance. Employees are encouraged to enroll in external
training courses with the whole or part of training fees subsidised
by the Group upon the approval from the human resources
department and related department manager.
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Besides training, the Group also conducts regular appraisal of the
employees’ working performance. The results of the appraisal act as
the basis of salary adjustment and promotion. As such, employees
are encouraged to improve their working performance, thereby
ensuring efficient business operation and enhancing the overall
business performance of the Group.

Recruitment of child labour is strictly prohibited within the Group.
Applicant’s identity information is verified during the recruitment
process. The Group enters into employment contract with
employees in accordance with local laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Labour Contract Law of the PRC and
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong, with their job duties and
working hours clearly stated in the contract to avoid any forms of
forced labour. Working overtime is not encouraged within the
Group and employees are entitled to overtime pay or
compensation leave if they are required to work overtime. Also, the
Group strictly abides by the law relating to minimum wage, such as
the Labour Law of the PRC and Minimum Wage Ordinance of Hong
Kong. Monthly salary payments, social insurance and mandatory
provident fund contributions are made on time according to the
employee handbook.

OPERATING PRACTICES

The Group values the partnership with suppliers and strives to
jointly promote sustainable development. The Group has
established a comprehensive supplier management system, which
has set out the accountability of different departments, to assess
the suitability of potential suppliers and evaluate the performances
of existing suppliers. The Group only cooperates with suppliers
holding relevant business or production license to ensure the
quality of our products and services. Assessment of potential
suppliers’ quality management system, production and delivery
conditions, are conducted during the selection of suppliers. Existing
suppliers are annually evaluated on the basis of their technical
standards, quality of services and products, and client satisfaction.
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The Group complies with laws and regulations relating to its
business operation in areas like health and safety and advertising
matters. The laws and regulations included but not limited to the
Advertising Law of the PRC and Product Quality Law of the PRC. The
Group stresses the importance of providing customers with
accurate and true information. All product information, including
descriptions and pictures, strictly comply with national laws and
regulations on online shopping platform. The Group also pays high
attention to the quality and safety of its services. A rigorous quality
inspection system is implemented to assure the quality of products.
Inspection of product labels, appearance and other criteria is
conducted upon product arrival. For returned products, they will be
inspected with stricter standards. The Group has established an
enterprise resource planning system for managing goods record
and delivery. We also strive to provide a sound system of customer
service. Performance of customer service representatives is
reviewed regularly, following the criteria like timeliness of response
and courtesy, to ensure the quality of customer service. When a
complaint is received, it would be assessed immediately. Internal
investigation will be conducted to identify the possible causes of
the issue, so that corresponding remedial actions can be taken.

The Group strictly abides by the Trademark Law of the PRC, Patent
Law of the PRC, Copyright Law of the PRC, and other relevant laws
and regulations during operation. The Group attaches importance
to data protection. It is the Group policy to forbid all personnel from
using personal devices to backup company’s files. Authorisation is
necessary for staff to view client information. Source code backup is
performed from time to time to protect critical information from
losing due to any system crashes and errors.

Due to the Group’s business nature, the protection of intellectual
property rights of customers, suppliers and the Group is an
important task. Protective clauses are included in the contracts
entered into with customers and suppliers to safeqguard the
intellectual property rights and confidentiality of all parties.
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In consistence with employee handbook and employment
contract, employees are not allowed to disclose any information
obtained in connection with their employment, including but not
limited to trade secrets, know-how, client information, supplier
information and other proprietary information, for the benefits of
his/her own and others.

The Group strictly complies with all the national and regional laws
and regulations relating to extortion, fraud and money laundering,
such as the Criminal Law of the PRC and Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance of Hong Kong. To promote integrity and prevent
unethical pursuits, the Group has implemented an effective whistle-
blowing policy for reporting wrongdoings in accordance with
employee handbook. Integrity agreement with external parties has
been signed to avoid any advantage given or received in the
conduct of the Group's business.

During the Year, no violation of laws, regulations, or internal
provisions of the Group relating to anti-corruption had occurred
during operation.

In addition to focusing on its business development, the Group
always strives to build and maintain close relationship with local
community and contribute to local development. Meanwhile, the
Group actively encourages employees to participate in voluntary
activities to benefit local communities and render assistance to the
needy.
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APPENDIX: CONTENT INDEX OF ESG REPORTING GUIDE
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RiE - ERERHRE

ffdx | (BRIR - HERER|EES)

AESEE]
ESG Indicators Description Sections
R -HERERER #Eil E=4:0]
Environmental
RIE
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA1 : HRY

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land, and generation of

hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Environmental Protection

> Emissions

> Emission Reduction and
Resource Conservation

> Environment and Natural
Resources Protection

—RIKE FABERBERBIR  M/KETHMOEE RIFRE
G BEMEEEEVNEESH > B
@ BE: K >  RPBERY ERE K EIR
(b) BTFTHBTAFEAZEOHEBEEZRE > RREERABRRE
BlE & xL
KPIA1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Not applicable to the Group's
data. business
AREZERALI PEmiE R AR A HE PR - TERARRNEEED
KPIA1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, Environmental Protection
where appropriate, intensity. > Emissions
BRENERAL2 RERBELENE (R K(WER)ZE - RIRRE
> BERY
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Environmental Protection
where appropriate, intensity. > Emissions
BREMERAL3 FREXBEEREMER RIBIRE
> HEW
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) Environmental Protection
and, where appropriate, intensity. > Emissions
BRENIEEAL FRTEEREREEYRE (e X(ER)E RERE
g - > BEW
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and  Environmental Protection
results achieved. > Emission Reduction and
Resource Conservation
BRERERALS UK BE E AR 1 S PT1SRCR © RIRRE
> BB RET A E IR
KPIA1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous Environmental Protection
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results > Emissions
achieved.
BREVRIEZEALG HRBEEERBEREMN L  BREEE RIFERE
EHERLPAERR - > B
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B HAREA

ESG Indicators

R - @ RERER

Description

g

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2 : EREA

General Disclosure

—RiE

KPI1 A2.1

BARAMIERA2.1

KPI A2.2

FAREMIEIEA2.2

KP1 A2.3

FARENIEZEA2.3

KPI1A2.4

BRREANIERA24

KP1 A2.5

FARENIEEA25

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.
BRERER(BERR  KEREMEME) K
R e

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity.

RENE SN EE R EEEREREE (AT
EF R RBE -

Water consumption in total and intensity.
BFEKEREE -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.

fe st BE IR R e 5t I R FTIS O R ©

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

it SR EGE R KR SR BERIERE - AR
Rk Han st B R AT R

Total packaging material used for finished products
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per
unit produced.

R mTABEMANEE (R (&
) BEEEMIEE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHA3 : RERKXRER

General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI1 A3.1

B SR AR RIE R A3

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact
on the environment and natural resources.

BIRBEITAHRERRARABEREKNERZED
BUR ©

Description of the significant impacts of activities on
the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them.
HEBEHHRERAAERNEATER
EERREEFHAZENTTH -
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Sections
=4

Environmental Protection
> Use of Resources

BERE
i

Environmental Protection

> Use of Resources

RIBIRE

> BREA

Environmental Protection

> Use of Resources

IR IRE

> BREA

Environmental Protection

> Emission Reduction and
Resource Conservation

IRIRRE

> R RER K EIR

Environmental Protection

> Emission Reduction and
Resource Conservation

RIFRE

> BB RETE IR

Not applicable to the Group's

business

NERNAEREERS

Environmental Protection

> Environment and Natural
Resources Protection

IRIFIRE

> RIBERAARERRE

Environmental Protection

> Environment and Natural
Resources Protection

R IRE

> RIBERAABRRE



ESG Indicators

RIE HERERER
Social

HE

Description

g

Employment and Labour Practices

BRERZETIESR

Aspect B1: Employment

EmB1 : EfE

General Disclosure

—RiKE

KPI B1.1

BRANMEEB1

KPIB1.2

BRENIESREB.2

Information on:
(@)  the policies; and

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

BRAZM N R BERER

- TR &

B FERE 2l RBBUAEREMETES

KABFIHY -

@ Bx: &

(b) BTFTHBETABEAXTEZ
k=g ea

FY AR AR S AR

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age

group and geographical region.

RIER - BERE - FikdR RS0 mE

BHEE -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and

geographical region.

RIER - FEAR SRS D HEBRARLLE o
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Sections
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Employment and Labour Practices
> Employment

BRESETIER
> BfE

Not disclosed

RIFE

Not disclosed
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ESG Indicators Description
RE HERERER M
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: #EHEZE

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment

and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.

—RIRE ERARMZ2TERERREREERRBEN
EEH
@ XK
(b) BETFTHBITAFBERTENREMERZKLA

BIE & Y o

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

B ENIEREB2.1 B TYERR ML TR A B LK -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.

EREMIEEB2.2 EITEBEAXITIERS -

KPI1 B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

BRENIEEB2.3 L PTER A R EFRB e 258 - LA KRB

HITRER A

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EHEB3 : &EREI

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description of
training activities.

—REE BRARTHE BB 1T TR B 6V A58 M A BE U I
5 o HRIEE o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category.

BARANIEREB3 RIERIREERMNESNZIEE B DL

KPIB3.2 The average training hours completed per employee
by gender and employee category.

BRENIEEB3.2 IR NEEERMNE D - FHEETKEIIN

FHRE
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Sections
=4

Employment and Labour Practices
> Health and Safety

BENSETIER
> @BESRZE

Employment and Labour Practices
> Health and Safety
BIENSIER

> RBESRZE

Employment and Labour Practices
> Health and Safety
BIRENSIER

> REEZE

Employment and Labour Practices
> Health and Safety

EBREETIER
> @EFERZE

Employment and Labour Practices
> Development and Training

BIENETER
> BRI

Not disclosed

R FR

Not disclosed
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R - @ RERER

Description

g

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

BT B4 : & T %4

General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI B4.1

BRENIERE B4

KPI B4.2

AR ENMIEEB4.2

Operating Practices

EEE

Information on:
(@) the policies; and

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRARTIEE T RoaHI& TR :

@ BK: &k

(b)) BTFEHBITABEATE
Bl B K} o

Description of measures to review employment

EHRRRA R S AR

practices to avoid child and forced labour.
A 5 HE RSB DIl ) 15 A LA o B T % 98 ) 45

Io

Description of steps taken to eliminate such labour

practices when discovered.

AR IRE T RRHS TSR ERAREE

SUPTEREREY

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[ETBS . HEEETE

General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI B5.1
AR E IS EBS.1
KPI B5.2

BARANMIEEB5.2

Policies on managing environmental and social risks

of the supply chain.

EIEHERHIRE A S RBRBUR

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

it E D B EAE -

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices

are being implemented and how they are

implemented and monitored.

A EEERHERNED  MERNTERE
PIMHEREE - U RBBENNHITRESR

FvE o
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Sections
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Employment and Labour Practices
> Labour Standards

BIELSETER

= BT

Employment and Labour Practices
> Labour Standards

EBIEKREITER

> ST

Not disclosed

Operating Practices

> Supply Chain Management
LEED

>  {HEEER

Not disclosed

AIKER

Operating Practices

> Supply Chain Management
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RE - -#HERER

ESG Indicators

R - @ RERER

Description

g

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

BTB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

—RIRE

KPI B6.1

AR ENIEEB6.1

KP1 B6.2

B A M ISR B6.2

KPI1 B6.3

AR ENIEIZEB6.3

KPI1 B6.4

BAREMIEEB6.4

KPI B6.5

BAREMIEEB6.5

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling

and privacy matters relating to products and services

provided and methods of redress.

BRAMRHERMBRENREERZS BE

FEELEBEE AR AR

@ BE: K

b) BTFHETABEAZENHRBEZLR
I E RS o

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject

to recalls for safety and health reasons.

E%iaﬁﬁém%%¢lﬁ B 3 57 3 /A M

ABEI B Dt

Number of products and service related complaints

received and how they are dealt with.

EIERA T E dn MRFS VIR BB A R BEITTX -

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

o i RARE A EE B RARED -

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
i 2 B B A RE MR AR S E dm B AR e
Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies and how they are implemented and
monitored.

i E B & ERRE RALB B - A RE@ER
TT&mﬂ./ijj_/f
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Sections

]

Operating Practices
> Product Responsibility

Not applicable to the Group's
business

NERR AR E X

Operating Practices

> Product Responsibility
=EED

> Emaft

Operating Practices

> Data and Privacy Protection
2EIED

> BREALEBRE
Operating Practices

> Product Responsibility
2EED

> EmAF

Operating Practices

> Data and Privacy Protection

ZEED

> AR EILBRE
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ESG Indicators Description Sections
RE HERERERZR M -]

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : RES
General Disclosure Information on: Operating Practices
(@) the policies; and > Anti-corruption
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.
—REE BEREMILRRE - 9R  BEFOARERN ¢ = EED
@ BXK: K > KEF
(o) ETHETABEAZENHEBERELR
I B R o
KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Operating Practices

practices brought against the issuer or its employees > Anti-corruption
during the reporting period and the outcomes of

the cases.
AR A NIEEBT.1 RERPAHETAIEEBRBI S ELN SEED
B RARGEE RFAER - > RE[
KPI1 B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- Operating Practices

blowing procedures, how they are implemented >  Anti-corruption
and monitored.

AR AA NI B7.2 e Em R B WER - AREERITRE ZEED
|IE ° > REF

Community

HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EHEBS : HEIRE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand Operating Practices

the needs of the communities where the issuer > Community Investment
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

—RIKE BRAUES2ERTHREEMEHRFZNE SEBH
REEBEBGEEAMIE N &=BIBUR > fEERE

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Not disclosed

BRENIEEBS. BXEREE - AN ER

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus areas. Not disclosed

BRRENIEEBS.2 EEIHBMBAEIR - NP ER

2019 FFR



PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in providing (i) software sales and
020 consultation services; (i) electronic payment solutions and
services and (iii) management, operation and market strategy of
online shops and e-commerce platforms.

The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 91 to 93.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 4.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the

Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has investment properties
located in Yinglian International Epibolic Centre, No. 288 Dongping
Street, Suzhou Industrial District, Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province, the
PRC. The investment properties are held for commercial use and on
medium term lease. Details of the investment properties are set out
in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE ISSUED DURING THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued during the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 96.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the
Company’s articles of association, in addition to the retained profits of
the Company, the ordinary share premium account of the Company
is also available for distribution to shareholders provided that the
Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business immediately following the date on which any such
distribution is proposed to be paid. Accordingly, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December
2019 amounted to RMB44,418,000 (2018: RMB116,393,000).

Directors’ Report
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Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and as at the date of
this report are shown below. Their biographies are set out on pages
1910 23.

Mr. Yang Xin Min, Chairman
(re-designated as non-executive Director on 16 December 2019)

Mr. Yang Zhen
(resigned on 16 December 2019)
Mr. Ho Chi Kin, Chief Executive Officer
(appointed on 16 December 2019)

Dr. Cheng Faat Ting Gary

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael

Mr. Peng Bobo

Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung
(appointed on 16 December 2019)

Mr. Tang Yat Ming Edward
(appointed on 16 December 2019)

Each of the above Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of one to five years. Each service contract
will continue thereafter unless terminated by either party thereto
giving to the other at least one to three months’ notice in writing.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director a written annual confirmation letter of his independence
pursuant to paragraph 12B of Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules and
considers each of the INEDs is independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO") which (a) were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which the Director is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
were required, pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:
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Approximate

Number and Percentage of

Name of Director Capacity Class of Shares Total Share Capital

KRG EE HRABEBY

EEnE &4 &Vl BOL

Yang Xin Min Beneficial owner 592,573,880 10.51%
i Eiilae EnfBA ordinary shares
B
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, so far as was known to the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company, the following persons had an
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares in
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who were, directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of the Company or any other member of the
Group.
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Approximate
Number and Percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity Class of Shares Total Share Capital
RHEE R A EER AN
IR 14 &Vl BoL
Yang Xin Min Beneficial owner 592,573,880 10.51%
BIR ExEAA ordinary shares
B
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS EENBBXEKRES

None of the Directors had any interest, either direct or indirect, in
any business, which may compete or constitute a competition with
the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
GROUP’S BUSINESS

Details of the connected transactions and related party transactions
are disclosed in this report and in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

Save for the above, no other transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company or any its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company or his connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
or its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year.
The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance
cover in respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.
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SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED PURSUANT TO THE
SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolution by the shareholders of the
Company on 24 September 2002, the Share Option Scheme (the
"0Old Scheme”) was approved and adopted. The Old Scheme was
terminated by a resolution passed by the shareholders in the
Company's annual general meeting held on 27 May 2011. No
further options can be granted under the Old Scheme but in all
other respects the provisions of the Old Scheme shall remain in full
force and effect.

On 27 May 2011, the shareholders passed a resolution in the annual
general meeting to approve and adopt a new Share Option
Scheme (the “New Scheme”) and the Board may, at its discretion,
grant options ("Options”) to eligible participants as defined in (ii)
below.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the New Scheme shall be 230,936,210 shares,
representing approximately 4.1% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

The purpose of the New Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant Options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries. Through the New Scheme, the Company can
motivate and reward the Eligible Participants who have
contributed to the Company by enhancing its performance,
improving its management and operation, and providing it
with good advice and ideas.

The eligible participants of the New Scheme to whom
Option(s) may be granted by the Board shall include any
employees, Non-Executive Directors, Directors, advisors,
consultants, and any shareholders of any members of the
Group or any invested entities or any holders of any securities
issued by any members of the Group or any invested entities.

72 Smartac Group China Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report

REERET SR EBRE

BRERATRER-_ZE_FHNA -+
AZEMAER  BRETE([E58)
EEMEREMN - E_FT——FHA
ZHERABIZARABRRAFAE L
RRBB—IBRBRARIEERE - &8
A ERBES SR HERE - HETE
IR EM T ESEE AR KL
BEBWA -

R-ZB——FRA-++H BREEKRR
BFERE BB —IBRER - UHEREK
M—IEFTIE AR RERT 2 ([FhETE)) - &t
EEgARNERaER2EE(ERRT
3 (i) B T g ([ AR RE) -

BRI T8I e 3R 2 BB AT K I
A 523093621008 HHE R AR AR
AFEFRBHCBITRAL41% o

HMatBlc BNABEARBARAEE
RBEERBBEE FRE%
REREHARRR R, H A
BRARMELER - ARRIBBHE
2| AIAE L SRR IR AN R AR
NMEHEEEEW R AR RZ
EmMBRZEER2EE -

AEEEERTRREZHTEE
ERSEZEGREAKEETMAKER
A MREBEREZEES - FFH
TEE EF  EHRA BRERER
PRk ANEE MRS QR A
WIREBERMBITEMNZEHZ M
FAA e



The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all Options which may be granted under the
New Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (“Scheme Mandate Limit") shall not
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at
the date on which the New Scheme will be approved
and adopted by the shareholders, unless the Company
obtains a refresh approval from the shareholders
pursuant to paragraph (b) below. Options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the New Scheme shall not
be counted for the purpose of calculating whether the
Scheme Mandate Limit has been exceeded.

The Company may seek approval of the shareholders in
general meetings to renew the Scheme Mandate Limit
provided that the Scheme Mandate Limit so renewed
must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of the approval of the renewal by the shareholders.
Upon any such renewal, all Options granted under the
New Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed in accordance with the New Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company and
exercised options) prior to the approval of such renewal
shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating
whether the renewed Scheme Mandate Limit has been
exceeded. In seeking the approval, the Company shall
send a circular to the shareholders.

The Company may grant Options to the eligible
participant(s) beyond the Scheme Mandate Limit if the
grant of such Options is specifically approved by the
shareholders in general meeting. In seeking such
approval, a circular must be sent to the shareholders
containing a generic description of the identified
eligible participant(s), the number and terms of the
Options to be granted, the purpose of granting Options
to the identified eligible participant(s), and how the
terms of these Options serve such purpose.
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Notwithstanding the above, the maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding Options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New Scheme and
options which may be granted under any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time.

74

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the Options granted under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding Options) to each eligible participant in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the then total
issued share capital of the Company (the “Individual
Limit").

Any further grant of Options to an eligible participant in
excess of the Individual Limit (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding Options) in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further
grant must be subject to the shareholders” approval in
general meeting of the Company with such eligible
participant and his associates abstaining from voting. A
circular must be sent to the shareholders disclosing the
identity of the identified eligible participant(s), the
number and terms of the Options granted and to be
granted, the number and terms of Options to be
granted to such identified eligible participant(s) must be
fixed before the shareholders’ approval and the date of
meeting of the Board for proposing such further grant
should be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of
calculating the exercise price.

Smartac Group China Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report

BELXEBEMAE  FBEREHAEE
BRBEARTTE 2 BAE MRIEA R FIE
{a B A 8 AR At 81 AT BE IR th 2 RE R JE 7 T
B8 - A FETZBRMHEE LRTFES
TS B BT BB 30% °

EEAR2EARBAERAE
R BERBEFTENARRT]
EE b BRERT S ER 2B
Bt (BRREDITEE - DaEiH R A
RITEZ B BATER - 2
BT MG T BRIT 2RO BB
BEAARAEFEHITRA
#EEz 1% ([MERI LR ) -

FRARERSAZELE IR
BhRESEYEHERRLE
BB (BHEZE) LEA2
&8 A B A — R
R L ER LR (BRETT
£ B MEARTTEZBK
) BEKRRNARFBE
RetitE(ZEERSEER
HBMBALARE EHER
R) e RARARBRRTE 1D
B BERRECHESER
2EEZ5N  ERANMET
RHBEREZ 8B MR &%
FEMERERSAERRE
Ptz BB RIGKAR KRR
MEREE - MatEITEER
REE-FIRLBREZES
eeRAHREEAREBEEH -



An offer of grant of an Option may be accepted by an eligible
participant within 28 days from the date of the offer of grant
of the Option. A consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on
acceptance of the offer of grant of an Option. To the extent
that the offer of grant of an Option is not accepted within
twenty-eight (28) days from the date on which the offer for
the grant of Options is made in the manner indicated herein,
it will be deemed to have been irrevocably declined and
lapsed automatically.

An Option shall be exercisable in whole or in part and in
accordance with the terms of the New Scheme at any time
during a period to be determined and notified by the
Directors to each Grantee, which period may commence on
the day on which the offer for the grant of Options is made
but shall end in any event not later than 10 years
commencing from the date the Board makes an offer of the
grant of an Option subject to the provisions for early
termination thereof. The Directors have the discretion to
impose a minimum period for which an Option has to be held
before the exercise of the subscription rights attaching
thereto on case by case basis.

Subject to the adjustment made in accordance with the
terms of the New Scheme, the exercise price in respect of any
particular Option shall be such price as determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion at the time of making the offer
of grant of an option (which shall be stated in the letter
containing the offer of grant of an option) but in any case the
exercise price must be at least the highest of (i) the closing
price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which must
be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
5 business days immediately preceding the date of the offer
of grant; and (jii) the nominal value of the shares.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no Options
have been granted by the Company under the Old Scheme
and the New Scheme.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 3 July 2019, Solomedia (Yixing) Limited * (85 TG RH: (F #)
ABR/A7]), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as the purchaser, entered into a transfer agreement with Yixing Zen
Tea Yiwei Culture Communication Company Limited* ( B 5 1& %
—IREFEE B R A F]) as the vendor, for the transfer of certain
registered trademarks and the WeChat official account of the

vendor.

Since the sole shareholder and director of the vendor is the director
of the purchaser, accordingly, the vendor is a connected person of
the Company at the subsidiary level and the entering into of the
transfer agreement and the transaction contemplated thereunder
constitutes a connected transaction on the part of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, as all the
applicable percentage ratios under the transfer agreement are less
than 0.1%, this transaction is a de minimis transaction which is fully
exempted from the disclosure requirement pursuant to Rule 14A.76
of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered into
transactions with related parties as set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements. Apart from the items disclosed in
the section “Connected Transactions”, all other material related
party transactions did not constitute non-exempt connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate

governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 26 to 41.

* Foridentification purposes only
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the aggregate revenue
attributable to the largest customer and the five largest customers
of the Group accounted for approximately 7.0% and 27.7% of the
Group's total revenue for the year respectively; and the aggregate
purchases from the largest and the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for approximately 12.8% and 49.3% of the
Group's total purchases for the year, respectively.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors of the
Company, their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules), and the existing shareholders of the Company who own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any
interests in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers at any
time during the year.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Details of responsibilities of Directors for the consolidated financial
statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
page 87. The Directors are responsible for the proper keeping of
accounting record in order to secure assets of the Company and
the Group.

The Directors are also responsible for adopting reasonable
measures to prevent and check any fraudulences and irregularities.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 8 to 18 of this annual report which forms part of
this report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks,
including some which are specific to the Group or the industries in
which the Group operates as well as others that are common to
most businesses. The Group's major risks are summarised below.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks
including foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management procedures covers
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.
Details about the Group’s financial risk management are set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group may face the risk of not being able to attract and retain
key personnel and talents with appropriate and required skills,
experience and competence which would meet the business
objectives of the Group. The Group will provide attractive
remuneration package to suitable candidates and personnel,
propose incentives to retain talents and optimise internal training
and promotion mechanism.

The industry development of the segments engaged by the Group
changes rapidly. If the Group fails to promptly react to the change
in technologies to satisfy customers’ demands, it might result in an
adverse impact on the financial status and operating results of the
Group. The Group, therefore, strives to response swiftly to the
market to provide more comprehensive product solutions and
services to customers.
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Most assets of the Group were located in the PRC and
approximately 78% of the income was from the business in the PRC
in 2019. Therefore, the operating results, financial status and
prospects of the Group are influenced by the changes in economy,
politics and government policies in the PRC. Hence, the Company
will reinforce the communications with business partners, enhance
the innovation on technology, strengthen the aftersales
maintenance market, consolidate and ensure stable and healthy
development of the PRC market.

The Group is dependent on information technology systems and
networks. Any material disruption or slowdown of the information
technology systems could cause loss of the intellectual property
rights of customers, suppliers and the Group. Therefore, the Group
established internal policy on source code management, data
security, regular system checks and data backup to safeguard data
security and integrity.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group committed to implement various ways to encourage in
compliance with environmental legislation and promote awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. It implements
green office practices such as setting default double-sided printing,
promoting to reuse single-side printed papers, encouraging staff to
maintain electronic records in order to reduce paper consumption,
reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lightings and
electrical appliances and setting optimal temperature on the air
conditioning. The Group will continuously review its environmental
practices and consider implementing further measures in its
operation.

For details, please refer to the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 42 to 65 of this annual
report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group's business is mainly operated by its subsidiaries in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The
Group accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations
in the operating regions. During the year ended 31 December 2019
and up to the date of this annual report, as far as the Company is
aware, there was no material breach or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group. The Group
will seek for professional legal opinions from legal advisors when
necessary to ensure that the Group’s transactions and business are
in conformity with all applicable laws and regulations.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that employees are the valuable assets and
regards the personal development of its employees as highly
important. The Group wants to continue to be an attractive
employer for committed employees. During the year ended 31
December 2019, there was no dispute on salary payments and all
accrued remunerations, in all kinds, were settled on or before their
respective due dates, as stipulated under individual employee’s
employment contract. The Group also ensures that all the
employees are reasonably remunerated by regular review and the
policies on salary increment, promotion, bonus, allowances and all
other related benefits are updated from time to time. Being people-
oriented, the Group is committed to provide a safe and healthy
workplace for its employees and encourage them to have a work-
life balance. For details of employment and labour practices, please
refer to the section headed "Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on pages 53 to 56 of this annual report.

The Group appreciates the importance of maintaining good
relationship with customers and suppliers to meet its immediate
and long-term business goals. The Group values the feedback from
customers through regular communication to provide customers
with enhanced services and address their concerns in a timely
manner. For suppliers, the Group assures their performance for the
quality of delivered products.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, there is no circumstance
of any event between the Group and its employees, customers and
suppliers which will have a significant impact on the Group's
business and on which the Group’s success depends.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules during the
year.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 5 March 2020, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with the other
shareholder of an indirect owned subsidiary to acquire entire 30%
equity interest in that subsidiary engaging in provision of mobile
payment service, for a cash consideration of HK$8,100,000
(equivalent to RMB7,262,000). The acquisition was completed on 6
March 2020.

On 5 March 2020, the Board proposed to change the English name
of the Company to “Smartac International Holdings Limited” and
adopt a dual foreign name in Chinese of “ERERE GEIEIL AR A F)"
(the “Proposed Change of Company Name’). The Proposed
Change of Company Name is subject to conditions being satisfied
of (i) passing of a special resolution by the shareholders of the
Company at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company to
approve the Proposed Change of Company Name; and (ii) approval
by the Registrar of Companies in the Cayman Islands.
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After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series of precautionary
and control measures have been and continued to be
implemented across the globe. The Group is paying close attention
to the development of, and the disruption to business and
economic activities caused by, the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate
its impact on the financial position, cash flows and operating results
of the Group. Given the dynamic nature of the COVID-19 outbreak,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of its impact
on the Group's financial position, cash flows and operating results
at the date on which these financial statements are authorised for
issue.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statement has been audited by RSM
Hong Kong who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of RSM Hong
Kong will be put at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

Yang Xin Min
Chairman

27 March 2020
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SMARTAC GROUP CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

T +852 2598 5123
F +852 2598 7230

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Smartac
Group China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) set out on pages 91 to 252, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the "IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

RSM Hong Kong

www.rsmhk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B RS

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matter we identified is:

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets of LCE

Group Limited and its subsidiaries under E-commerce solutions
segment.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
AREREE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
assets of LCE Group Limited and its subsidiaries (the
“LCE Group”) under E-commerce solutions segment

ETEKBRIERD I T ZLCE Group Limited R & -

MEAR((LCERE ) MEE R ELEERENG

Refer to notes 5(ii)(c), 5(ii)(d), 24(a) and 25 to the
consolidated financial statements

ZLIR AR A B RS TR AR BT EE 5Gi) () ~ 5()(d) ~ 24(a) .25

The Group recorded goodwill and intangible assets arising

from the acquisition of 51% equity interest in LCE Group -

Limited in 2017. The carrying amounts of goodwill and
intangible assets amounted to RMB11,451,000 and
RMB26,962,000 respectively as at 31 December 2019
(before impairment loss for the year), attributable to cash-
generating unit ("CGU") of E-commerce solutions

segment. Goodwill is required to be tested for impairment -

on an annual basis. The LCE Group recorded operating
loss of RMB11,688,000 (before tax and impairment loss) for
the year ended 31 December 2019 under E-commerce
solutions segment. This indicated that the carrying
amounts of goodwill and intangible assets attributable to

the CGU of E-commerce solutions segment might be -

impaired.

EEEHFEAR T —tFUEE LCE Group Limited 2
SIeREMEACHAENBLEE N_E—NF
TZA=1+—HB REEFRAKHERITESBRE
EFBEM((REEXEN) cHERENEEZR

HE(RETFEREEER) DR A AR 11,451,000 -

TR AR ®269620007T c BB AGFHEITHER
R BE_TE-NFT+_A=t+—BILEE TF
SRR RD BT Z ICEEESEELEEBARK
11,688,000 7t (RE+F EREEERT) - LB TIREE
TRKBARARDHACELEBN AERERE
EZRABEMNERZE/ME -
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REELEEA)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNERNMEERRERSR

Our procedures in relation to this matter include:

BBt EERTZRFERE

Evaluating the independence, competence,
capabilities and objectivity of external valuer;
FHEINEBEEM B S - BE - e hHE
B

Assessing the integrity of the value in use model;

AHAEEREEEN 2 BT

Challenging the reasonableness of management'’s
key assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and the industry;

BRERMEBERBELRITRZAM  HEEE

ZIZEREEABIRHERR

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence,
such as approved budgets and considering the
historical accuracy of those budgets;

R A\ SR B SRR E (DI B TER ) 1T
Y WERZEFREBE ERT

Assessing the appropriateness of the discount rates
used with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists; and

ERNBEEZERBET - AHEFAERARERER

BRE Kk

Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in
relation to the impairment assessment.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FRREEREE(E)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
ARELRER BMNELRNMEERARERSR

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
assets of LCE Group Limited and its subsidiaries (the
“LCE Group”) under E-commerce solutions segment
(Continued)

E 7R IR T R 5 EBLCE Group Limited & H i B
(TLCEERE ) R ANBEERELEERE L ()

Impairment losses of RMB11,451,000 and RMB26,962,000
were recorded against goodwill and intangible assets
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
reduce the carrying amount of the CGU the assets belong
to its recoverable amount.
BHEZT-NF+ZA=+—"HLFE BAEKE
EED MBS REEBEBARK 11451000 TRAR
26,962,000 L) - BEER S EA BN 2 REER
ZHAWEEHE -

The recoverable amount was determined on the basis of
value in use model that required significant management
judgement in making assumptions about budgeted
revenues, profit margins, growth rates and in selecting
appropriate market discount rates.
AREEEDNREFERAEEEAET  BRKAS
ZEREMNMELABRERA  FBEX BRXZ
RAR M ki i 2 T 5 A 3R RS VR B K Il -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and,
in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ms. Chu Man Wah, Sharon.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEE =T —hNF+-_A=+—HBILFE

2019 2018
—B-AE —ZT)N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

ftat ARBTRT AREBTT

Revenue WA 8 25,797 17,356
Cost of sales SHE AR (9,656) (2,400)
Fair value gain/(loss) of KEWMERAE

investment properties Wz, (E518) 20 1,200 (800)
Other income H A KA 9 9,044 6,979
Hardware, telecom and direct B BAREE

operation costs SN (3,592) (2483)
Fair value gain of contingent FERTS AN 2

shares payable DA EWER 36 - 21,359
Employee benefits expenses BTEMNER 14 (23,748) (22,165)
Reversal of/(impairment loss) on =Rl A&tz eI

other receivables (BEEE) 190 (11,644)
Reversal of allowance for JE W BR SR s H [

trade receivables 150 1,734
(Allowance for)/reversal of H bk (B ),

allowance for other receivables B 1o (4) 681
Other operating expenses Hihic L&A (12,109) (14,715)
Depreciation e (3,042) (1,819
Amortisation of intangible assets A EH 25 (6,783) (6,705)
Impairment loss on intangible assets & 72 & 2 i (B 5 18 24(a) (26,962) -
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 24 (11,451) (48,432)
Provision for capital gain tax BRI ETR R 32(c) - (566)
Loss from operations REEE (60,966) (63,626)
Finance costs EUR AN 11 (597) (533)
Share of result of an associate FEAE — A& R R SEAE 27 1,063 (176)
Loss before tax BRELATE 1B (60,500) (64,335)
Income tax credit Frisiiife 12 8,100 1,921
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEBRmEAtMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EE =T —hNF+-A=+—HBILFE

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
for the year:

Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:

Fair value change of equity
investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI")

Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

FEBR
REEHMEERES :

TEEH D RERR L

AH :

BonfErAREERE
[ D RERT AR
éﬁ%ﬁbZkK&é

]J]

\H

BESRINRGEEZ
b S 2= R
FEEHMEE WS (HE)

REERHKSEAHE
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Note

fftat

13

2019
—g-nE
RMB’000
AR#F 7T

(52,400)

3,756

3,756

(48,644)

2018
—T)N\F

RMB'000
AREETF T

(62,414)

830

(1,653)

(823)

(63,237)



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBmEE MR ERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
“B-RAEF —ZEN\F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

ftat ARBTRT AREBTT

Loss for the year attributable to: LU T A T (G A EEEE :

Owners of the Company NAFIILE (37,926) (56,688)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (14,474) (5,726)
(52,400) (62,414)

Total comprehensive income MTFATEEEREE

for the year attributable to: ZHEHKREHE
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSI) S (34,129) (57,784)
Non-controlling interests eI (14,515) (5453)
(48,644) (63,237)
LOSS PER SHARE BREE
Basic (RMB cents) EXR(ARED) 18(a) (0.67) (1.17)
Diluted (RMB cents) e (ARED) 18(b) (0.67) (1.17)

019FFH PEHEHEEZRAERAT 923



At 31 December 2019 R =E—NE+=-A=+—H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties
Right-of-use assets
Construction in progress

Prepaid land lease payments

Goodwill

Intangible assets
Investment in an associate
Financial assets at FVTOCI

Current assets

Prepaid land lease payments

Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Due from related parties

Due from non-controlling interest

Current tax assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities
Contingent shares payable
Due to directors

Due to related parties
Bank loans

Current tax liabilities

FREBEE
e
wEYIE
CREEE
fEETHR

T A EEMAR
GES

B EE
R—REEE R RIRE
BRAREFARMER
Wz emEE

RBEE
T E B

FE

I W B SR K L At FE AR
& W R RS 05 R IR

FE USRI B R 2 5K IR
EHHAEE

B MRS EEDY

RBEE

JE A RR R e EL A FE A 35K
BMARE

HERE
eSS R B D

JENE SR

FE < BRRS 7 5K IR
RITER
EMTRARE
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Note

fftat

19
20
21
22
23
24
25
27

28

23
29
30
45(c)
33

32

35
36
33
45(c)
34

2019
—g-nE
RMB’000
AR#F 7T

7,077
57,000
4,096
320

459
3,934

72,886

3,310
19,524
200

139
226,374

249,547

22,971
107
1,330

896
5,949
9,000

119

40,372

2018
—T)N\F

RMB'000
AREETF T

7,060
55,800

2,006
11,451
33,461

2,871

112,649

56
1,847
10,193
86

33

252,459

264,674

23,356
242

33
5,964
9,000

598

39,193



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR R

At31 December 2019 R=ZE—NE+=-A=+—H

2019 2018
—B-AE —ZT)N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

ftat ARBTRT AREBTT

Net current assets REEEEE 209,175 225,481
Total assets less current liabilities EEERABERE 282,061 338,130
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 35 675 -
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEER 37 12,970 21,070
13,645 21,070
NET ASSETS REE 268,416 317,060
Capital and reserves EXKf#E
Share capital N 38 252,439 252,439
Reserves B 40(a) (10,850) 23,279
Fquity attributable to owners of RAGIRER B R
the Company 241,589 275,718
Non-controlling interests ("NCI") eI RS ([ FE IR AR ) 26,827 41,342
TOTAL EQUITY WS 268,416 317,060

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2020 and are #HzeW T -FTHF-A _++HIER

signed on its behalf by: HRIATRESZREZ
Yang Xin Min Ho Chi Kin
BEHR AR ER
Director Director
= =

2019 FFR



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

IIV_\/E\I*EE%@%%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEF+=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARRER
Foreign Financial
Share currency assets at
Share  premium  Statutory translation Capital Other FVTOCI  Accumulated
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total NCI Total
BALE
FARH2E
ik
& BOBER  iERE  ENRE  AARE  MBE  EERE  ZHEE B FERER @it
RMBO000 RMBO000 RMBO000 RMBO00 RMBO00 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000
ARETT ARBTR AREFT ARBTT ARETn ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(note38)  (note40B)(I)  (note40b)(i)  (note40)(i)  (note40b)(iv))  (note40(b)))  (note 40(b)i)
(Wit3s) (Wiaonn) (Wtaoom) (i aonim) (o) (HEoom) HEaem)
At January 2018 R-E-\E-F-H 214067 1,075,224 172 (99727) (9619 (8385) - (1,0689%1) 10277 47709 150,480
Reclassify non-trading equity FEERKLERAMRLE
investment from SHAEENIRE
available-forsale to BAEARRE
financialassets at FYTOCI Yz oBEE - - - - - - 2108 2108 - - -
Additional impaiment losses o~ FEYER 2t R A BN 2
trade and other receivables BNAEEER - - - - - - - (1,609) (1,609) (914) 2503)
Adjustments on nitial SENERERYBRE
— appliation ofIFRS 9 ElZoso0E - - - - - - 2108 499 (1609 914 252
Restated balance at R=F-N§-F-HZ
1 January 2018 TEf| 8 14067 1075204 17 (99727) (9619) (8389) (2,108 (1068462 101,162 46,795 147957
Total comprehensiceincome ~ AFE2ENELE
for the year - - - (1544) - - 448 (56,688) (57,784) (5453) (63237)
Issue of new shares upon RELRERERL
consideration shares granted R (132 380)
(note 38(a)) 2554 2860 - - - - - - 5414 - 5414
Issue of new shares upon REEEZTIRA
placement (note 38(t)) (Hit38) 35818 191,108 - - - - - - 206926 - 206926
Realsation of reserve upon REERDABALL
disposalof a financial assets PG, CHEER
atAmod ERGR - - - - - - (340 30 - - -
Changesinequityfortheyear ~ REEREEH 38372 193968 - (1,544) - - 108 (36348) 174556 (5453) 169103
At31 December 2018 and RZZ-N\%
1 January 2019 TZA=t-BR
“3-NE-A-A /2439 1269192 mo(027) @619 (838) (20000 (11248100 2578 4382 317060
Total comprehensive income TEERANGES
forthe year - - - 3,797 - - - (37,926) (34,129) (14515) (48,644)
Changesinequityfortheyear ~ REEREEH - - - 3,797 - - - (37,02) (34129 (14515  (48,644)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-nE
TZB=1-H 252439 1269192 172 (97,474) (9,619) (8,385) (2,000) (1,162,736 241,589 26,827 268,416

926
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEE =T —hNF+-_A=+—HBILFE

2019 2018
—B-AE —ZT)N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

ftat ARBTRT AREBTT

CASH FLOWS FROM RETHELECEHESRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax BRI AT E 1R (60,500) (64,335)
Adjustments for: REHEE -

Depreciation of property, M - B MERERE

plant and equipment 1,448 1,819
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (£ FEEEIIRE 1,594 -
Amortisation of prepaid land T E TR FREE

lease payments = 56
Amortisation of intangible assets WA EE Y 6,783 6,705
Interest income FLEA (2,714) (223)
Finance costs BT K AR 597 533
Allowance for inventories FERE 1,718 -
Reversal of allowance for JiE Y BR R B i (O]

trade receivables (150) (1,734)
Allowance for/(reversal of H At U R B,

allowance for) other receivables (BERE) 4 (681)
Impairment loss on goodwiill EEREEE 11,451 48,432
Impairment loss on B EEREBE

intangible assets 26,962 -
(Reversal of)/impairment loss on Hith fE U FX (@)

other receivables RIEEE (190) 11,644
Write-off of construction T3 T2 HEE

in progress = 12
Change in fair value of REMEZ AR EE

investment properties (1,200) 800
Change in fair value of JERN S AR 2

contingent shares payable AN = (21,359)
Share of result of an associate FE(R—EBE AR %EE (1,063) 176
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE K

plant and equipment Bl (5) (80)
Gain on disposal of construction HEFZIREKR

in progress = 3)
Provision for capital gain tax BRI ET R - 566

2019 FFR



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—EBE-hEFE T N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Kiet AR®T T ARBFIT
Operating loss before working LEESEER L EIE
capital changes (15,265) (17,672)
Increase in inventories FEEM (3,196) (28)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and JFE Ui B 38 K2 EL A JlE U Tk
other receivables (h) Fb (8,995) 27,543
Decrease/(increase) in due from UL SE1E IR M 2 IR
non-controlling interest B, () 33 (13)
(Increase)/decrease in due from JE Y A Bk 5 SRR
related parties (3gm wE (114) 658
Decrease in trade and AT BR I N B R R
other payables D (385) (2,670)
(Decrease)/increase in aHaECEL), %
contract liabilities (135) 242
Increase/(decrease) in due to FENESE A
directors =0 Crid) 863 (63)
(Decrease)/increase in due to FESREES 5 5 IR
related parties CRA) /18 (121) 277
Cash (used in)/generated from KR E (FER) EE 2
operations Be (27,315) 8,274
Income taxes paid BT FTSR (623) (3,980)
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEMNE (119) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from 42 58 (FEH) E4 2
operating activities FIRE (28,057) 4294
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEFE —ZT)\F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
iirzg AR® TR ARETTT

CASH FLOWS FROM RETBHELEZHRERE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in pledged bank deposits 2 i ER1TF OB 2 - 19
Receipt of financial assets at WHR AR BT AEBR

fair value through profit or loss (BAREFAEBR]) 2

("FVTPL") TREE - 3,468
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL  BBEZ AR BT AEBZZ

TREE - (2,300)

Purchases of property, BEVE  BWEL&E

plant and equipment (1,465) (114)
Proceeds from disposal of HEEZRIEMESIE

construction in progress - 4
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - E & EH

plant and equipment FriSskI8 8 119
Proceeds from disposal of HERARBEFAEMEE

financial assets at FVTOCI Wtz &Rl E EPTS IR - 2,630
Payment for construction STEZEIERIE

in progress (320) -
Purchase of intangible assets BEEREEE (743) -
Bank interests received EHERTTHILE 2,714 55
Net cash generated from KRERHEEZFRE

investing activities 194 3,881

019FFH PEHEHEEZRAERAT 29



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MEBRERER
For the year ended 31 December 2019 EE =T —hNF+-A=+—HBILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal elements of lease payments A& <t Zi AR & 285

Repayment of bank loans BBIRITER
Bank loans raised EERTER

Proceeds from issue of shares, net
Due to related parties

F& 1< BB B 5 TR IR

Interests on bank loans and IRITERFI B R EA
other finance cost paid BT A

Net cash (used in)/generated from  B&&E8) (FER) EL 2
financing activities FIRE

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN HeERBEESEEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (JEi4») /1 ini%4a

Effect of foreign exchange EXRFB B
rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A—HF—HAZBE4¢R
AT 1 JANUARY BHEEEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=—H=+—H2

AT 31 DECEMBER BHERBESEEY
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND ReERBEEEEYIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEFED

2019 Annual Report

METHELECRERE

BT PSSR F 8

2019

o

Note RMB’000
Kiet AR®T

(1,623)
(9,000)
9,000

(478)

(2,101)

(29,964)

3,879

252,459

226,374

31 226,374

2018
—T)N\F

RMB'000
AREETF T

(14,500)
13,000
226,926
200

(533)
225,093

233,268
(1,341)

20,532

252,459

252,459



For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEE =T —hNF+-_A=+—HBILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Smartac Group China Holdings Limited (the "Company”) was
incorporated on 18 July 2000 in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address
of its principal place of business is Room 1204, 12th Floor,
COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay. The
Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31
December 2019, Mr. Yang Xin Min is the ultimate controlling
party of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “lASB”). IFRSs comprise
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”");
International Accounting Standards (“IAS"); and
Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

—REHR

PEEEEEIERER AR (RN
ADRZEEZEFLATNABRE
FAEHEARNAEREHSTMEK
N AEEREBER AR AARFEM
## B R HbHE A Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands © H £ & &
Fiit RINBEES TITE 2029 I8
RENIEI204E - KREZRHE
BEBBEXSBR AT ([HRAR])
FiRE

ARBIRETEERAR - HHB R
AEEXBENGA M B RKRME
26 °

ARAREZERR R_T—h#F
TZA=+—HB BHFRELERR
NEIRAIEFITT -

R

ZEFAVBRRERBEEER SR
R ZEe((BIREFENEES])
AR 2 T i R B R B S SR ZE R
(R BEREER ) RE - BEER
MEsmEEYNBEBRRMBHRESE
AI(TEBMBREER])  BHEE
APERI(TEBRERTER ) Rk -
ZERAVBBRRATABRME
HFEMBRAUZERRERXRELR
NEMEDI(F 6228 ) 2 WERTE - KN
KEMRAEZGHBERN T XH

==
B ©

B et ERZ B RMHE T
AN RERT BRI i SR %
FRANAKEEN ST HEER
AR R IR R o HRE3EIZ
FiR B M HMR AT RN E AT M
BESTHEENENEAZFEN
KEBR 2] RAEEFTER M3
B2 EMEEABERESHNER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

102

The IASB has issued a new IFRSs, IFRS 16 Leases, and a
number of amendments to IFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group.

Except for IFRS 16, none of the developments have had
a material effect on how the Group's results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented. The Group has not applied
any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, and the related
interpretations, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC 15 Operating Leases-
Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS
16 introduced a single accounting model for lessees,
which requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability for all leases, except for leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of
low-value assets.

Smartac Group China Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

BRAN AT R AR E ] B PR B 35 3R

HELA (&)

i 3

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
leases as either operating or finance leases using similar
principles as in I1AS 17. Therefore, IFRS 16 did not have
an impact on leases where the Group is the lessor. The
lessor accounting requirements are brought forward
from IAS 17 substantially unchanged.

IFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to assess the
effect that leases have on the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 as from 1 January
2019. The Group has elected to use the modified
retrospective approach and has therefore recognised
the cumulative effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1
January 2019. Comparative information has not been
restated and continues to be reported under IAS 17.

2019 FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

104

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
to previous accounting policies and the transition

options applied are set out below:

(a)  New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly
relates to the concept of control. IFRS 16 defines a
lease on the basis of whether a customer controls
the use of an identified asset for a period of time,
which may be determined by a defined amount of
use. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified
asset and to obtain substantially all of the

economic benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of a lease in
IFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered into or
changed on or after 1 January 2019. For contracts
entered into before 1 January 2019, the Group has
used the transitional practical expedient to
grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are or contain leases.
Accordingly, contracts that were previously
assessed as leases under IAS 17 continue to be
accounted for as leases under IFRS 16 and
contracts previously assessed as non-lease service
arrangements continue to be accounted for as

executory contracts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BiE =%

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(®)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

IFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance
leases, as was previously required by IAS 17.
Instead, the Group is required to capitalise all
leases when it is the lessee, including leases
previously classified as operating leases under IAS
17, other than those short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets which are exempt.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group
has applied the incremental borrowing rates of
the relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The average incremental borrowing
rates applied by relevant group entities range
from 8.43%-8.67%.

AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE —

—NETA=t—HRLLEE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

106

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(b)  Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued)

To ease the transition to IFRS 16, the Group
applied the following recognition exemption and
practical expedients at the date of initial
application of IFRS 16:

(ii)

(iif)

elected not to apply the requirements of IFRS
16 in respect of the recognition of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets to leases for
which the remaining lease term ends within
12 months from the date of initial application
of IFRS 16, i.e. where the lease term ends on
or before 31 December 2019;

applied a single discount rate to a portfolio
of leases with a similar remaining terms for
similar class of underlying assets in a similar
economic environment;

used hindsight based on facts and
circumstances as at date of initial application
in determining the lease term for the Group's
leases with extension options;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(®)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued)

(iv) excluded initial direct costs from measuring
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application; and

(v) relied on the assessment of whether leases
are onerous by applying IAS 37 as an
alternative to an impairment review.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the
tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies IAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE —

3.

108

—NETA=t—HRLLEE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BRANERET R RS ET B PR B 3% R
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING R (8)
STANDARDS (Continued)
IFRS 16 Leases (Continued) B R ELERE165RHAE
(%)
(b)  Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued) (b) FEHA @ EIEREEMN
FE ()
The following table reconciles the operating lease TREIEMT2EER
commitments as disclosed in note 42 as at 31 2—\F+=—A=+—
December 2018 to the opening balance for lease HR&EEHEAERER —
liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019: T-NF—HA—HE®R
HEBENHVERN Y
BE :
RMB'000
ARBFIT
Operating lease commitments disclosed R-E—N\F+-_A=+—H
as at 31 December 2018 BB LT EAE 2,939
Less: commitments relating to lease B BEREERMECEE
exempt from capitalisation: R EIE
— short-term leases and other leases — Eﬁﬂfﬂfﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁ,ﬁﬂ
with remaining lease term ending R-ZE—NEF
on or before 31 December 2019 +—-A=+—H
s Bl fEm 2 HEE (303)
2,636
Less: total future interest expenses B BIEF B HARRE (401)
Lease liabilities recognised as at Z—-NF—H—H
1 January 2019 Eﬁﬁwﬁﬂffﬁlﬁ\ 2,235
Of which are: Hr
Current lease liabilities EHHEAE 1,485
Non-current lease liabilities IEHHEEEE 750
2,235
Smartac Group China Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(®)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued)

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases
previously classified as operating leases have been
recognised at an amount equal to the amount
recognised for the remaining lease liabilities,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to that lease recognised
in the statement of consolidated financial position
at 31 December 2018.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”) and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.

So far as the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on
leases previously classified as finance leases is
concerned, the Group is not required to make any
adjustments at the date of initial application of
IFRS 16, other than changing the captions for the
balances. Accordingly, instead of “Finance leases
payables”, these amounts are included within
“Lease liabilities”, and the depreciated carrying
amount of the corresponding leased assets is
identified as right-of-use assets. There is no impact
on the opening balance of equity.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

110

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

®)

3. RMFATR

L AEH

Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued)

The following table summaries the impacts of the
adoption of IFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position:

&= 22 8 (&)

B R B 3 3R

()

(b) FAHEANEFEIERAE

X

1& 7T B B B 3% 3R

EAE167EHE

5Py

FE (E)

TS SR A B A B R B 7

YE 8|

l:l—'—/J

16 5% ¥ R & B 4R

BYBRREKNTZE

Effects of adoption of IFRS 16

application of IFRS 16, the current and non-
current portion of prepaid land lease payments
amounting to RMB56,000 and RMB2,006,000
respectively were classified to right-of-use assets.

Smartac Group China Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report

BB BREENE 165K 2TE
Carrying Carrying
Line items in the consolidated amount amount
statement of financial S RAERGERE asat Re- asat
positionimpactedby the B 16T~ 31 December Re-  cognition  1January
adoption of IFRS 16 SENBRRRER 2018 classification of leases 2019
R-ZB-N\%§ R-B-1%F
+=A=1+-H —A—H
ZEREE BENAE HERR ZEREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETRT AR®TT ARETR
Assets gE
Right-of-use assets EREEE - 2,062 2,235 4,297
Prepaid land lease payments (Note) 31 & T8 5% (A74F) 2,062 (2,062) - -
Liabilities 8%
Lease liabilities HERE - - (2.235) (2,235)
Note: Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the et R — )\E‘f‘ A
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) of own =t+t—H BBRYWE
used properties were classified as prepaid land P EARSME
lease payments as at 31 December 2018. Upon FEDHEE TN

Hﬂﬁﬁk’ﬁ% p=Yaubi]
%ﬁiaﬁﬁﬁ o FAFE A
BIBR B IS S 2R 3
16551%  +HHETE
R BDER K 3E & H
B 5 BIA R ¥ 56,000
o & A R ¥ 2,006,000
AR AFEREEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE —

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(©

Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the
Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019, the Group
as a lessee is required to recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of
the lease liability, and the depreciation of the
right-of-use asset, instead of the previous policy of
recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. This results in a positive impact on the
reported profit from operations in the Group's
consolidated statement of profit or loss, as
compared to the results if IAS 17 had been applied
during the year.

In the cash flow statement, the Group as a lessee
is required to split rentals paid under capitalised
leases into their principal element and interest
element (note 41(a)). These elements are classified
as financing cash outflows and operating cash
outflows respectively. Although total cash flows
are unaffected, the adoption of IFRS 16 therefore
results in a significant change in presentation of
cash flows within the cash flow statement (note
41(b)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(c)  Impactof the financial results and cash flows of the
Group (Continued)

The following tables give an indication of the
estimated impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on
the Group's financial result and cash flows for the
year ended 31 December 2019, by adjusting the
amounts reported under IFRS 16 in these
consolidated financial statements to compute
estimates of the hypothetical amounts that would
have been recognised under IAS 17 if this
superseded standard had continued to apply in
2019 instead of IFRS 16, and by comparing these
hypothetical amounts for 2019 with the actual
2018 corresponding amounts which were
prepared under IAS 17,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BRANHET RAIEET BIBR B R
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING EXR(EF)
STANDARDS (Continued)
IFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BB R EERE1655HE
(&)
Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the (c) HIAREFFEENIED
Group (Continued) TMEME (E)
2019 2018
—E-NE —Z-N\§
Deduct:
Estimated
Add back: amounts Compared
Amounts IFRS 16 relatedto  Hypothetical to amounts
reported  depreciation operating  amounts for reported for
under  and interest lease as if 2019 as if 2018 under
IFRS 16 expense  underlAS17  underlAS 17 IAS 17
1k :
mE: ARSERE —B-hnfFz E-T\F
REEREYE BEREBHRE  2fieE BRe® BEEREG
FEEH EAF6HT (CENREER (ENREEE SRR
Z1652 8K WRER e e 2He
pAx FIEXHE F17%) E17%) SELR
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR  AR®Tr ARETr ARETz ARETR
(note 1)
(Hiit1)
Financial result foryearended ZRMEIRREKHE
31December2019impacted 2R F165FE
bytheadoptionof IFRS16: ~ HZ_-F-hf
t-A=1-H
LEEEBEE:
Loss from operation MEEE (60,966) 1,594 (1,664) (61,036) (63,626)
Finance costs BBRA (597) 119 = (478) (533)
Loss before taxation B AIEE (60,500) 1,713 (1,664) (60,451) (64,335)
Loss for the year FRER (52,400) 1,713 (1,664) (52,351) (62414)
2019 FFH HEBEEEERARAT | 113
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. IRAEET RS T B BR B 7% 3R
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING H£XER| ()

STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BB R EERE 165 HE
(#&)
(c)  Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the (c HAREFHFEEERE S
Group (Continued) MBI E (&)
2019 2018
“E-NF —Z-N\F
Estimated
amounts Compared to
relatedto  Hypothetical amounts
Amounts operating amounts for reported for
reported leases as if 2019 as if 2018 under
under IFRS 16 under IAS 17 under IAS 17 IAS 17
BT N\F

AREERE —F-NF2 RiBER
REERME 2 ER BRE® Bl

WEER  (EOREER (BMBE 1%
F16HER eitER  EREHE 2
&8 F175%) F175) EAAN
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARET R ARET R ARET R ARETT
(note 1)
(it 1)
(note2)
(Hit2)
Line items in the consolidated 3% £} 4t BB Bt 15 4R o
cash flow statement for ERIF16HTEY
year ended 31 December BE-2-NF
2019 impacted by the +=A=+-8
adoption of IFRS 16: LtEEZRE
ReRBRER
Cash (used in)/generated BE(FTR)/FTiBRE
from operations (27,315) (1,664) (28,979) 8274
Interest element of lease paid B TAEF| B 25 (119) 119 = -
Net cash (used in)/generated &% 58 (FTH),/
from operating activities ~ FTSEH & FHE (28,057) (1,545) (29,602) 4,294
Principal elements of lease paid 2 (78 &7 4 %4 (1,623) 1,623 = -
Net cash (used in)/generated BEEE (FTA),/
from financing activities RS 3E (2,101) 1,623 (478) 225,093
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AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. ERAEET R ZE T B PR B A 3R
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING B ()

STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued) B EREERE16EEE

(#)

(©)  Impactof the financial results and cash flows of the (0 HAREFEFEERE S

Group (Continued)

Note 1: The “estimated amounts related to operating

leases” is an estimate of the amounts of the cash
flows in 2019 that relate to leases which would
have been classified as operating leases, if IAS
17 had still applied in 2019. This estimate
assumes that there was no difference between
rentals and cash flows and that all of the new
leases entered into in 2019 would have been
classified as operating leases under I1AS 17, if IAS
17 had still applied in 2019. Any potential net
tax effect is ignored.

In this impact table these cash outflows are
reclassified from financing to operating in order
to compute hypothetical amounts of net cash
generated from operating activities and net
cash used in financing activities as if IAS 17 still
applied.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

116

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(d)

Leasehold investment properties

Under IFRS 16, the Group is required to account
for all leasehold properties as investment
properties when these properties are held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. The
adoption of IFRS 16 does not have a significant
impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements as the Group previously elected to
apply IAS 40, Investment properties, to account for
all of its leasehold properties that were held for
investment purposes as at 31 December 2018.
Consequentially, these leasehold investment
properties continue to be carried at fair value.

Smartac Group China Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group has not early applied new and revised IFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2019. These new and
revised IFRSs include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

BRAN AT R AR E ] B PR B 35 3R

HER (&)

AEBEVWEREFEADEME
MAR -ZE—NAF—A—HH
96 BA R R AU #R] R A
EFTBIRM B HmE £ - ZF
#a] R AR IERT BB B 15 s 5
ABENATAIRERAREEH
Z 2R o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTE#BRzE
Rz EstIBER

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

BIR F 75 3R 5 B L 3 XM E R ERT

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material
B2 st RIS 1 5 KBRS ER|FE 8RB AN EE IS

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

MR E 2 EIERTHSAER

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

1 January 2020
—E-FTF—H—H

1 January 2020
El —E-_FTF—H—H

1 January 2020
—E-FTF—H—H

AEELEFGERFETRN
AT R FEHA 1 B R RE R HA P A9
FE -HIBARA/L EAZ
FEAEPT R MR
RELERATE -

2019 FFH PRZEEEERARAA | 117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. investment
properties and certain financial instruments that are measured
at fair value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the
Group has existing rights that give it the current ability
to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net assets
of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve
relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the
Company. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between
the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling shareholders
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed

to the owners of the Company.

In the Company's statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is

classified as held for sale).

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities
incurred and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods
in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their

acquisition-date fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
sum of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units ("CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as
an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

122

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of an entity but is not control or joint control over those
policies. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence, the
holder's intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the investment
at the end of each reporting period when there is
objective evidence that the investment is impaired. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses and other comprehensive income is
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits,
the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the share of
losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the consideration
of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that associate and (ii) the Group's entire carrying
amount of that associate (including goodwill) and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve. If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, the Group continues to
apply the equity method and does not remeasure the
retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

4., EESETEHEE)

2019 FFR

AEB RGBS QA ZWER
BHRkHtE2AEEREEE
mEHM KR RER B
AEBERIEBERRZERS
REBBENE S QAR 2 #a
(BREMRMEREE LEK
AEEREZRRREFE)
R REBRARKRBZSQRE
ERTHELNFE T HER
E—FEBER - WEBERRE
BEHEN  NEEENEE
168 M F KRR EIE BB
R IR IS R EL PR AR A ©

AHEBERARBRAEEX
TENZBERIDEOHERE
RITENREE QB RE WA
RE R (B B (i) 245 5= (B OB
NRZeHEEE(RREE)
K AT 1A R Rt HNES[E S e 4
ZER - MERBERFIRE
RRaEhERE  AIAKE
HERBERDEATERRE
DB E -

AEBEABERARZZ 2K
RN AREB R E R
Al ARAETTIRHE o BRIF
RHRHUAEREE ZRER
& BRARERERTTUE
B o BEE QR 2 @R RN &
ERELE T ARREREH
PTERMRIBR — 2K

TREEREERARAR | 123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

124

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group'’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency’). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (‘"RMB”) which is the
Company’s presentation currency and the
functional currency of the principal operating
subsidiaries of the Group. The functional currency
of the Company is Hong Kong dollars ("HKS$"). The
directors consider that choosing RMB as the
presentation currency best suits the need of
shareholders and investors.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values
are determined.
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4.

(ii)

(iii)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements (Continued)

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

126

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that form
part of the net investment in foreign entities and
of borrowings are recognised in the other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to consolidated profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings for
administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which
they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write-off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Buildings and leasehold
improvement
Office equipment and fixtures

3.33%-33.33%,
over the lease term

12.5%-33.33%,
over the lease term
Motor vehicles 12.5%-25%
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are
available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An owned
investment property is measured initially at its cost
including all direct costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment properties are
stated at its fair value based on valuation by an external
independent valuer. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of the investment properties are
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which they

arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of investment properties is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the property, and is recognised in
profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties

is accounted for as described in note 4(u).

In the comparative period, when the Group held a
property interest under an operating lease and used the
property to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the Group could elect on a property-by-
property basis to classify and account for such interest
as an investment property. Any such property interest
which had been classified as an investment property
was accounted for as if it were held under a finance
lease, and the same accounting policies were applied to
that interest as were applied to other investment

properties leased under finance leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

(i) The Group as a lessee

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

130

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
except for the right-of-use assets that meet the
definition of investment property are carried at fair
value in accordance with note 4(f).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group's estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment properties and
lease liabilities separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

132

(i)

(ii)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee, the Group
classified leases that do not substantially transfer
to the Group all the risks and rewards of ownership
of assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Prepaid land lease payments are stated at cost and
subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis
over the remaining term of the lease.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. An
internally generated intangible asset arising from the
Group's software development is recognised only if all
of the following conditions are met:

— An asset is created that can be identified (such as
software and new processes);

It is probable that the asset created will generate
future economic benefits; and

The development cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 5 years. Where no
internally generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill
where they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset
and their fair values can be measured reliably. The cost
of such intangible assets is their fair value at the
acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets acquired separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

134

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or
loss on a straight line basis over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Software development costs 5 years
Customers relationship 6 years
Computer software 5 years
Trademark 9 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out basis. The cost of finished goods comprises all
cost of purchase and other cost incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised.

When the contract includes a significant financing

component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method.
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4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BiE =%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group's entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

AR

—NFETZA=t—HRLLEE

4. EESTEEH)

2019 FFR

EXAEEERENATAESGRK
XH—FHE 2RHEEMESR
E1 \:ﬂ'\/\aﬁi{%ﬂj{/ﬂl%ﬁgwu °

TRMEENTREGENIEA
REFE - WBEXBTERE
EREBABEEREZRS
AR (BRAREHABGEZS
BEELEBBEIN RYILHE
REMAXNGETREER
cReE(ER) ZREE -
WERAREFAEREZ SR
?F&ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ%fﬁZﬁ
SRR B R o

AEEEREEERRR SR
B2 ANEFERE s
BAERAEAERBALH
AREROGEET S ]
BT RRIRRSREE -
1 74 S B0 B e 80 388 7 4 A 4
BERBATH BB RO B &
e ﬂa%mﬁF AL
R AEWRERE 2 BF
P RASZ BN E ESE -
74 R E%%iﬂﬁ?

kol

P A HE 4B N BB 0 [ Fe Ko [B] R
$’§IE\'J?€ ﬁ@wu%[’ﬂﬁ?

Wt 2 WEFR 1S IR R B K
TW%%( °

AEBEERAER 2B TRR
B« FESHEKE fEim B BUB #ER
TRAGE - AR EE
ZEEEEENREMNRE(R
REMCEBEIFREEELN
AERE) 2 ZRNBEER -

AR R EEIERAERAT | 135



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

136

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace. All recognised financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOC],
are recognised in profit or loss as other income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for expected credit losses
("ECLSs").

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under IFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out in () to (t) below.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

138

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Contingent shares payable is classified as financial
liability as it is resulted from a contract under contingent
consideration arrangement. The amount is initially
recognised and subsequently measured at fair value.
Change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss when
it arises.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of merchandises is recognised
when control of the goods has been transferred, being
when the goods have been delivered to the customer’s
specific location (delivery). Following delivery, the
customer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. A
receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to the customers as this represents the
point in time at which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is
required before payment is due.

Commission income is recognised when the control of
services is delivered, the revenue and cost can be
measured reliably, and have right to receive as income.

Revenue from sales of hardware and software and
installation service is recognised when the control of
goods and services have been transferred to customer
upon completion of installation. A receivable is
recognised by the Group when the hardware being
delivered or/and software being installed at customers’
location as this presents the point in time at which the
right to consideration becomes uncondition, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

140

Other IT support service and other service income is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to
the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.

() Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

Obligation for contributions to the local
government of the PRC defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant
labour rules and regulations in the PRC are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits, and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination benefits.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

142

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match
them with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’'s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and an associate, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying

amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment properties are depreciable and
are held within a business model of the Group whose
business objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. If the
presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties is measured based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be

recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable

to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised at initial recognition and over the lease
terms due to application of the initial recognition

exemption.

144 | Smartac Group China Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report

4,

EZSTBE(E)

TRBRPREASEHEE
B NETHRKER (K
MR NEERAEZR
EfEE -

EENanERAHENR
BYMEETCHEAR  BREZF
) 5 1 B B 55 58 & 2R IR
B - BRIFRBRR NI - ER
BYEAFETEAEELE
BAR(HEXEREBEERE
HREREMEBESNBAED
REMS MAREBLES
) R - ZBRETKIL -
HZBRR KL - ZERED
EMELEHEAIRYERR 2
Yel s E -

A EARERAEREEE
EEEHEABENHEERZH
EREREAME - AREHLE
FEBIRINR T R AR
BEFXHEERE -

AHBEHRGERAREEREZ
HERXRZME - AEE KB
SR ERE12RABHAED
PEAREREEERTEER
B ARERYVIFERRR
EHREHEEEREERELZ
ERZBT RN T HEIARR
IR -



4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the
relevant tax authority will accept the uncertain tax
treatment used, or proposed to be use by individual
group entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined
consistently with the tax treatment in the income tax
filings. If it is not probable that the relevant taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
that are not yet available for use are reviewed for
impairment annually and whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not
be recoverable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications of
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is written
down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset
belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/
CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse
the impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BiE =%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
receivables. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Lifetime ECL represents the ECLs that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the
industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group's core operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHE =T —NF+=ZA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(il The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(i) Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of
“investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by
the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider;

— itis becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised

in profit or loss.

152 | Smartac Group China Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report

4,

EZSTBE(E)

FEREERMEE (B)

— HREXSHFHRIAEH
MEBESEHNREA 5
HFNERACDRAXRZH
FRTERARETEE
JE R R

— RS FAIRERESETT
HM%EHE %

— HeREERMEMEE
ERTS -

EREMBTREEARARE
MR B EBEREEEE
AR Z B (PIanER A B BB
R ARERRF) » BB
RRME - E6RSRANE
BRE(ARPERLERE)
AEBEBMBECHEE - T
BzeMEENAIREASHE
ZWEEFLEEREBRTE
BERERRERBHIMITE
B KB zEEENBER
PR



4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHE =T —NF+=ZA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the
current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.
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Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of
the reporting period are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgement that has
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Contingent Liabilities

As described in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Company acquired 51%
equity interest in LCE Group Limited ("LCE
Group’) and its subsidiaries (the "LCE Group”) in
2017. Neither the Company nor the vendor has
reported the transaction to the relevant PRC tax
authorities. The PRC tax authorities however could
impose penalty on unpaid enterprise income tax
("EIT") according to the relevant PRC laws and
regulations. The directors, after consulting the
Group's PRC legal counsel, are of opinion that a
provision of RMB6,602,000 had been adequately
made, and considered that the risk of having a
penalty imposed by the PRC tax authorities is
reasonably low. The penalty was disclosed as
contingent liabilities.

(b) Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the directors have reviewed
the Group's investment properties portfolios and
concluded that the Group's investment properties
are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in
determining the Group's deferred tax for
investment properties, the directors have adopted
the presumption that investment properties
measured using the fair value model is recovered
through sale is rebutted.
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5. CRITICALJUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)
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(c) Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in accounting policy disclosed in
note 4(aa), ECLs are measured as an allowance
equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or
lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. IFRS 9 does
not define what constitutes a significant increase
in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of
an asset has significantly increased, the Group
takes into account qualitative and quantitative
reasonable and supportable forward-looking

information.

(d) Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options
exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to
exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to the Group's

operation.

Generally, periods covered by an extension option
in other properties leases have not been included
in the lease liability because the Group could
replace the assets without significant cost or
business disruption. See note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements for further

information.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(d) Determining the lease term (Continued)

The lease term is reassessed when there is a
significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control.
During the current financial year, no lease term
has been reassessed.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

(@) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

During the year, RMB8,100,000 of income tax was
credited to profit or loss based on the estimated
assessable profits (2018: RMB1,921,000).
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5. CRITICALJUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)
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(b) Impairment of property, plant and
equipment, construction in progress and
right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment, construction in
progress and right-of-use assets are stated at costs
less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if
any. In determining whether an asset is impaired,
the Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an
event has occurred or any indicators that may
affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use,
the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the assets belongs. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present

value used in the impairment test.

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment, construction in progress and right-of-
use assets as at 31 December 2019 were
RMB7,077,000 (2018: RMB7,060,000), RMB320,000
(2018: Nil) and RMB4,096,000 (2018: Nil)

respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(c)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
CGU to which goodwill has been allocated. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Changes in
assumptions and estimates used may have a
significant effect on the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated statement of
financial position.

The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December
2019 was nil (2018: RMB11,451,000) after an
impairment loss of RMB11,451,000 was recognised
during the year in relation to the CGU of
E-commerce solutions segment (2018:
RMB48,432,000). Details of the impairment loss
calculation are provided in note 24(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

160

(d)

Amortisation and impairment on intangible
assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation for the Group's intangible
assets. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite, based on
the expected usage and technical obsolescence
from the changes in the market demands or
services output from the assets. Intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised over the
expected useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible assets may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method
for the intangible assets with a finite useful life are
reviewed by the management at least at the end
of each reporting period. The Group assesses
whether any indication of impairment in
accordance with the accounting policy. The
recoverable amounts of intangible assets have
been determined based on value in use
calculations of each CGU the intangible assets
belonged which requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the
CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.

Impairment loss of RMB26,962,000 was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).
The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31
December 2019 was RMB459,000 (2018:
RMB33,461,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair values of the
investment properties. In determining the fair
values, the valuer has utilised a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgement and are
satisfied that the method of valuation and inputs
used are reflective of the current market
conditions.

The carrying amount of investment properties as
at 31 December 2019 was RMB57,000,000 (2018:
RMB55,800,000) after recognition of the fair value
gain of RMB1,200,000 (2018: RMB800,000 loss) in
the profit or loss during the year.

Impairment of trade receivables

The management of the Group estimates the
amount of impairment loss for ECL on trade
receivables based on the credit risk of trade
receivables. The amount of the impairment loss
based on ECL model is measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition. Where the future
cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may
arise.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

162

(f)

(9)

Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of
trade receivables was RMB5,863,000 (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of RMB410,000)
(2018: RMB2,093,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of RMB560,000)).

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made
based on the ageing and estimated net realisable
value of inventories. The assessment of the
allowance amount involves judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is
different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of
inventories and allowance charge/write-back in
the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

As at 31 December 2019, RMB1,718,000 of
allowance for slow-moving inventories was
recognised in profit or loss (2018: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHE =T —NF+=ZA=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance.

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in HK$, RMB and United
States dollars ("US$"). The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2019, if the RMB had weakened 5 per
cent against the HKS with all other variables held
constant, consolidated loss after tax for the year would
have been RMB377,000 lower (2018: RMB323,000
higher), arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange difference on cash and cash equivalents and
accruals and other payables (2018: accruals and other
payables) denominated in HKS/RMB. If the RMB had
strengthened 5 per cent against the HKS with all other
variables held constant, consolidated loss after tax for
the year would have been RMB377,000 higher (2018:
RMB323,000 lower), arising mainly as a result of the
foreign exchange difference on cash and cash
equivalents and accruals and other payables (2018:
accruals and other payables) denominated in HKS/RMB.

B 75 B b B

$EIZ¥$%Q B HER
SMEE R - EE R ~m@§iﬂ
&ﬂTHM°$%lZ%%
Eﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁﬂm%z%%ﬁm
1% *%ﬁﬁﬁlmﬁiﬁ%
&Zﬁ&?ﬂ%;/ RIK

AEBMABDEHBR S - BE
RBEXFENEE ARER
%%(F%ﬁhaﬂﬁ B & %

HTINERR - ANEE B AT
BRINERS  BEKRBES
FESNEEHBR - AEEZEY)
ERAIIERR  UHNFE
R Z B E R EARIMNE RS o

RZE—NFF+_RAR=4+—
B WMARKELEEEES -
MATEEMESHFITE - B
FABRMELEEBE/RLD A
R #377000t( =& — )\ &F -
# 0 A R#3230000T) 0 =&
HRAEE  AREEZR
e MBEEEMREFERARA
fENRIB(ZE—/)\F : E&+
BRREMERRIE) 2 IMNEZE
AT - WARK L BEAE
5% MAMBHMESH#FT
. BIFABRMESEEERR
#n AR 37700 = =
— A\ F 52> A R 323,000
L) EEHBABE AR
AEZHESRREEY MER
BRRHEMENZKE(CZZE—N
F:EFEAREMENKIE)
2 INPE ZRAFTEL

2019 FFH FEEEEERKRERAF | 163



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & E=F

6.

—NETA=t—HRLLEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

164

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily trade receivables) and from its financing
activities, including foreign exchange transactions and
other financial instruments. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents is
limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 53% (2018:
75%) of the total trade receivables were due from the
Group's five highest customers as at 31 December 2019
and all of the customers are located in the PRC or the
United States (the “US”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

6. FHKEREEA)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a Markov chain model. As the Group's
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status
is not further distinguished between the Group's
different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2019:

P& Wi Bk ()

AEBERMEAIREEANE
EHEREERREZERAE
FEU IR R 2 IR - A
SEBEEEBELRYER
ARAEFPHYEEBRENRZ
BEEX  WERBEBHNK
MZERBEFEESE-—FRD
AEBTRAZFER -

TREUEWAEER T
—hE+-A=+—AFEY
FEIBE 2 B IR R TE IS
BBEZ AR

Expected loss rate Gross carrying amount Loss allowance
REEE=E REAR BRRE

2019 218 2019 218 2019 2018
“B-0E ZE-\F ZB-pf T\ ZEB-pFE  —T-N\%
RMB'000 RVBO00 RMB'000 RVBO00
ARBTR ARETT AR®TRn ARETR
Current (not past due) B (W@ 2.54% 809% 5,668 1,991 (144) (161)
Up to 3 months past due BE3EAR 16.96% 222% 336 180 (57) (40)
306 months past due B3 E6AEA 60.71% - 28 - (17) -
6monthsto 1 yearpastdue ~ BH6EAZ 145 72.73% 71.8% 143 195 (104) (140)
Over 1 year past due B ENE 89.80% 76.3% 98 287 (88) (219
6,273 2653 (410) (560)

Expected loss rates are estimated based on actual loss
experience over the past few years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historical
data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group's view of economic conditions over the expected
lives of the receivables.

2019 FFR

EHERXDERNBERFZ
ERBRERE - ZFHE
BT B AR BR AT SR B 1
By Rk BEZ &BARRE
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BIEKREE(E)

Trade receivables (Continued) PEUBR X (48)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of REZREWERDN 7 BEBER
trade receivables during the year is as follows: BEINT -
2019 2018
—E-hAEFE —=-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARBTT

At 1 January R—H—H 560 2,681
Written off during the year F R - (387)
Reversals =l (150) (1,734)
At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 410 560
The following significant changes in the gross carrying RZE—NF - L TEKERK
amounts of trade receivables contributed to the FEARBECEREHEHEE
decrease in the loss allowance during 2019: B
—  settlement made by trade receivables recognised — RZE-NF+ A
as at 31 December 2018; and =+ —HEBERERER

B K&

—  new customers with higher creditworthiness. — HEPHERAgEIRS -
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. =EEREM(E)
Financial assets at amortised cost REBERASIIRzEREE
All of the Group's financial assets at amortised cost are KREBFTALEEK AR Z
considered to have low credit risk, and the loss TREECEERBIIERR
allowance recognised during the year was therefore RIK - B F AR 2 B E &
limited to 12-month expected losses. RN 12 B A BB 1E -
Financial assets at amortised cost include the Group’s IR ATIERESRHEER
deposits and other receivables. RALERS R HA YK -
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of RAFE - REHEKARTERE
financial assets at amortised cost during the year is as TREEBERBEHWT
follows:
Other
Deposits receivables Total
BEe HMEKRRK it
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT AR®TRT

At 1 January 2018 RZE—-—N\F—H—H 332 581 913
Written off during the year & Al $4 (116) (42) (158)
Reversal of impairment REEHERL
loss recognised B EEE D
for the year (174) (507) (681)
At 31 December2018and MR _ZT—/\F
1 January 2019 +_)EJE+—E|&
—NhF—H—H 42 32 74
Impairment loss/(reversal ~ ARFEEHERZ
of impairment loss) BB S,
recognised for the year OB EIEREmE) 32 (28) 4
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=—RA=+—H 74 4 78
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.

168

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative

&R (&)

AEBZBRRBEHREREA
MRERZRHESHE @ 1M
RN EEEFSENRSHE
AR H 52 B R B R B0 0R

HEBE -

BREAEEIFTEZREEZ
BHRBRRASREIFL D

of financial liabilities is as follows: AT
The Group
rEE
Between Between
Less than 1and 2and
1year 2 years 5 years Total
—FR —ZEME WMELF st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-h&
+=A=+—H
Trade and other payables  FE{BRFN X
H At R AR 22,971 - - 22,917
Lease liabilities ME&E 1,451 709 - 2,160
Due to directors ENEEIA 896 - - 896
Due to related parties FE{S BEEE 5 2 IE 5,984 = = 5,984
Bank loans BITER 9,255 = = 9,255
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—-N\F
+=ZA=+—~H
Trade and other payables  FEfTBRFX &
HoAh & 3K 23356 - - 23,356
Due to directors ENEEHIAE 33 - - 33
Due to related parties JE1S AR 5 510A 5,999 - - 5999
Bank loans RITER 9252 - - 9,252
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises from its
bank balances and short-term bank loans. These
balances bear interests at variable rates that vary with
the then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2019, if interest rates at that date had
been 25 basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, consolidated loss after tax for
the year would have been RMB73,000 lower/higher
(2018: RMB621,000 lower/higher), arising mainly as a
result of higher/lower interest income/expenses on
bank interest-bearing deposits (2018: bank interest-
bearing deposits and bank loans).

Other than the bank balances as mentioned above, the
Group’s deposits at current accounts, fixed time
deposits, due to a related party and short-term bank
loans bear interest at fixed interest rates and therefore
are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

&R (&)

A T B R R R 5 2
SRAT 47 R BRIRATEL A ©
SEBRATEBTRMHEZ
FHTRE -

RZZE—hFE+=—A=+—
H: &g BFEEH TS
EEE - MATEHMEERE
e AAFEERBMEBEEE
BAER A, 1E n A R # 73,000
TL(ZZE—N\F B EBMA
E#®6210007T) » T EZHRKE
BRAOGEREBETER(ZZ
—N\F A BETEXRKLIELT
BEF)ZHBWA X%
m/ R FER o

fR LA SR1T &7 RIRTT B K
Sh - AEBEZEREF T
EHIER - BN — R TR
TR KR8 AR AT B R B E A R
R WMAARDNAENEE

Gy o
o

2019 2018
—B-AF —ZE)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTFRT ARBTT

Financial assets: SRMEE -
Financial assets measured at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities: cEas

Financial liabilities at amortised cost IR SR AR AR

REHENATEZEREE

244,309 261,695

38,816 38,353
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value
hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.
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7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

7. AREFEHE)

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2019 using:
R-B-NF+=RA=+—-HZAAREFEHRA:

Description it Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—fE BB E=E et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥TR ARBTR AR%¥Tr
Recurring fair value REMHARESE:
measurement;
Investment properties REME
— Commercial PRC — P
(note 20) (Ffaz20) - - 57,000 57,000
Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2018 using:
RZE—-N\FT+ZA=1+T—HAZAAEFERR :
Description il Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—E FE F=E fst
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETRT
Recurring fair value REMDNAETE:
measurement;

Investment properties
— Commercial PRC
(note 20)

KEmE
—HmERE
(KizF20)

- - 55,800 55,800
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DREFEGE)
Assets/(liabilities) at fair value
through profit or loss
ROABEFANEBBZEE (8F)
Contingent
Investment shares 2019
Description it properties payables Total
B ZB-hEF
REW= HAR G st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®T R AR¥TR
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-hF—-—H—H 55,800 - 55,800
Total gains or losses recognised ~ RIBIRIER 2 Wm
in profit or loss (#) BIREE () 1,200 - 1,200
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF
+ZA=+—H 57,000 - 57,000
# Incdudegainsorlossesfor — (#) BIERHEHR
assets held at end of PR EEZ
reporting period Wk g8 1,200 - 1,200
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\F—-H—H 56,600 (26,488) 30,112
Shares issued upon fulfilment  PEFRFI B 1214
of profits target 177 & - 5414 5414
Exchange difference MEHERE - (285) (285)
Total gains or losses recognised  PAME 25 FERR 2 URzE 5k
in profit or loss (#) BB (1) (800) 21,359 20,559
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
—A=+—H 55,800 - 55,800
# Incdudegainsorlossesfor — (#) BIERHmEHX
assets held at end of FIEEZ
reporting period WaskEE (800) 21,359 20,559
The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss NIBRER 2 WK EBE%E
including those assets and liabilities at end of reporting (B1EZE EAiﬁiﬁﬂjEZéfE&

period are presented in the face (2018: face) of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

BE)EFABRREEMEEIK
BRPBILEIN(ZF—)\F:
BIEF) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DREFE(E)

The Group's chief financial officer ("CFO") is responsible
for the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including level
3 fair value measurements. The CFO reports directly to
the Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the CFO and the Board of Directors at least
twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.

2019 FFR

AEEZERVBE(EEY
BEDAEMBHRBATEE
HEBzARNENE BRES
“EAREFE- ARMBEE
EEANEFEERZFANE
AR ARMBEHRESEE
FRIOMATmGEREFLES
AR

RE-BAREHEMS - &
EE—BRIRARTHEE
13 I A R 2
REAT -
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AREFE(E)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the () BERLXEEFRAKERF
Group and valuation techniques and inputs LER=-_EBE—HhE+=AH
used in fair value measurements at 31 =t+—BZ2RETEMRE
December 2019: (Continued) BAEEFERZH 2R

# o (8])
Level 3 fair value measurements EZEAREFE

Effect on fair

Valuation Unobservable value for increase
Description technique inputs Range of inputs Fair value
SYEMHARE
Hi fHERE TUBRSHY &E e DAfE
2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\F
RMB'000 RMB000
ARETR  ARETR
asset asset
EE AE
Investment properties Income capitalisation ~ Yield 4%-6% Higher of the yield, 57,000 55800
— Commercial PRC approach gt (2018: 4%-6%) lower of fair value
RENEZ —hEEE WAERE (Z2-N\E - 9%-6%) Was kg
DRERD
Market rent Monthly office rental Higher of the market rent,
[k iii6a RMB41-42/sq.m. higher of fair value
(2018 AMB42/sq.m) fiikaiik N

FAZEARLET X DAEEN
ARBATEARELT
(ZZ-N&:
FERRAREQT)

Monthly car-park space
RMB156-260/unit
(2018 RMB150-250/unit)
BEUEAENARS 156TE
AREHOTL(ZE-N\E: §

BAARBI10TEB0TT)
Financial assets at FVTOCI Guideline public Discount for Lack of 13% Higher of DLOM, - -
BARBHALRZE company method ~ Marketability (2018:15%) lower of fair value
W eRAE BERARRAE ('DLOM) (ZZ—\F 2 15%) B msatE
At B BAERD
friz([Rzms
RBMTE])
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by

major service line for the year is as follows:

A

AFEERIERGBHESORET

FamZWADEIT
2019 2018
—B-hE —ZT)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREBTFRT ARBTT

Revenue from contracts with

TR B iR Bt 365 3 o 2R A

customers within the scope E15FEER

of IFRS 15 REEFEHZBA
Disaggregated by major service line ETERBHEESLE
Sale of merchandises HmiEeE 12,705 2,407
Commission income il N 10,390 10,961
Sales of hardware and software and HEB M REH AR

installation service 25 RE 1,740 3,531
Other IT support service Hi BB B R 962 369
Other service income H AR WA - 88

25,797 17,356
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8. REVENUE (Continued) 8. WA (&)
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and AREFBNRTHETEERSRAEE
services over time and at a point in time in the following Ko b [ B AR P R A 3 (B e P B 88 7%
major service lines and geographical regions: BRFEFTIS YA -
Sales of hardware
and software and
Sales of merchandises Commission income installation service Other IT support service  Other service income Total
HERHREMUR A&
BREE 0N ZERE NRZERE HpREUA @it

Forthe yearended 31 December  HET=AZ+-BLEE 2019 08 219 018 219 018 2019 08 2019 08 2019 08
SRAE CTONE ZE0E CF0F ZR-AF CF)\E ZR-AF CE)\F SR-AF CTONE SRhE CRNE
RMB000  ANBOOD  RMBOO0  FNBO0O  RMBOO0  RNBOD  RMBOOO  RVBOD)  RMB0OO VB0  RMB00D  AMBON
ARMTR ARSTL ARMTR ARSTR ARBTR AR%TL ARBTR ARETL ARRTR ARETT ARMTR ARMTIL

Primary geographical markets ~ EHET

Hong Kong Y - - 3423 2005 - - - 266 - - 3423 291
PRC except Hong Kong HE(TREEE) 10503 2407 6,967 893 1,740 3531 962 103 - 8 20172 15065
ThellS %8 2202 - - - - - - - - - 2202 -
Revenue from external customers — RESIEE ZMA 12,705 4071039 10%1 1,740 3531 962 369 - 8% 25797 17,356

Timing of revenue recognition WA ZER
Goods and senices transfered REBBHZEBER

atapointintime REH 12,705 2407 . S M0 3531 5 - . S s 5938
Senvices transferred over time KhREERE - - 10,390 1091 - - 962 369 - 8 11,352 1418
Total et 12,705 2407 10,390 10961 1,740 3531 962 369 - 88 25,197 173%
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9. OTHERINCOME 9. Hf A
2019 2018
=E2E-REFE —FT)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AREBTT

Bank interest income RITH BHA 2,714 55
Interest on other investments HMREFE - 168
Government grants* U B 702 1,279
Net foreign exchange gain HNE UK ZF R 395 -
Gross rental income from REYE B WARTE
investment properties 2,973 2,898
Property management fee MEERE RAEEKRA
and related income 1,867 1,735
Value added tax refund BEFIRNK 120 360
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE K
plant and equipment B W 5 80
Gain on disposal of construction in progress B & EE T2 2 Uiz - 3
Others Hib 268 401
9,044 6,979
*  The government grants represented government subsidy * B BENB AR EEMED 2
granted to enterprise, who had fulfilled certain requirements EHBR R EE T EE (Flmn
such as engaging in research and development activities, duly BEFELEMELFY  KEH
paid taxes in previous years, by the local government that the W) 2 EERBZBNED -

subsidiaries operate.
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. 2 HEH
The Group has three (2018: three) reportable segments as AREBEUT=ZEA(ZE—N\F: =
follows: &) 28 -
() Online to Offline ("020") solutions segment - Sale of software and provision of 020 consultation
service
R EmT (1020)) AT RS M HE RIR 020 H AR TS
(i) Integrated digital marketing ("IDM") - Provision of electronic payment solutions and services
solutions segment
meBETHE(REEFEE] REEF TR R KR
ﬁ¢/;%73_73§37\‘m‘
(i) E-commerce solutions segment - Management, operation and provision of market
strategy of online shops and e-commerce platforms
BT EBHRT RS EB BEERRE T—?ﬁf“$AEﬁ =R EER
REEEE
During the year, certain subsidiaries under IDM solutions RAFE HREETHEEBRAR
segment started engaging in E-commerce solutions DHNETHEARIEXEBEEE
operations to cope with the Group’s business plan due to the FMARKEETHBRASTRE
change of their business operations. No restatement of BLARES RNEENERTE - EEIEQ
comparative information presented as these subsidiaries AT NG] J\E/\:%*jli FEREES
started to engage in E-commerce solutions operation in 2019. EEFRABMATREE  Bt2
5']9’%[35%5*4*%%%75”
The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units AEEZEWHOBRRETREM
that offer different products and services. They are managed MRB 2 KBEEFBEL - HREE
separately because each business requires different BH BN R R E R - R
technology and marketing strategies. Each of the above ENOoRETER - MEBEKED
operating segments corresponds to related subsidiaries HEENEHEEYHLEB 2B R
engaging in the respective segment activities. Al e
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the KEDE 2 TR B & I B
same as those described in note 4 to the consolidated %Fﬁaf_ﬁrﬁm_%*ﬁ( %\E‘KTE\\ n
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not include REEWARSE - DHEETE
corporate income and expenses. Segment assets do not REEEE - DHEEITBRELEE
include corporate assets. Segment liabilities do not include AfE-

corporate liabilities.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if REEK D EHE 2 HE REEZRA
the sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current 55 =77 (Al Bzfﬁ ME)ETZHE
market prices. SEEE
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 7 HEH (&
020 solutions IDM solutions E-commerce
segment segment solutions segment Total
020 R EAH BAETREMARRAS  ETEBEAAIRAD @it
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZZ-0F ZEF)\& ZB-AE ZE\E ZB-AE ZE-\E 2B ZE)E
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000
ARETR ARETT ARMTr ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Year ended 31 December BET-A=t-RLEE
Revenue from external customers RENBEPZUA 2,701 3900 342 JAIE 19,672 1138 25,797 17,35
Segment profit/(oss) PEER/ (B 698 (5514) (87) (14978) (43,535) (5838) (42,924) (76330
Interest revenue HIELON 5 7 - 4 64 % 69 4
Interest expense fex 478 533 66 - 53 - 597 533
Depreciation and amortisation REREHE 715 1030 1,048 713 8,062 6781 9,825 8524
Share of result of an associate RlE-RHENFEE - - 1,063 (176) - - 1,063 (176)
Income tax expense/(credi) fEHER/(82) 249 (251) - - (8,349) (1670) (8,100) (1921)
Reversal of (allowance for) trade receivables FEUER 2t / (48 165 M 8) b ul 1502 150 1734
(Alowance for)/reversal of dlowancefor LRI (k) /BB
other receivables Em (v} 27 20 483 17) m (4 681
Impairment loss on goodwil EERESR - - = - 11,451 4843) 11,451 4843)
Reversal of/(impaimentloss) onother  E o EIF R/
receivables (HEER) - - - (11,644) 190 - 190 (11,644)
Impairmentloss on non-curent assets  JERE AR AR - - = 12 26,962 - 26,962 12
Additions to segment non-curent assets BB EERE 38 % 1] 67 3,831 1 3910 114
At31 December Rt=B=1-H
Seqment assets HHEE 67,690 66,747 13,329 14995 54,753 7863 135712 153605
Segnentabltes S8R (2493 (469 (3939) G0 (A7) (07) @361 (146
Investment in an associate P-HBELTRE - - 3,934 2871 - - 3,934 2871
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

180

10.

2ERE R (&

Revenue and profit or loss: ON: 2 F i
2019 2018
ZB-AF  —Z)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREBTT
Revenue WA
Consolidated revenue AW A 25,797 17,356
Profit or loss Ba
Total loss of reportable segments EWMHHEIEERE (42,924) (76,330)
Unallocated amounts: RAOBLERE -
Unallocated head office and ROBRBIER R
corporate expenses TEER (9,476) (6,877)
Fair value gain on contingent JERT S ARRR D 2
shares payable N ERE - 21,359
Provision for capital gain tax BRIBEMEE = (566)
Consolidated loss for the year KREFZLEGEEIR (52,400) (62,414)
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 2 HER (&)
Assets and liabilities: EEHREE
2019 2018
“B-AF —ZEN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTT
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments 2 ¥R B EE 135,772 153,605
Unallocated amounts: a&ﬁ@ﬂ@%ﬁ :
Unallocated head office and AN ERERN
corporate assets JL%QE 186,661 223,718
Consolidated total assets IREREE 322,433 377323
Liabilities =L
Total liabilities of reportable segments 2R S4B 8 & 43,617 51,456
Unallocated amounts: RKPOBCEEE -
Unallocated head office and KoM ER N
corporate liabilities ﬂé%ﬁ% 10,400 8,807
Consolidated total liabilities meEaE 54,017 60,263
20]9¢¢$& “‘ ‘HH r‘H H F“ﬁ 181



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue
The Group’s revenue from external customers by
location of operations was disclosed in note 8 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Group's non-current assets are substantially located

. DEEM (&’

WA
REEREIIFRL ZWA (I
BB BB ) R A BEIRE
Mzt s 7" ©

AEBEZIEREBEENHL DA

in the PRC. RHE o
2019 2018
—E-hAEFE = N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTT
Customer A ZEA - 3,713
Customer B =ZFEB = 2,988
Customer C ZEC = 1,225
Customer D ZFED - 1,031

Each of the major customers represents a single external
customer whose sale transaction is generated from
E-commerce solutions segment and 020 solutions
segment of the Group.
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11. FINANCE COSTS 11. BIEER A
2019 2018
—E—h&E —ZT—\&F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AREBTT

Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEAEN S (MiF21)

(note 21) 119 -
Interest expenses on bank loans IRITERAEZ H 478 533
597 533
12. INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. FIEHES

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as follows: ERBERERZAEHAT
2019 2018
—E-NAEFE —T)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTT

Current tax — PRC EIT REARRIE — RIS

Provision for the year FREE - -
Deferred tax (note 37) EIERIE (K3 37)

Provision for the year FREE (8,100) (1,921)
Income tax credit Frig i o (8,100) (1,921)
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12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued) 12. FIEFHIERE (E)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject
to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements since the Group has
sufficient tax loss brought forward to set off against the
assessable profit for the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in
which the Group’s subsidiaries operate, based on existing
legislation, interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

One of the Group's subsidiaries operating in Suzhou, the
PRC, was recognised as an advance technology enterprise
(BFTHEAMT %) in 2019 and was entitled to enjoy an income
tax concession at preferential rate of 15% effective from 1
January 2019. In order to enjoy the preferential rate of 15%,
the subsidiary is required to apply for renewal every three
years from first year of approval.
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12.

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued) 12.

The reconciliation between the income tax credit and the
product of loss before tax multiplied by the PRC EIT rate is as

follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BiE =%

PR (&)

—NFETZA=t—HRLLEE

FT 15 5 #5522 B2 Bk 7 Al 85 18 3k DA P B
THEAAEMME 2 EREERNOT ¢

2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Loss before tax BRI AIES 1B (60,500) (64,335)
Tax at the PRC EIT rate of 25% 1z B b 2 PS T K 25%
(2018: 25%) —E—)\F : 25%)
s piE (15,125) (16,084)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable ~ HZERFIUL A 2 T 15 5 £ (843) (4,134)
Tax effect of expenses that are not TR B2 BB E
deductible 5,679 17,170
Tax effect of temporary differences REERE S =5 M TEE I8
and tax losses not recognised RS & 1,489 2,197
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses AR AR ERTIAER
not previously recognised IR E (317) (49)
Tax effect of tax concession MBEECBHBTE (8) -
Tax effect of different tax rates of B AR TRBE,
subsidiaries TR 2 1,025 (1,021
Income tax credit FriSiiE s (8,100) (1,921)
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13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. FEEE
The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging/ REBARKFEEBEBDING (T A)
(crediting) the following: TH&IE
2019 2018
—E-hEFE T N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AREBTT

Allowance for inventories FERE 1,718 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease T E TR R
payments® - 56
Auditor's remuneration* ZEENEN
— Audit services — ZERE
— Current year — RNEE 1,128 1,099
— Other services — HAith iR 261 34
1,389 1,133
Cost of inventories sold FEHERK 9,423 1,958
Depreciation on property, plant and ME - WENRETE
equipment 1,448 1,819
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEENE 1,594 -
3,042 1,819
Direct operating expenses of investment A A& WA 2
properties that generate rental REMEAEREE
income’ 612 470
Gain on disposal of property, plantand  HEWE - HE &
equipment H 2 W (5) (80)
Gain on disposal of construction in HEFZEIREREKE
progress = 3)
Research and development costs* T 3% B AN - 1,625
Write-off on construction in progress’  ££ & T 2 Hfi 4 * — 12
Operating leases* charges in respect of HRIA T KB Z K& LTHE
EH
— Office premises in Hong Kong — BEZBTEYE = 873
— Leasehold land in the PRC —HEZEE LT - 1,843
- 2,716
# Included in other operating expenses. i BRETEMEEER -
*  Research and development costs mainly consisted of staff cost * o ERAEZRFEA R ALGER
which was excluded from employee benefit expenses as BHEABIEFE s BETRIER
disclosed in the face of the consolidated financial statements. ZETITHAK -
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14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 14. EIEFNEH
2019 2018
=E2E-REFE —FT)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AREBTT

Staff costs (including directors’ BETIA(BREEEMHE X
emoluments and amount classified as 8 A AN £ %8
research and development cost)

— Salaries, bonus and allowance — ¥ & B4 BORRL 21,924 21,461
— Retirement benefit — RRIEFIFTEI K
scheme contributions 1,766 1,884
— Severance payment —BEE 58 445
23,748 23,790
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year AEBAFEREZRaTWALTE
included two (2018: two) directors whose emoluments are EREZ(—TE—N\F WMB)EE
reflected in the analysis presented in note 15 to the EMES DO REGEE UM BERERMTISFT
consolidated financial statements. The emoluments of the DM AR - ESp=2(=—F— N\
remaining three (2018: three) individuals are set out below: FE=ZZ)ATZMEWT -
2019 2018
—E-NAEFE = N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTT

Salaries and allowances e MoERL 2,808 2,262

Retirement benefit scheme IRRAEFFT B3R
contributions 86 101
2,894 2,363
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14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued) 14. ETR/ANEH(H)

The emoluments fell within the following band: EMeAERINT :

Number of individuals

AH
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 (equivalent to Nil to FEHZ T 251,000,000 7T
RMB882,000 (2018: Nil to RMB846,000)) (BERARBZLE
AR 882,000 7T
(ZE—N\F: A\ARBEZE
AR ¥ 846,0007T)) 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 (equivalent ¥ 1,000,001 TE
to RMB882,001 to RMB1,322,000 7% 1,500,000 7T (FBE R
(2018: RMB846,001 to RMB1,268,000)) AR# 882,001 TE
AR 1,322,0007T
(ZF—N\%F:
AR 846,001 TE
AR 1,268,0007T)) 2 1
During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Group MRAFE » NREBEWES s ER
to the directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set TXAEES A S &S 5
out below as an inducement to join or upon joining the AT ZHRIE - ERRSIEZEMEN
Group or as compensation for loss of office. RMBREER 2 2R - SIEABE

BB 2 fl{E
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15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15. EER/A R ERS

The remuneration of each director is set out below:

BEFZHMEMNT

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BECE-NET-AZTHLEE

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and Discretionary scheme
Fees  allowances bonus  contributions Total
BUREAN
e HeREl HETA SIS -
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥TR AR%TR AR%®TR AR%Tn
Name of director EZEB
Executive directors HITES
Mr.Yang Xin Min (redesigned 1587 554 (1
asanon-executivedirector  —E—AEF+ZA
on 16 December 2019) TARAES
FHITES) - 1,413 881 - 2,294
Mr.Yang Zhen (resignedon ~ BELAE
16 December 2019) (M=%
TZATRBET) - 842 882 39 1,763
Mr.Ho ChiKin (appointed on [ BHER 4
16 December 2019) (R=ZF—N%E
TZAT BEZA) = 131 = 1 132
- 2,386 1,763 40 4,189
Independent Non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Dr. Cheng Faat Ting Gary HETET 223 2 - - 225
Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael ERBEE 223 2 = - 225
Mr. Peng Bobo TRREE 181 2 - - 183
Mr.Tsui Francis King Chung &8 44
(appointed on (RZZ-NE
16 December 2019) TZATRBEZA) 12 - - - 12
Mr.Tang YatMing Edward S BER%4
(appointed on (RZZ-NF
16 December 2019) TZATRBEZA) 12 - - - 12
651 6 - - 657
Total for 2019 R=B-nE&5 651 2,392 1,763 40 4,846
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

190

The remuneration of each director is set out below:

(Continued)

15. EEEN R ELR (E)

BEZZHME AT - (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZ-\(t-A=t—RHIL=FE

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
RIKREF
we HekER REIGS Bat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT  ARBTT ARETR AR®Txn

Name of director EEAE
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Yang Xin Min BIREE - 1353 - 1353
Mr. Kwan Che Hang Jason BEERE
(resigned on 1 June 2018) (RN=—B-N&E
~NA—HEHE) 63 523 10 59
Mr. Yang Zhen BERE - 609 15 624
63 2485 25 2,573
Independent Non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Dr. Cheng Faat Ting Gary HETEL %3 - - 93
Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael ERBLAE 85 - - 85
Mr. Peng Bobo (appointed YRR E (R
on 27 December 2018) “T-N\F+=A
— L BEE() ! - - 1
Mr.Yang Wei Qing (resigned 5B &4 (R
on 14 November 2018) “T-N\F+—A
TR BHE) 74 - - 74
253 - - 253
Total for 2018 RZT—\FH 316 2485 25 2,826
Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors ERXN ETBTHRAERFEME

waived any emoluments during the year (2018: Nil).

SMERRWEERME (ZF
—\F &) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company and the director’'s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

16. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“"MPF Scheme’) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The Group's contributions to the MPF Scheme
are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages subject to a
monthly maximum amount of contribution of HK$1,500 per
employee and vest fully with employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC are members of a central pension scheme (the
“Scheme”) operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the
central pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The
local municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of these subsidiaries. The only obligation of
this subsidiary with respect to the central pension scheme is
to meet the required contributions under the Scheme.

The Group's total contributions to these schemes charged to
the profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to RMB1,766,000 (2018: RMB1,884,000)
representing contributions paid and payable by the Group to
the schemes at the appropriate rates set by the local
government where the subsidiaries operate.

15.

16.

2019 FFR
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EAM IR RBENRARKE
1766000L( Z T — NF: ARK
1,884,0007T) * BN A& BB A 7]
BB 2 BT RE 28R
BEMZEHECBARESM
RS o

MRS ERERAERAT

191



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

17. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

18. LOSS PER SHARE

192

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB37,926,000
(2018: RMB56,688,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 5,635,970,924 (2018:
4,838,535,136) in issue during the year.

No diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 is presented as the Company
had no potential ordinary shares outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. Y% - BERRE
Buildings Office
and leasehold equipment Motor
improvement  and fixtures vehicles Total
BFER N
HERY REHERE "E Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARETE ARETT ARETE

Cost AR

At 1 January 2018 “E-N\F—A—H 8,729 8,627 2,383 19,739
Additions NE 36 78 - 114
Write-off g (642) (3601) - (4,243)
Disposals & - (498) - (498)
Exchange differences M =R 7 26 - 33

At 31 December 2018 and RZZE—N\F

1 January 2019 +-A=+—8k
—T-nF—-A—H 8,130 4,632 2,383 15,145
Additions NE 177 185 1,103 1,465
Disposals HE - (44) - (44)
Exchange differences PE N ZERR 4 1 - 15
At 31 December 2019 R_T—N%F
+ZA=+—H 8,311 4,784 3,486 16,581

Accumulated depreciation Rt HTERFHE
and impairment

At 1 January 2018 -\ —HA—-H 2,507 7437 1,002 10,946
Charge for the year FAYH 717 561 541 1,819
Write-off 34 (642) (3,601) - (4,243)
Disposals HE - (459) - (459)
Exchange differences bE N ERR 5 17 - 2

At 31 December 2018 and RZE—N\&E

1 January 2019 +ZA=+—8k
—T-NF-A—H 2,587 3,955 1,543 8,085
Charge for the year FRZH 733 228 487 1,448
Disposals HE - (41) - (41)
Exchange differences R =5 3 9 - 12
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NEF
+=ZA=+—H 3,323 4,151 2,030 9,504
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. % - BFE K& (F)

(Continued)
Buildings Office
and leasehold equipment Motor
improvement  and fixtures vehicles Total
BFRK BAE
HEBH REEKE AE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TRT AR®TT ARBTR
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2019 RZT—NF
+-HA=+—H 4,988 633 1,456 7,077
At 31 December 2018 RZT—N\F
+-A=+—H 5543 677 840 7,060

Notes: At 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the Group's
property, plant and equipment pledged as security for the
Group's bank loans of RMB9,000,000 (2018: RMB9,000,000)
(note 34) amounted to RMB4,812,000 (2018: RMB5,248,000).
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20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out the investment properties under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one to five years, with
unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond initial period held
by lessees only. Majority of the lease contracts contain market
review clauses in the event the lessee exercises the option to
extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The
lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/
or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease

20. REWE

AEBRBELKLEHERERAE

T RASZNES  HEVIZHE
HR—ZE20F MABARBEY
SHBPRBETEBEHEBEN - KED
HEAMYBESMERIER &

AEETHATTIEBAE R -

EHERHT ARMAEESN
SEERZARNEEEIE &
AEEWEAZIINERR - HES
K ABEREERREREEA
REETERBERE &R -

term.
2019 2018
—B-hE —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT AR®BTT
At 1 January N—HA—H 55,800 56,600
Fair value gain/(loss) AR EMNE (EE) 1,200 (800)
At 31 December Rt+=—B=+—H 57,000 55,800

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2019 and 2018 was valued on income
capitalisation approach by taking into account the net rental
income of the existing lease and achievable in the existing
market with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the lease. The valuation was performed by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of chartered
surveyors.

There was no change in the valuation approach for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. The fair value of the
Group's investment properties is within level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy.

RZE-NEER_ZFT—N\F+=A
=+—H AEEREVMEZLR
BEIDEHEBRABAREEGE 25
NMEBHHRITRBEBEMSREZ
MeWAFRE - WA EESE
FWRAELEEZER - RIEMEH
BT AEMTHENGEERA
a)ETT o

BE-Z-AFR-F-N\F+=
A=+— B E2 (EEH R L
28 ARBRENEL DA BE
DAAEERE=BRER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 20. REYW= (&)
The Group's investment properties at its carrying amounts are REEREELZEBRESTWOT ¢

analysed as follows:

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AREBTT

The PRC: R
Medium-term lease HHAE & 57,000 55,800
At 31 December 2019, the investment properties were RZZE-AFT+ZA=+—80 &
pledged as security for the Group's bank loans (note 34). EMECEREREREBBITER
Z A3 (5E34) o
21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 21. ERAEEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
ME i HEWZE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFTT AR®TRT ARBTET
At 1 January 2019 R_ZE—-NF—H—H
(note 3(a)(b)) (K1t 3@@)b) 2,062 2,235 4,297
Additions NE - 1,382 1,382
Depreciation e (56) (1,538) (1,594)
Exchange differences b i, =28 - 11 1
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=—A=+—H 2,006 2,090 4,096
Lease liabilities of RMB2,005,000 are recognised with related N—ZE—hE+-_HA=+—8"
right-of-use assets of RMB4,096,000 as at 31 December 2019. S8 EARK20050007TEEBIE
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other BB E AR 4096000 7T — B #E
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by Do BHAABENHEELSEE
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for REEZSHN  MEWZE T I
borrowing purposes. 4 REEETSREEERER -
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AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

1. EAEEE (&)

2019

—E-NF

RMB’000

AR®T T

Depreciation on right-of-use assets CREEENE 1,594
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBBNEXE (Gt AMBEKA)

(included in finance cost) (note 11) (K1) 119

Expenses relating to short-term lease (included in - R HAFEE S 1
other operating expenses) (GtAHEMKEER) 716

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 41(b).

For both years, the Group leases offices and land for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of
one to three years, but may have extension and termination
options as described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies
the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns an office building located in the
PRC. The Group is the registered owner of this property
interest, including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire the land interest.
The leasehold land components of this owned property is
presented separately only if the payments made can be
allocated reliably.

At 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the Group's
right-of-use assets related to leasehold lands of RMB2,006,000
(2018: RMB2,062,000 classified under prepaid land lease
payments) were pledged as security for the Group’s bank
loans (note 34).

HEREREHL
41(b) °

CRE

B BHNME

RMEFEE  AEEGREEEH
EMnEREH - IFILZEHES
WRBM—Z2=%F B0 FXAAR
THEMLK PEERE - HEGX
REMNEELETER ABEZR
R AR R B AR - IR TE ML I
AR RMESE s RER - K&
BEAGHOERRLEEA KRB
HBTTHORRRE] o

tEoh - REBHER — B R P EH
WMAEXE - NEERLYEER
(BIEEERE ) 2 AMEB A -
EEH — RN FARS ik -
tEEMERZHEL AR E
EREAISEDRAIEL 2R EE

E

R-ZZFE—-NFF+_A=+—H ' =&
EEAFEETHEMEAARE
2006000 ( ZF — N\F: ARK
2,062,000 T $8 A T E FB 1 70
ZEREEECERIEAASEEIR
TER TG (KIFE34) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

22. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 22, EEIRE
RMB'000
ARET T
Cost Jo @i N
At 1 January 2018 —T—-N\F—H—H 978
Disposal e (M
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R-_E—N\F+-_A=+—H
N_ZE-NF—H—H 977
Additions NE 320
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—-NE+-_HA=+—H 1,297
Accumulated impairment Z:tEE
At 1 January 2018 —T—-)\F—H—H (965)
Impairment RIE (12)
At 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019 and N—_E—-NF+_A=+—8"
31 December 2019 —“ET-NhF-HA—HBK
—E-NF+=-—A=+—H (977)
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NF+-A=1+—H 320
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZE—N\F+-_A=+—H -
The Group's construction in progress as at 31 December 2019 AEERZZE-—NFT+ZA=+—
comprises costs incurred on computer hardware, machinery, A ERTIRERENFLE 2SN
equipment pending installation and leasehold improvement W s REER —EZRF
of an office in the PRC. W AEHERFTEEKR
All projects from IDM solutions segment were terminated GEEFHEMAFTRDE A
during 2018, all construction in progress of computer HEARZZE-N\FRE FLEE
hardware, machinery and equipment pending installation FERE MBS RRECEERZTL
was fully impaired for the year ended 31 December 2018. BERBEZE-_FT—-NF+=A

=t HLEFEZ2ZRE -

198 | Smartac Group China Holdings Limited 2019 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E =T —NEFE+=-A=+—HILLFE

23. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 23.

The Group's interests in prepaid land lease payments
represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net
book values are analysed as follows:

T EERNK

AEERTHHEERN R 2 EmE
BMEEHENK REZREF
BT

RMB'000

ARETTT

At 1 January 2018 R-_E—-—N\F—H—H 2,118

Amortisation for the year FNEE (56)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZE—N\F+_A=+—"HK

Reclassification due to adoption of IFRS 16 RN PR B S iR 5 HE RIS 16 5%

(note 3 (a)(b)) B DR (MaE 3a)b)) (2,062)

At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—hF+-_A=1+—H -

2018

—E-)\F

RMB'000

ARETTT

Current portion TENER 56

Non-current portion FETRENEB 2,006

Non-current portion JEMBIEL D 2,062

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's leasehold properties are
located in the PRC under medium-lease of fifty years.

As at 31 December 2018, the prepaid land lease payments
were pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans (note 34).

R-ZF-N\F+-_A=F+—H &
SECHEMELCRNTEAE+F
ZHEEORE -

RZE-NE+=_B=+—8" %
WHEBNREERIEAREEIR
TER R (MEE34) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

24. GOODWILL 24, BHE
020 solutions segment
020RARD B
E-commerce
solutions Software Hardware
segment  development installation Total
ETEK
BRERDH BHRE BHRE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NG NS ARETL ARETT
(note () (note (b)) (note (b))
(Kt @) (Kt b)) (Kt b))
Cost A
At 1 January 2018, RZZ-\F-A-H"
31 December 2018, —E-)N\F
1 January 2019 and +-A=+-8"
31 December 2019 “E-NE—-R—H
kZT-NEF
+-A=1+-H 59,883 56,093 1,46 117222

Accumulated impairment R RERR

losses
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\F—A—H - 56,093 1,46 57,339
Impairment loss EER 48432 - - 48432
At 31 December 2018 and RZZ-\F
1 January 2019 +ZA=+-B%
“Z-NE¥-A-A 48,432 56,093 1,246 105,771
Impairment loss REEE 11,451 - - 11,451
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+-F=1t-H 59,883 56,093 1,246 117,222
Carrying amount EEE
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+-A=1-H = - - ,
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F
+=ZR=1+—-H 11451 - - 11451
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at REBE ORI 2 B TR IKE
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from BOREEHAASEREREHZ
that business combination. REEEEM -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BiE =%

24. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Group acquired 51% of the equity interest in LCE Group in
2017. The goodwill arising from the acquisition is wholly
allocated to CGU of E-commerce solutions operations.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined on
the basis of its value in use calculations using discounted cash
flow method. The key assumptions for the discounted cash
flow method are those regarding the discount rates, growth
rates and budgeted gross margin and turnover during the
period. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rate is
based on long-term average economic growth rate of the
geographical area in which the business of the CGU operates.
Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based on past
practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the
next five years with the residual period using the growth rate
of 3% (2018: 3%). This rate does not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant markets. The pre-tax rates
used to discount the forecast cash flows is 22.5% (2018: 24.4%).

Before impairment testing, the carrying amount of goodwill
allocated to CGU of E-commerce solutions operations was
RMB11,451,000 (2018: RMB59,889,000). This CGU of
E-commerce solutions operations did not perform as expected
because of:

() the decrease in commission rate offered by brand
partners due to the change of e-commerce channel;

(i) some brand partners turndown the engagement with
the LCE Group due to the economic uncertainty in local
market; and

(i) certain brand partners did not renew their agency
agreements with the LCE Group due to the poor sales
performance from the e-commerce platform
management by the LCE Group.

AR

—NFETZA=t—HRLLEE

24, & (&)

st -

(a)

2019 FFER PEIEEE

RZZE—+F ANEBRELCE
Group 2. 51% I 7 o 5% Y2 % BT EE A
HERHOIREEEFEBEASTR
”‘*BZZE%ﬂiF‘EEEELLo

R EE BN ESRBEIRE
HEREEXRBERRERELE
o MRBREREEZERMR

HEHAZHERER - RREXREBEEE
MEREXRBAE -  AEERBR
BRILL R TR R - BRARRTLAT
hERRMBESELEN 2 EHRE
MEERERZREMHFE - &
RNRBERSEEEURGEEH

Rz R EEBR R R
He A#%f‘JT&M%%ETﬁ%’EA

EEIIEMSERBMGE

AEBGERZBSRETRA - IR
BREEERBREDF LRSI

g R R A3%(ZF— )\ F : 3%)
CRITHAM SIS o ZIBRERTER

BEEMSNFYRAKEER -8
AIIR & 2 FTER B &9 KR Bl AT AL IR =R
B225% (ZZF—)\F 1 244%) °

ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁw =T FE5
BRI 2 @EEA“uZﬁiéEZﬁE
mEAAREI11451007T(ZF
—N\F : AR#598890007T) ° &
FREBHERTREBERGEEEN
FIBARUWTEH - TR

() EREFEHEHHRZD
ﬁm%aw%ﬁhu2ﬁ$
BT

(i) HEAMTISEFELBESEN
TR METREAE
BHEBICEEERE K

(il HEHICEEEEEZETFEB
FTHZHEHERARE WA
TR EREI EEICE
EEEERER S -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

24. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

202

(Continued)

Accordingly, the Group has revised its cash flow forecasts for
this CGU. The recoverable amount of the CGU has been
substantially reduced to zero (2018: RMB54,024,000). Therefore,
impairment losses on goodwill and non-current assets were
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2019 and the charges to profit or loss are analysed as follows:

24, BHE(E&)

Kiet - (&)

(a)

(%)

REBEAMSETEREASEES
RS RETER - FEEEEN
2R RS EABRES(ZF
— N\ AR¥540240007T) °
It EEMERBEE RESE
REE_ZT-—NF+ZA=FHIE
FEZERER  mRBEENk2
DTN

2019

o
RMB’000
ARET T

Goodwill S
Intangible assets (note 25)

B EE (Mt 25)

11,451
26,962

Charged to profit or loss

RIBE A

38,413

The Group acquired 51% of the equity interest in Virtual City
Limited ("VCL") in 2013. The goodwill arising from the
acquisition is allocated to CGU of software development and
CGU of hardware installation respectively under the 020
solutions segment.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined
on the basis of their value in use calculations using discounted
cash flow method. The key assumptions for the discounted
cash flow method are those regarding the discount rates,
growth rates and budgeted gross margin and turnover during
the period. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax
rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates
are based on long-term average economic growth rate of the
geographical area in which the businesses of the CGUs
operate. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based on
past practices and expectations on market development.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

24. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The Group prepared cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors for
the next five years with the residual period using the growth
rate of 3% in 2017. This rate did not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant markets. The rates used to
discount the forecast cash flows from the Group’s software
development activities was 19.4% for the year ended 31
December 2017. The amount was fully impaired in 2017.

The decrease in customers’ demand was attributable to the
keen competition in the market and the PRC's economic
downturn threatened the revenue generated from the CGU of
software development. The situation has still not yet been
improved since 2018. Hence, the recoverable amount of the
CGU of software development was still below the carrying
amount of the assets belong. No reversal of impairment on
software development cost was required in 2019.

24, & (&)

Kiat - ()

(b)

2019 FFH FEEHEEZERERLT

(#8)

AEBREZRSRETA IR
BEEMLERA _T—tFIER
E3nst EARRAF RFSRBHEZ
ROV BERE - ZIERXTEB
BTG TORMERE - BE—
T—+F+R=+—HIEFE "
AEBRMFEER 2FBRBRDR
EMRABERER4% - T
MR _E—tF2ERE-

BEPHBRKTHIIAR TS AAEF
REHRBREELEMMELK
AHRSHBEEETITZEHE - BEE
BRE-_Z-N\FRIDRRNE -
At - SRR EEEM A
WEEBNEREEMBREES
B ZREE BN T NFH
AR BT R 2 RE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

25. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 25. B EE
Software
development Customer Computer
costs relationship Software Trademark Total
gHBERE EFBK EREn BE szt
RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000 RMBI000
AEBTL  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR
(note(a) (note (b) (note (¢)) (note(d)

(W) (Wit m) (W) (Wit)

Cost A
A1 January 2018, R-F-\E-A-A"

31 December 2018 and “E-\#t-A=1-H

1 January 2019 R=F-NE-A-H 55752 40076 %0 . 95918
Additions hE - - PLS] 460 8]
At31 December 2019 RIE-NETZA=1-8 55,752 40,076 Ly} 460 96,661
Accumulated amortisation ZHEHRAERR

and impairment losses
At T January 2018 RZF-)\5-F-H 5575 - - - 5575
Amortisation for the year g - 6679 2% - 6,705
At 31 Decernber 2018 and R-E-NEt-R=1-H

1 January 2019 k=F-hE-R-H 55,752 6,679 2% - 62457
Amortisation for the year s - 6,679 m ] 6,783
Impaiment loss (note 24(0) WEEE(WitMe) - 26,718 244 - 26,962
At31 December 2019 RIE-NETZA=1-8 55,752 40,076 347 7 96,202
Carrying amount Kaf
At31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-f=1-H - - 26 433 459
At31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=1-H - 33307 64 - 33461
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

25. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Software development costs represent the self-developed
software for sales and are amortised over the estimated useful
life of 5 years. Software development costs belong to the CGU
of software development under O20 solutions segment,
details of the impairment testing are set out in note 24(b).

Customer relationship represents the customer base and
other business relationships built up in E-commerce solutions
operations and is amortised over the estimated useful life of 6
years. Customer relationship belongs to the CGU of
E-commerce solutions operations, details of impairment
testing are set out in note 24(a).

Computer software represents software acquired from third
party and is amortised over the useful life of 5 years.

Trademark represents trademark acquired from a third party
and is amortised over the useful life of 9 years.

25. BILEE (&)
FiE -

(@) EHFBEKRAEEIRBEAELE
ZEE - RS FIEF A AFEHMR
B - SRS 020 IR TT
EOMTEMHABEIREELSE
i - E O BB B A B R
24(b) °

b FEFAREEFERIKEETEHH
AT EDREL 2 Ht X5
B YReFEFAAFEFHRRNE
HeXFHEBETRBHERNR
DEZ MEELEL - HRERH
BB EE 24(a) ©

© EBREHEEF=TBAZEME-
WH 5 A BEFHREH -

d) RAEEEFE=TEREZEE IR
9 Al AR HIAEE5H o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 26. RB AT Z®RE

RZE-AF+ZRA=+—BZHK

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are as

206

follows: BARFENT

Place of

incorporation/ Issued capital/

establishment registered Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary and operation capital interest Principal activities

i

Bz B BRITRE
MEAREE kg HMER BEER2HLH TEEB

Direct Indirect
BE BF:3

Virtual City Limited BVI US$11,000 55.45% - Investment holding

RBRLES E£11,0007T RERER
Smartac Group Limited HK HKS$14,450,001 - 100%  Investment holding
BRUMEREEERRAR 30 514,450,001 7T REER
Smartac International Limited ~ HK HKS1 - 100%  Investment holding
BB ERAR AR EE BT REERR
Smartac Asia Limited HK HKS$1,000 - 100%  Inactive
REMEEONARRF EE A H1,0007T EER
Smartac Intelligent Systems Macau MOP100,000 - 100%  Inactive

Macau Limited RF SRPH 100,000 7T ERNER
BB R 5 ORF)
ARAH

Korea Accelerator Incorporated  Korea KRW500,000,000 - 100% Inactive

e 500,000,000 % ] ErER
Cloutac Networks Limited HK HK$ 1,160,000 - 51%  Inactive
REREMBRAR AR B0 551,160,000 7T ENER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 26. RMBARIZIRE (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued capital/
establishment registered Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary and operation capital interest Principal activities
it/
B it B BRITRE
MELTAH g HEMEAR BEEREDS 2L TEXB
Direct Indirect
H# A

Smartac China Limited HK HK$15,612,500 - 100%  Investment holding

BREETEARAR 5 B 15,6125007C RERR

RERAEGERB(HMN)  ThePRC US$3,310,000 - 100%  Investment holding
BARAR* P £$33100007T RERER
(PCS Carnegie Technology
(Suzhou) Limited)*

BN BB R R R The PRC RMB34,800,000 - 97.27%  Software development and
BRAR" H AR 348000007C IT support services
(Smartac Solutions MRS REARR
(Suzhou) Ltd) SER

BRNEIER BRI AR AR The PRC RMB2,000,000 - 85%  Software development and
(ShopperConnect (Suzhou) AR 2,0000007T IT support services
Limited)* YRR R E AR

X ERS

Tosun Limited BVI USST 100% - Investment holding

BEARLA RBRLES ES A REEMR

Cosmartec Limited HK HK$30,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding and

RTEERMBRAT BE 730,000,000 7T provision of electronic

payment related services
REZERRRHEEF L
Ellivers
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Issued capital/

26. RIFBEARZRE (&)

establishment registered Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary and operation capital interest Principal activities
i
BRI 2 BRTRE/
MEARBR RiEE HEfER BEER2LH TEEH
Direct Indirect
H# CiF:3
EEBMAERKRIR The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Management, operation and
BRAR i AR provision of market strategy
(Shanghai Jianerxiu Network 10,000,000 7T of online shops and
Technology Co, Limited)* e-commerce platforms
BrEBREFEETAN
BB BERRMALH
KRS
Haihai Travel Cloud Limited HK HK$21,400,000 - 70%  Provision of mobile
WIEREEBR AR o B 21,400,000 7T payment service
REB I RS
Select Sky Limited HK HK$24,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
EBRBRAF Bt 7 24,000,000 7C REER
BT YHEE (EH) The PRC HK$50,000,000 - 100%  Trading of goods
BRAR* i 71 50,000,000 7T HEEM
(Solomedia (Yixing) Limited)*
Great Sino Technology HK HK$237,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Development Limited N5 B B 237,000,000 7T REER
('GSTD")
ERMBRBERBRAA
([#H])
STFEHR(L8) The PRC HK$240,000,000 - 100%  Trading of goods
BRAR* i 78 240,000,000 7T HEEM
(Solomedia Digital (Shanghai)
Limited)*
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26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

Place of

incorporation/ Issued capital/

26. RKTEARZRE ()

establishment registered Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary and operation capital interest Principal activities
i
B it B BRITRE
MELTAH RiE&E HEMEAR BEEREDS 2L TEEH
Direct Indirect
H# A
EREETESEHRERDA" ThePRC RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Inactive
(Yixing Solomedia Advertising AR #1,0000007C ENER
Media Limited)*
Fame Top Corporation Limited ~ HK HK$10,000 - 100%  Trading of goods
ZRIBRRA B0 7B 100007T HEEM
LCE Group BVI US$10,000 51% - Investment holding
RERIES ££100007T REEK
LCE HK Limited HK HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
B0 #10,0007C RERER
LBWAMEERMBR AR The PRC RMBS5,000,000 - 100%  Trading of goods and
(Shanghai Shouhong H AR #5,0000007C provision of marketing
Information Technology strategy
Limited)* HEGm R 2 H R
HEREFERMARAR" ThePRC RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Trading of goods and
(Lucky Creation Enterprise AR 5,000,0007T provision of marketing

(Shanghai) Limited)*

2019 FFH FEEHEEZERERLT

strategy, management of
operation of online shop on
e-commerce platforms

HEEMmIRHEFEY
TafESHKR
REEERE
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Issued capital/

26. RIFBEARZRE (&)

establishment registered Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary and operation capital interest Principal activities
it/
jodos:chs BRTRE
MELTAH g HEMEX EEREDS 2L FEXB
Direct Indirect
B A
REERRIM(LE) The PRC RMB1,467,259 - 100%  Provision of marketing
el NS f ARHE14672597C strategy, management of
(Jianyi Information operation of online shop on
Technology (Shanghai) e-commerce platforms
Limited)" RUBTEBTRBELH
KR EEER
Upfront Success Limited BV USST 100% - Investment holding
RERIES ER1TT REER
Value Top Group Limited BVI US$50,000 - 100%  Investment holding
RERIES E£ 500007 REEK
World Gold Technology Limited  HK HKS1 - 100%  Not yet commenced business
E BT HAFRER
* These subsidiaries are foreign investment enterprises * ZEW B R T TIRIBERBURERK T

established pursuant to the law of the PRC. HINEIRE R -

Y ZEWBARRES BEAEEMN
ZEREMERT] -

These subsidiaries are registered with limited liability under
the law of the PRC.

# Being English translated names # EXWELE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 i ZE =T — NF+-A=+—HIFE

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 26. RIBAR2RE (&)

Notes: Kt -
The following table shows information on the subsidiaries that have TREINEFEAREET 5 EEANFEE
NCI material to the Group. The financial information represents BEZOHBRARER - FEERREK
amounts before inter-company eliminations. SEARRREEHAI S8 o
VCL LCE Group
Date of incorporation 28 August 2013 27 March 2017
FEffAk sz B AR —2—=%N\A=+N\A —T—tF=A=++tH
Place of incorporation BVI BVI
FEAK St 26 EBREIES EBRIHES
Principal place of business HKand the PRC The PRC
FEEEME, BB RFEH =
9% of ownership interests/voting rights held by NCI 44.55% 49%
RSB REEERREELLD
2019 2018 2019 2018
—B-hE —E-)N\F S —E-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT ARBF T ARBTTT

At 31 December: R+=B=+—H

Non-current assets FEREEE 64,381 63,808 227 33,562
Current assets TRBEE 11,278 11,578 21,325 26,850
Current liabilities THAaE (16,981) (17,633) (12,260) (12/432)
Non-current liabilities FRBERE (13,099) (12,851) - (8,349)
Net assets FEE 45,579 44902 9,292 39,631

Accumulated NCI ER Elauliis £ 20,305 20,004 4,553 19419
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

212

Notes: (Continued)

Kiat - (&)

26. RKTEARZRE ()

VCL LCE Group
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-hE —TN\EF —E-NF —E-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R AREFT AR®T T ARBFIL
Year ended 31 December: BZ2+=-H=1t—H
LFE
Profit/(loss) and total Ui,/ (E8) BaH
comprehensive income Wi Bg 677 (4,750) (30,339) (7,500)
Loss allocated to NCI HECEIEERER BB 337 (1,854) (14,866) (3675)
Net cash (used in)/generated mEEE(RR)/EE
from operating activities 2ERE - (2,240) (8,365) 11,784
Net cash (used in)/generated REEE(FER)/ELE
from investing activities 2FRE (25) 1,104 (502) 12
Net cash (used in)/generated BEEHFER)EL
from financing activities 2FRE (478) 597 - -
Exchange reserves ERzR= (16) 91) 70 -
Net (decrease)/increase in RekBAeZEY
cash and cash equivalents (R /s nsaE (519) (630) (8,797) 11,796
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27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHE =T —NF+=ZA=+—HIFE

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 27. A—EEEQATZRE
2019 2018
—E-hAE —T)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR®ET T
Unlisted investment: FELEMEE :
Share of net assets E(EEEE 3,934 2,871
Goodwill S 7,224 7,224
11,158 10,095
Less: Accumulated impairment loss (note (b)) & : 2&TREEE (K13 b)) (7,224) (7,224)
3,934 2,871
Note: Bfat -
(@)  Details of the Group's associate at 31 December 2019 are as @ AEER-_Z—NFt+-_A=1+—
follows: A& NRFRBAT -
Place of Percentage of
Name establishment Registered capital  ownership interest Principal activities
=g B3t B HftER REREEZTOL TEEHR
R B The PRC RMB6,060,606 274% Provision of information
ERAA HE AR 6,060,606 70 inquiries and sharing
("Zewei") services
EEEBERRN REEAEAR
ERAR (2] DERB
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & E=F

27. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(a)

214

(Continued)

—NETA=t—HRLLEE

The following table shows information on the associate that is

27. A—EHERTRZRE (F)
Kt - (&)
@ (&)
T&R#F - HEAEETEBEX
MBS A RVERL o A IR

material to the Group. This associate is accounted for in the

consolidated financial statements using the equity method.

The summarised financial information presented is based on

the associate’s adjusted management financial statements

prepared under IFRS.

BEGDATABREMBERER -
2IMBER R HERZBE R
AIZBIR M A IR R R 2 R

EEEMB®MRK

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFIT
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8":
Non-current assets EMENEE 310 539
Current assets TENEE 16,608 11,585
Non-current liabilities ErRBAaE (206) (206)
Current liabilities mEAaE (2,356) (1,441)
Net assets FEE 14,356 10,477
Group's share of net assets REBELFEE 3,934 2,871
Goodwill EES 7,224 7,224
Group's share of carrying
amount of interests REFEELRRREE 11,158 10,095
Year ended 31 December: BE+-—A=+—HLEE:
Revenue WA 32,953 12,869
Profit/(loss) for the year and FRHEF,(E18) &
total comprehensive income FHEW BT 3,879 (642)
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AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

27. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The recoverable amount of the investment in Zewei, is
determined from the value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
regarding the discount rate, growth rate and budgeted
revenue. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax
rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the investment in Zewei.
The growth rate is based on long-term average economic
growth rate of the geographical area in which Zewei operates.
Budgeted revenue are based on expectations on market
development of related operations.

The cash flow forecasts of Zewei were derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors covering a
five-year period using a growth rate of 3%. The pre-tax rate
used to discount the forecast cash flow is 23.5% (2018: 21.5%)
Since the recoverable amount of Zewei was approximate to its
carrying amount, no impairment loss was recognised in 2019
(2018: Nil).

As at 31 December 2019, the bank and cash balances of the
Group's associate in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted
to RMB13,234,000 (2018: RMB10,994,000). Conversion of RMB
into foreign currencies and remittance of RMB out of the PRC
are subject to the foreign exchange control regulations
imposed by the PRC government.

27. R—EBEQTZRE (&)

ffet - (&

(b)

2019 FFH FEEHEEZERERLT

REZ@ 2RO SR IRERE
EFfEEE - ERABEHEMS R
TERRDEPRE R ELE
HEXBAME - AEEERARMR
EAIM S BB EREENE R
B 2 ER R < FRILAT L R G
FTRRIR R o ERKRTIENFRLE
PR 2 REITF IR ERRE -
BEEEELENEREE RS
MSEER

BEZReREBRANTREBESM
HEFRERRIGTERERSE
B 7 S BRBA 7S TEE - FALABRIRTA
B3RS MEZBRBIATEL & A235%
(ZF—)\F :215%) - B EH
2R El SR EIREEMAS - &)
YR T — W FRRREEIE
ZE-N\F |

RZE-NF+ZA=+—H =&
EE P HBEEQNRIUARESE
ZHRITRBESEFTAARE
13234000 (ZE—N\F : AR
10,994,0007T) ° 1§ A R H iR AN
e K B ) R B3R H1NB 3 ST AR BB
B2 INEE BT ©
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI 28. A REFAEMEZEKEZ

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—)\F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARBTT

FREEE
FE LT IR RE 75

Non-current assets
Unlisted equity securities

The unlisted equity securities represented an investment of
1.81% equity interest in a private company established in the
PRC.

The fair value of this investment at 31 December 2019 and
2018 was valued on market comparison approach with
reference to market comparable ratio of listed companies
engaging in similar business of the investee. The valuation
was performed by AVISTA Valuation Advisory Limited
("AVISTA"), an independent valuation firm. By taking into
account of the valuation prepared by AVISTA, the
management considered the fair value of the financial assets
at FVTOCI at 31 December 2019 was still immaterial.

The above financial assets at FVTOC! are denominated in RMB.

During the year 2018, the Group disposed its 2.44% (which
was diluted to 2.1803% during 2018) entire equity interests in
another private company established in the PRC at a
consideration of RMB2,800,000 and related cost incurred for
the disposal was RMB170,000. The Group disposed the
investment for the purpose of partial settlement of bank loan
outstanding. The reserve related to this investment had been
transferred from financial assets at FVTOCI reserves to
accumulated losses upon disposal.
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29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E =T —NEFE+=-A=+—HILLFE

INVENTORIES 29. &
2019 2018
ZEB-AF  —ZEN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETIT
Finished goods gAY T 5,991 2,795
Less: Allowance o B (2,681) (948)
3,310 1,847
Reconciliation of allowance for inventories: TFEBEEER -
2019 2018
—2-NF ZF)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETIT
At 1 January n—H—H 948 949
Write-off b€ - (39
Allowance for the year FREE 1,718 -
Exchange differences b W = RE 15 38
At 31 December Rt+=—HB=+—H 2,681 948
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 30. EWERF R HAtEUW R
2019 2018
—E-AF —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AREBTT

Trade receivables (note (a)) FEUR BR =X (K15E 3)) 6,273 2,653
Less: Allowance o B (410) (560)
5,863 2,093
Deposits (note (b)) & (KaF®) 7,578 2472
Prepayments SEEN 1,789 1,076
Other receivables H fib e sk
— Settlement obligation receivable — RYOEEEE (M3 ()
(note (c)) 1,553 3,761
— Others (note (d)) — HAth (B7E ) 2,741 791
19,524 10,193
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E =T —NEFE+=-A=+—HILLFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note:

(a)

Trade receivables

The Group's trading terms with customers are mainly on
credit. The credit terms generally range from 1 to 90 days. For
new customers, payment in advance is normally required. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the
directors and senior management.

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables, based on
the invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

30. EWBRFI R H A FEUR TR (48)

iz -

(a)

& I AR R

AEBEXP 2B S RTIMEET
ABE - EABR-—KRNTF1E0
R IBEPBEAIMENRK - K
SR 1B 0 SRARFS BRARE B R 48 B UK
- BEEREREEABTHE
R HAERER

REBEZERAHY  NKEERER
(REHIBR ) 2 BRie DATIA T -

2019 2018

=E-NF —E-N\EF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREFT

Up to 3 months 3fE AR 5,799 1,950
3 to 6 months 3E6MEA 10 -
6 months to 1 year 6fEAZEF 46 63
Over 1 year TEE 8 80
5,863 2,093

The carrying amounts of the Group's net trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

AEBEURFOFREZREEAT
SIEHEHE

2019 2018
—ZE—-hF —E-N\EF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

HKS ki 61 1071
RMB AR 3,585 1,992
uss$ ETT 2,217 -
5,863 2,093
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

31.

No

(b)

te: (Continued)

Included amounts of RMB2,860,000 represented guarantee
deposits paid to suppliers to ensure the stability of goods

supply.

The amount as at 31 December 2019 was received after year
end from an e-commerce partner for settlement of the
obligations as disclosed in note 32(b).

Reversal of impairment loss of RMB190,000 (2018:
RMB11,644,000 impairment loss) on VAT recoverable was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2019 due to
utilisation of VAT recoverable during the year.

30. EWBRFA R H A FEUR R (48)

Kiet - (&)

(b)

ZECBEBIEE MR ER S HRE
& AR#2860,0007C @ LAHERE @

AN EE 32(0) AR - R=F— L
FTZA=1T—HZFETIRER
BREFRBBHAENETR
HY -

HE-_Z—NAF+_-_A=t+tHLF
& ARTEF NE) B ERIK
MUk S E RN R R A R 18
AR#19000070 (ZF— N\F : &
BB ARE11,6440007T)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 31 AERBEESEEY
2019 2018
—E-hF ZZ=—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Bank and cash balances IRTT IR 8k 85,931 252,459

Time deposits mature within =@ A AEIE 2 EBER

three months (note (a)) (Htet @) 140,443 -
226,374 252,459
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AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

31. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
Note:

(@)  The Group placed time deposits with banks with high credit-
rating assigned by international credit-rating agencies in Hong
Kong, with fixed maturities and fixed interest rate which
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The interest rate on short-term bank deposits were ranging
from 2.08% to 2.45% in 2019 per annum.
The balance were denominated in HKS.

(b)  Asat 31 December 2019, bank balance of RMB1,636,000 (2018:

RMB1,443,000) was restricted for the purpose of settlement
obligations as set out in note 32(b).

The carrying amounts of the Group's cash and cash
equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

31. BeRBEEEY (&)
Wizt -

@ AEESEREFFNERRER
AERBFRREEFRZEER
17 REEEE A &IZE EH =
AR SARKEAXAAREMNERE

72N
i

o o
2

RIZE—NF BHETERZF
R F2.08% &= 2.45% ©

REERIG LB EHE -

by MZE-—hLF+—A=+—H:' A
R#163600m(ZZFE—N\F: A
R #1,4430007C ) IR1T & TR A A
YEMIZE32(0) FREEE B ©

AEEREMACSEYMIREE
AT EEHE -

2019 2018
—g-hE —TNE
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARKETT

uss E7T 51 50
HKS B 212,664 229,764
RMB AR 13,652 22635
Others Hib 7 10

226,374 252,459

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's bank and cash balances
held by the PRC subsidiaries denominated in RMB amounted
to RMB13,367,000 (2018: RMB22,633,000). Conversion of RMB
out of the PRC are subject to the foreign exchange control
regulations imposed by the PRC government.

AZE—NF+_A=+—H" 'K
EEFRWBRATFAARES
BEZROTERSEGFHNAARE
13367000 (ZF—N\F: ARK
22,633,0007T) © AR KB INE
WHEHPEBRINEETHRREBNE
B2 INE B HIFRTE ©

2019 FFH FEHEHEEERERAT | 221



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 32, ENERR EBENR
2019 2018

—g-nE -—T-N\&F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AREBTT

Trade payables (note (a)) FERTBREN (KTt (a)) 1,590 1,069
Other payables HAth B R
— Settlement obligation (note (b)) — BEEEHEWB) 3,190 5,204
— Other tax payables — H b e ELIB 301 114
— Rental deposits from tenants — BHEPYWE NS 1,159 1,147
— Others — Efth 2,175 1,653
Capital gain tax payable (note (c)) BRI EREN R (M ) 6,602 6,467
Provision for social security costs HEREERAEE 5,412 4716
Accrued expenses TERER 2,542 2,986
22,971 23,356
Note: Kt -
@  The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables, based on @ REKSH=ZAREEH KEH
the date of receipt of goods or service consumed, is as follows: JERTBRF BRI AT AT -
2019 2018
—g-hg T NF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Up to 3 months 3ME AR 882 400
3to 6 months 3Z61EA - 23
6 months to 1 year 6AAZE1F = 6
Over 1 year TFE 708 640

1,590 1,069
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 i ZE =T — NF+-A=+—HIFE

32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
Note: (Continued)
(@)  (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

32. BEMIRAR H MK ()
His ()
@ ()

AEERMNERZEEEATIE

WA -
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

RMB AR 1,350 751
HKS ik 240 318
1,590 1,069

(b)  The settlement obligations are recognised upon receipt of
fund mainly from the end user customers of WeChat Pay
service. The balance represents the Group's obligations to
remit the same amount to designated contracted merchants.
The settlement is normally done in the next two business day
of the transaction date.

(©) Asat 31 December 2019, the Group had provision of the
capital gain tax of RMB6,602,000 (2018: RMB6,467,000) relating
to the acquisition of LCE Group (note 36) (note 46). A provision
of RMB566,000 was recognised upon issuance of
consideration shares in 2018 as disclosed in note 38(a).

33. DUE FROM/TO NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST/
DIRECTORS

The amounts due from/to non-controlling interest and
directors are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed term
of repayment.

(b) BEEEDEZRWEE AR
HRIm R P AR ER - ZERTE
RAEEHELRSSEEIETEAN
BEZET - —KRims  BEBR
R 5 B HA & M E & 5 B A TThK °

© RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—H =&
& @ 5t UL BE LCE Group 5T 1R & AN 1%
BEFRBEEARE66020007T (==
—\&F : AR#¥6,467,0007T) (FiE
36) K (Bii5E46)  FANFT 5E38() FT
WE - AR ZZE—-N\FEHITRER
15 T HE s s 4 A R ¥ 566,000 7T ©

33. Bl ENEERFERESR
/S|

U AR R EE 2K

HAEEEE 2RERTEETEERE
Hy o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

34. BANKLOANS AND BANKING FACILITIES

The analysis of the Group’s bank loans is as follows:

34. (RITERRBITEE

REBRITERIFMOT

2019 2018
“B-AF —EN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARBTT

Secured bank loans repayable BAR—FAEBEZ
within one year EHEAIRITER

9,000 9,000

The carrying amounts of the Group's bank loans are
denominated in RMB.

The Group's bank loans are arranged at the following interest
rates:

ARERTERZ R EUARE
s -

AEBEZSRITEFIR FHIMEREE

2019 2018
ZEB-RAEFE O —TN\F

Bank loan at fixed rate of RMB9,000,000 IZEEFMZE:T B ZRITER

(2018: RMB2,000,000) AR # 9,000,000 7T
(ZF—N\%F:
AR 2,000,000 7T)
Bank loan at floating rate of nil W EIZEF R B2
(2018: RMB7,000,000) BITER(ZZE—NF :
AR ¥ 7,000,000 7T)

5.44% 5.22%

- 6.09%

The Group's bank loans are repayable within one year. Bank
loan of RMB9,000,000 (2018: RMB2,000,000) is arranged at
fixed interest rate and expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk while no bank loan is arranged at floating interest rate
(2018: RMB7,000,000). As at 31 December 2018, bank loan at
floating interest rate was exposing the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk.
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34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

BANK LOANS AND BANKING FACILITIES
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's banking facilities and
bank loans totalling RMB9,000,000 (2018: RMB9,000,000) are
secured by:

— Charge over the Group’s building located in the PRC
(note 19(b));

— Charge over the Group’s investment properties (note
20);

—  Charge over the Group's right-of-use assets related to
leasehold lands in the PRC (note 21) (2018: prepaid land
lease payments located in the PRC (note 23)); and

— Personal guarantee of a director of the Company’s
subsidiaries (note 45(b)).

34. RITERKRBRITHE (&)

RZE—NFT+ZA=+—H K
SEEITHERBRITEREHBA
R#9,0000007t(ZF—N\F: AR
9,000,000 7T) Jh A TN 1I8 B ## -

— AEBURFEZEF(HFE
19(b)) :

— AEEREWE (PE20)

— ARBEURFTEZHEELME
AEEE(ME21) (ZF—-N
FruRPEHBEERNR
(BtsE23)) + &

— AREMBRAR—RBEE A
AR (BIsE45()) ©
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35. LEASE LIABILITIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

35. HE&AE

Minimum lease payments

Present value of
minimum lease payments

REHRESRK REHEMNTEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-hFE —E-\F E-hFE —Z-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTT ARETRT ARETR
Within one year —FR 1,451 - 1,330 -
In the second to fifth E_ZERF
years, inclusive (BREEWT) 709 - 675 -
2,160 - 2,005 -
Less: Future finance B BEBMBER
charges (155) - N/A N/A
Present value of lease HEFEMTRE
obligations 2,005 - 2,005 -
Less: Amount due for 1218 A A EIER
settlement within RS 5008
12 months (shown (MRBaRE
under current 5lI7R)
liabilities) (1,330) -
Amount due for 1218 A & 21|58
settlement after NN
12 months 675 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

35. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's lease liabilities are
denominated in the following currencies:

35. HERGE (&)

A EHE B 2 R (A T
HRHE -

2019
—E-NF

RMB’000
AR T T

RMB AR
HKS ot

1,588
417

2,005

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at
1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases
which were previously classified as operating leases under IAS
17. Comparative information as at 31 December 2018 has not
been restated. Further details on the impact of the transition
to IFRS 16 are set out in note 3(a).

REBEFRALETEHEE RER
BRI S E R F 165% - WAHE
RZE-—NF—A—HZ2H8V#&#%
LATERA 2 B R B B R = 51 £ 8
DHEARKEHE HEZHERE -
R-ZE—-N\E+-_A=+—H2Z
REMWARLET - BEZ R
BREERF 165 2 ESH KM
3(a) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

36. CONTINGENT SHARES PAYABLE 36. ENHARKRG
On 10 October 2017, the Company entered into a conditional RN—ZE—+FE+A+8 ' AAFIE]
sale and purchase agreement (the "Agreement’) to acquire VEEEEEHE(ZmE] - A
51% of the equity interests of LCE Group at HK$168,300,000 W BE LCE Group 2 51% ik #E - RKE B
(equivalent to RMB140,308,000) and to be settled by cash and 75 168,300,000 (M EFE R AR
contingent consideration as follow: 140,308,0007T ) * W5 FE @R & M sk

ARE2ZHAERET

() HK$25,000,000 cash paid on 10 June 2017; () RZE—tEFXATHXZNNE
& 8% 25,000,000 7T

(i) HK$45,000,000 cash paid on completion date (i.e. 28 iy REKBHEI—Z—+F+—

December 2017); and AZ+N\B)ZXRHREBE

45,000,0007C : &

(i)  HK$98,300,000 to be satisfied by allotment of (i) 5% 98,300,000 TG B BMAE T
consideration shares to be issued to vendor, subject to BB R EBRRMOD B T RER -
the fulfilment of the profits target for the year ending 31 BRFEREHE_ZT—+F =
December 2017, 2018 and 2019 ("Profits Target’) and E-NEN_ZETE—-—HhF+_-HA
adjustment (if any) as set out below. =t+t—BLEFEzZHRMNERF

(MBEMBEREDETA#ET X
AR N X AT R R E (1

B) -

Year 2017 Year 2018 Year 2019

“E—LF “T-N\F S

Profits Target RMB15 million RMB28 million RMB37 million

i A B AR AREISHEET AREEBEETL AR¥EITEETT

No. of shares issued 61,437,500 114,683,333 151,545,833
BEETRMHEEB

Consideration Shares in value App. RMB15,998,000 App. RMB29,864,000 App. RMB39,463,000

(equivalent to (equivalent to (equivalent to

HK$18,431,250) HK$34,405,000) HK$45,463,750)

RERNMEE HAR®E159980007T #IARME29864,0007T  #I AR 39,463,000 7T

(EEREE (IBEREE (IBEREE

18,431,250 7T.) 34,405,000 7C) 45,463,750 7T.)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

36. CONTINGENT SHARES PAYABLE (Continued)

(i) (Continued)

Pursuant to the Agreement, no adjustment will be
made to the consideration shares if audited
consolidated net profits of the LCE Group (the
“Actual Profits”) for each of the years ended 31
December 2017, 2018 and 2019 is not less than
the Profits Target of respective years disclosed
above.

In the event that the Actual Profits for each of the
years ended 31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019 is
less than 100% but more than 50% of the Profits
Target, the number and value of consideration
shares to be issued for respective years will be
adjusted according to the agreed terms and
calculation.

In the event that the Actual Profits for each of the
years ended 31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019 is
less 50% of the Profits Target, the value of
consideration shares to be issued for respective
years will become nil.

On 25 June 2018, the Company issued 61,437,500
consideration shares to the vendor as the LCE Group met the
2017 Profits Target.

The LCE Group recorded operating losses for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2019 and was unable to meet the
both 2018 and 2019 Profits Target. Hence, the directors of the
Company confirmed that the LCE Group failed to meet both
2018 and 2019 Profits Target, and the Company was not
required to issue the remaining consideration shares. The
carrying amounts of the consideration shares was nil as of 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 as a result.

36. ENEAKRED ()

(%)

— RBEZHE WCESEE
HE_ZT—+tF - =%
—NFR-_E—AF+=
A=Z+—BULtFERFZ
KEZERE A (BB S
FID) A DA X ES
FEZaMNEZ REK
DTS ELREE -

— WEHE-_Z—+F -Z
—N\EFEERZZE—LF+=
A=+—BILHFE&FZ
ERaFLRNEMBEZ
100% 18 % 1A 50% * #§ 5t &
FEBITZARERNDEE
R EEHSRIEHE KK
RETEHE -

— WERE-T—LF %
—\FRZF—NE+=
A=+—BILFEEFZ
BRI SRR B2
50% - 6 7 B 5 48 FE B 1T
ZREBLE -

R-ZE—N\FNA-1+HH"
ARLCEEEEE—T—+tF 2
A B MAREME S5
7761,437,500 R E IR D ©

He 22— N\KkZ_ZE—N*F
+-—A=1+—HIFE  LCEE
BB EEBEAREERE
E-NER_TE—AFZ%H
BiZe At RRAIEEER
ICERBREEE T —\FEX
TE-NFZRMNEEZE - mA
RRAWHEBETRGRER
e A HE_FT—NEF
+-A=+—HE-Z—N\F
+-A=+—H8 KRERHZ
BREEAT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

36. CONTINGENT SHARES PAYABLE (Continued) 36. ERTEHAKRG ()

2019 2018
—B-hE —T-N\E
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AREBTT

At 1 January n—HA—H = 26,488
Shares issued upon fulfilment of FEBUR T B 1T 3%TT

target profit (note 38(a)) 2 B&AD (Kt aE 38(a) - (5414)
Fair value change NAEEH = (21,359)
Exchange difference M 3 = 5E - 285
At 31 December R+—-—HA=+—H - -
The fair value of the Group’s contingent shares payable was NEHBZENSARKD 2 AR ELE
within level 2 of fair value hierarchy. NAERREEBSGEERN -
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37. DEFERRED TAX 37. BEHIE
The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised by the REBERZELERBEBEENOT -
Group.
Property,
plant and
equipment
and other Investment Customer
assets properties  relationship Total
mE - BE
RREAR
HitEE REM* EFBR% At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETR
At 1 January 2018 R=Z—/\#—A—H (589) (12,383) (10,019) (22,991)
Credited to profit or loss SAEE (T 12)
(note 12) 51 200 1,670 1,921
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
and 1 January 2019 +-A=+—Bk
—T-NE—-A—H (538) (12,183) (8,349) (21,070)
Credited/(charged) to EPVACIEIEE
profit or loss (note 12) (Hyati2) 51 (300) 8,349 8,100
At 31 December 2019 RZT—NF
+-A=1+—H (487) (12,483) - (12,970)

At 31 December 2019, the Group has unused tax losses of
RMB153,257,000 (2018: RMB173,604,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses of RMB153,257,000
(2018: RMB173,604,000) due to the unpredictability of future

profit streams.

R-ZZE—-HAE+-_A=+—H0 XK
SEEXRFRAZHRBEEBRHARE

153,257,000
173,604,000

T(ZE—N\F: ARK
7T ) AT 4 B 1 IR 8 R 2R

A o pg 7048 0 T8RN R 208 A SRR
MY ERBTEEENDARE

153,257,000
173,604,000

2019 FFH FEEHEEZERERLT

T(ZF—\F: ARE
T HERIRIETL IR EE
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37. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 37. IEERE ()
AEAZHRBEBEBRBOARE
137868000 L (—E—NF : AR
158,902,000 7T.) FI| EARF R AN T -

The unused tax losses of RMB137,868,000 (2018:
RMB158,902,000) will expire as follows:

2019 2018

—E-hAEFE = N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AREBTT

Year 2019 —F-NF - 24,448
Year 2020 —E-TF 74,500 74,488
Year 2021 —E - 27,737 28,921
Year 2022 —E-— 23,104 23,110
Year 2023 —E-= 8,118 7,935
Year 2024 — T U4F 4,409 -
137,868 158,902

fr Ll B2 RIARRIN - BRI
TH B 18 AT R HA 4 o

Apart from the tax losses as disclosed above, the remaining
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. R
The Company
/NG
Number of Nominal
shares value of shares
ROEE RO EE
HKS$'000
BT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each FRREEBE 005 T2 BB
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, RZZE-N\F-—A—H"
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 —ZEZ-N\E+=ZA=+—8-
“E-NF-HA-Bk
—E-hE+ZA=1+—H 8,000,000,000 400,000
Nominal Nominal
Number of value of value of
shares shares shares
RGEE RO HEE RO EE
HKS$'000 RMB'000
AT ARETT
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\F—-—H—H 4,762,033,424 238,101 214,067
Issue of new shares upon PRERER G
consideration share BITERG (Mt )
granted (note (a)) 61,437,500 3,072 2,554
Issue of new shares upon REREREITHRGD
placement (note (b)) (Hiat b)) 812,500,000 40,625 35818
At 31 December 2018, RZE—N\F
1 January 2019 and +-A=+—8"
31 December 2019 —T-hF—HF—H
R=ZF—NEF
+=—A=+—8H 5,635,970,924 281,798 252,439
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38. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 25 June 2018, 61,437,500 consideration shares were issued
at HK$0.106 with value of totalling of RMB5,414,000
(equivalent to HK$6,513,000), of which RMB2,860,000
(equivalent to HK$3,441,000) was credited to the Company'’s
share premium account, and RMB2,554,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,072,000) was credited to share capital upon the
fulfilment of Profits Target as disclosed in note 36.

On 26 November 2018, the Company and Zhongtai
International Securities Limited entered into a placing
agreement in respect of the placement of 812,500,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each at a price of HK$0.32 per
share. The placement was completed on 12 December 2018
and the premium on the issued shares, amounting to
RMB191,108,000 (equivalent to HK$216,755,000), net of share
issue expenses of RMB2,310,000 (equivalent to HK$2,620,000),
was credited to the Company’s share premium account and
RMB35,818,000 (equivalent to HK$40,625,000) was credited to
share capital.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders.
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38. BRAS (&)
Wz -

@ RZE—NFNAZ-+HEHAB-
61,437,500 B% X {8 f% 17 1= B #5 0.106
TCEET - A HEEE AR 5414000
T (FBER B 6,513,0007T) » RiE
BT HBEZEF BIZ®E B
A R #2,860,000 7T (1825 A 7
3,441,000 70 ) 5T AR R B B 0% B
8RB AR 2,554000 7T (1 E 75
53,072,000 7T ) &T ABR A ©

by HZE-—NF+—HA=Z+"H K
AR EPRBEESFR ARG L
Bl s - MIZERSRE®032
JCER & 812,500,000 A% & A% T B /5
005TT 2 &k - RERER=-ZF
—NE+ZA+ZBEK - B
hEETER AR 23100007t (18
£ R B 1 26200007T) % - BT
S RE AR 191,108,0007T (47
Z B 8 216,755000 70 ) iF AR A
A I 15 i (B AR & A R ¥ 35,818,000
JC (FHE R 7B 5 40,625,000 7T ) 5T A
AR o

AEEEAERZBENRRTRE
AEBFBEKLE 2R AFER
PRRR RN AR E

S A /8 S
EREE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

38. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, if
any, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell
assets to reduce debt. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies and processes during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2019.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as total
debts less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital, share
premium, accumulated losses and other reserves).

38. IRAN (&)

AEBERBLCEREZEREEAEER
BREEHNESEEEARBIHE
VEH TR - REFFNABRERERE -
AEEXERHABINTRREREKE
HE(WME)  MRRREERN -
THR G - M EEBEELVRIEKER
RBEE_Z-—N\FER_ZT—-NLF
+ZA=+—HUEFEEBEN
R Romigw e o

AEEEREHHEAEERL R
ERENR - ZLLRUBEHEFRR A
RABRENRGTHE - B FBUER
RERREMACEFEMAE - K
HEEABEEaNZIAXE D
(BIRCA ~ UM - REtEBBRAE
b REH)

2019 2018
“EB-AEFE  —ZN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFIT
Debt (a) &7 (a) 40,821 38,353
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W IRENRREEEY (226,374) (252,459)
Net debt BT FRE N/A 1B A N/A 7
Equity (b) 25 (b) 241,589 275,718
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BTG AR & N/A i A N/A 3 F

2019 FFR
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38. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 38. BRA& (&)

(@)  Debt is defined as trade and other payables, due to directors,
bank loans, lease liabilities and related parties as detailed in
notes 32 and 33, 34, 35 and 45(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to the
owners of the Company.

It is the Group's strategy to keep the debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio as low as feasible. Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio was
not applicable for the year ended 31 December 2019 because
the Group had RMB226,374,000 bank and cash balances
arising from the share placement held near the year ended 31
December 2018 which can be sufficient to repay all the debts
of the Group.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has
to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.

The Group checks the substantial share interests showing the
non-pubilic float through the Stock Exchange’s website and it
demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year. At 31 December 2019, 89.47% (2018:
89.47%) of shares were in public hands.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

39. ARFAMBARRARRFEEE

At 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2019 2018
—E-AEFE —T)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AR Z1E 30,726 55,361
Current assets REBEE
Prepayment and other receivables B~ 2 K2 E b & X 1,046 521
Due from subsidiaries N PNGIE S 6,229 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeMESEED 185,495 223,197
192,770 223,718
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals and other payables TEIR B A R A MK 9,446 8,807
Due to a director BN EEFIE 896 -
10,342 8,807
Net current assets REEESHE 182,428 214911
NET ASSETS FEE 213,154 270,272
Capital and reserves BEARK EE
Share capital A% 2 252,439 252,439
Reserves H1E (39,285) 17,833
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 213,154 270,272
Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2020 EEEgR_T_ZEF=-A=-++tH

and are signed on its behalf by:

HER B FIALTRERREE

Yang Xin Min Ho Chi Kin
BHE fAZER
Director Director

EF EF

2019 FFH FEEHEEZERERLT
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

30, ARAF M BERRAERRFEEED

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (#8)
(Continued)
Foreign
Share currency
premium translation  Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
R B IR R G E B4t @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTT ARBTT ARBFT
(note 40(b)(i)) (note 40(b)(iii))
(Hiezaom)i) — (Hizt4om)i)
At 1 January 2018 W2 /\#—fA—H 1,075,224 (95,063) (1,120,729) (140,568)
Total comprehensive income AFEERENZLE
for the year - (3/497) (32,070) (35,567)
Issue of new shares upon REHEA BRI
consideration share granted BATHR D (7 38(2))
(note 38(a)) 2,860 - - 2,860
Issue of new shares upon NELERBITHRD
placement (note 38(b)) (B538(b) 191,108 - - 191,108
Changes in equity for the year AEERZEH 193,968 (3497) (32,070) 158,401
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-N\F
1 January 2019 +-A=+-Bk
RZE—-NE—HA—H 1,269,192 (98,560) (1,152,799) 17,833
Total comprehensive income AFERENZEE
for the year - 14,857 (71,975) (57,118)
Changes in equity for the year REEEREE - 14,857 (71,975) (57,118)
At 31 December 2019 RZT—NE
+ZA=+-H 1,269,192 (83,703) (1,224,774) (39,285)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHE =T —NF+=ZA=+—HIFE

40. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the Group’s consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium account

Share premium represents premium arising from
the issue of shares at a price in excess of their par
value. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account
of the Company are distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group's PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(d)
to the consolidated financial statements.

2019 FFHR FEIERES

40. f##

AEEZHBESBELEEZHN
AEBEzHEA B EEMER
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5l

(i) KROBEER

R sERIIEEZES R
EREECEBRETRG
MEEXZRE - RIEFAE
HERAE  ARAIRM
HERZERAIHSIKT
RRRIRE - HEEBEREE
DIk EBH%E - RAQF]
BEENEEENBEE
BB E 2 & -

(i) EEMRE

Pimﬁ:ﬂﬁﬁﬁf—f /JE T5
QZIK%EPW%QETF?
1% 5 M| o 28 -

(iii) E R {EE

[E R R B ERERINE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

40. RESERVES (Continued)

240

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the premium arising
from further acquisition of the equity interest up
to 100% in GSTD during the year ended 31
December 2015.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the non-distributable
reserves regarding the disposal of discontinued
operations during the year ended 31 December
2015.

Financial assets at FVTOCl reserve

The financial assets at FVTOCI reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of
financial assets at FVTOCI held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy in note 4(m) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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41.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

NOTE TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

41. HERERKE

TRETAKERERDES
ZEEEHFE(BRASKIF
He®®) METPDELZA
ERBEERBENHIAKES
MERRARBGARTRE

RADBERBMERDEE 2R

activities. enEZAE-
Impact Restated
oninitial  balanceat  Additions 31
1January  application 1January of new Interest ~ Exchange  December
2019 2019 of IFRS 16 2019 leases  Cashflows expenses difference 2019
-0 ERER
EIRE R
fi23: - 3 “E-0E
“E-NE #16% -A-H2 tZf
-B-H XFE KENGH RENAE  BeRE  MEXY  EXEE =t-A
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR
(note 3(a))
(Hizt36)
Bank loans (note 34 RITER(Wit34) 9,000 - 9,000 - (478) 478 - 9,000
Lease liabiliies (note 35) BEBEMZ35) - 2,235 2,235 1,382 (1,742) 19 1 2,005
Due to related parties RS 700 = 700 = - = - 700
9,700 2,235 11,935 1,382 (2,220) 597 1 11,705
1 January Interest 31 December
2018 2018 Cash flows expenses 2018
—T-)\F =5
—EN\E T=A
—H—H Bens FEXH =+—H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AR®TT ARETT ARETR
Bank loans (note 34) RITER (Hzt34) 10,500 (967) (533) 9,000
Due to related parties JE < BB 75 308 500 200 - 700
11,000 (767) (533) 9,700
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

41. NOTETO CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases

4. BERERWEE (&)

(b)

HECHRERERRE

HHEFARERERZSHE

comprise the following: BFELATIER -
2019 2018
—E-hF T )\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT AR®BTT
Within operating cash flows AAREBRSRE 835 2,716
Within financing cash flows FARERESRE 1,623 -
2,458 2,716

These amounts relate to the following:

HECHENTHEERH

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREFIT

Lease rental paid EAEERE 2,458 2,716
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 42.

At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable
as follows:

REHERH

RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H" 1R
BN AT U 2 B AR K e R SR &K
MERAEENT

2018
—E-N\F

RMB'000
ARBT T

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF(H

1,887
EEREMF) 1,052

2,939

The Group leases offices and land under operating lease with
fixed rental. The lease runs for an initial period of one to three
years, with an option to renew when all terms are
renegotiated.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for offices.
As at 31 December 2019, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-
term lease expense disclosed in note 21.

As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding lease commitments
relating to leasing of office under short-term leases was
RMB112,000.

AEEZEZERONETHEHE
MAER L -  BONTHBR—
E-F AEBARRBOREN
TER — &K -

AEBTFERAPH AT L EPHEE -
R-E—-NF+-_A=+—H8" 8
B EHA G M2 TR EE 28
MEZHZGHEEREGEE -

RZF-NF+ZA=+—H' 5%
FAREHBAE T2 HATHEZ AE
BHEAEASARE1120007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease
expected to be received under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

42,

REREZ B ()

RZE—N\F+_A=+—H B
B REE ERAOBBARE 2R
REEHEFIEERENT ¢

2018
—ZT-N\F

RMB'000
ARETT

Within 1 year 16R

1,783

After 1 year but within 5 years 1 FRETHBBSF 2,945

4,728

Operating leases relate to investment properties owned by
the Group with lease terms of one to three years, with an
option to renew the lease after the date at which time all
terms are negotiated. All operating lease contracts contain
market review clauses in the vent that the lessee exercises its
options to renew. The lessee does not have an option to
purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

The unguaranteed residual values do not represent a
significant risk for the Group, as they relate to property which
is located in a location with a constant increase in value over
the least four years. The Group did not identify any indications
that this situation will change.
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42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E =T —NEFE+=-A=+—HILLFE

42, REHETH (F)

HEZ&EREBENTET :

2019
—E-NF

RMB’000
AR T T

Within the first year
In the second year
In the third year

In the fourth year

2,775
1,843
1,225

730

Total

6,573

The following table presents the amounts reported in profit

or loss:

2019
—E—-hEF

RMB’000
AR®T T

Lease income on operating leases

wEHE CHERA 2,973
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

43. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43, BAREIE
Capital commitments contracted for at the end of the RBERRETNERREEZE
reporting period but not yet incurred are as follows: RAKET -
2019 2018
—E-hAFE —T—N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT
Intangible assets mILEE - 270
44, OTHER COMMITMENTS 44, HMEYE
At 31 December 2019, the Group had certain commitments RZZE—NAF+-_A=+—H" =K
in respect of the outstanding capital contribution of the SEBUATEE QA RWE QA
following associated company and subsidiaries: REKEEREEE THRE:
2019 2018
—E-hAFE —ZT—N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Cloutac Networks Limited BEREBRAT] 439 430
EEWEBR (L8 BRAR]* FRERBERE(EE)
BRAR* - 878
Cosmartec Limited RFEERMAR AR 26,896 26,348
Shanghai Jianerxiu Network Technology /8 M B MR AR A A
Co., Limited 10,000 -
Haihai Travel Cloud Limited PETE IRz = BPR A A 4,465 4,374
Solomedia (Yixing) Limited BTFEHRR(EE) BRAR - 22,835
Solomedia Digital (Shanghai) Limited BTFEHBERHR(E8)BRAF - 2,635

* The subsidiary was de-registered during the year.
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AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

45, RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 45, BB ARG
In addition to those related party transactions and balances BV BERREMILOHENH
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, BHRXGRESRIN REBTER
the Group had entered into the following transactions with its FREEBABAEINATRS -

related parties during the year.

2019 2018
—B-hFE —T-N\E
Nature of
Name of related parties Relationship transaction RMB’000 RMB'000
e B XHNE ARBTRT ARETT
EN/NEHEEE A Controlled by a senior Service cost charged - 449
BRAT management personnel Y R%EE
of the Group
RAEE-Z2k
EEABEH
tREREBERLE) Controlled by a senior Service income - 444
BRATE management personnel received
of the Group W ER AR S A
RAEE—-Z2k
EEABEH
Details of guarantees provided by related parties for (b) FEB A GEANEBEER 7 R{TH
banking facilities granted to the Group are as set out in B ZIEREBEENESEH
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. FEIREPTEE34 o
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45, RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 45. EAE( 535 (4B)

2019 2018
“E-hE ZTN\F
Name of
related parties Relationship Terms RMB’000 RMB'000
B L A8 B A ARBTRT AR®TT
Lucky Creation Non-controlling interest Unsecured, interest- (5,232) (5,125)
Enterprise Limited of the Group free and have no fixed
AEEFERER term of repayment
BER 2ERRITE
Bl E R A
Singutac Group Controlled by a senior Unsecured, interest- 77 36
Holdings Limited management personnel free and have no fixed
FHBEERERAR of the Group term of repayment
REKE—EaK EHA PR R E
BERABEH [ElE 8= A
Evolve Consulting Controlled by a senior Unsecured, interest- 1 -
Limited management personnel free and have no fixed
of the Group term of repayment
RAEE-Z2K EHA ERIE
BIEA B ElE B
Kwan Che Ho, Jacky A senior management Unsecured, interest- (700) (700)
BER personnel of the Group bearing of 10% per
AEERREREAS annum and
repayable on or
before 30 June 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

45. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 45. B A5 (&)

2019 2018
“E-hEFE —ZT-N\F
Name of
related parties Relationship Terms RMB’000 RMB'000
B B & A AR®BTRT ARETT
YNNI EPN Controlled by a Unsecured, interest- 121 -
BRATE senior management free and have no fixed
personnel of the Group term of repayment
RAEE—ZaR IR 2R RIE
BEABEH [l 2% 5
Kwan Che Hang, Jason A senior management Unsecured, interest- 1 (106)
AxiE personnel of the Group free and have no fixed
AEERREREAE term of repayment
EEA RERITE
Bl B 5
Zhang Fang A senior management Unsecured, interest- (17) (33)
RN personnel of the Group free and have no fixed
AEERREREAS term of repayment
EBEA - 2ERIE
I 2% 5
Yang Xin Min A director of the Company Unsecured, interest- (896) -
Ll ARAESE free and have no fixed
term of repayment
IR 2R RIE
Bl 2 & 2
Yang Zhen* A former director and son of Unsecured, interest- (896) 33
mE* a director of the Company free and have no fixed
ARAIHIESER term of repayment
ARR—HEZEZ2RT EER 2LRUE
I 2% 5
* Included in other payables as at 31 December 2019. * N-_E—-hE+-_A=1+—H:tA

HAbFERIR o
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45. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 45. KSR 5 ()

250

The compensation to the Group’s key management (d) AEBFTEEEAEZHME (B
personnel, including amounts paid to the Company’s BRI FARAREENRE TR
directors and certain of the highest paid employees, is S NEE 2 ZIE) RS BT
disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial HMERMTEISPIE -
statements.
The remuneration of directors and other members of FRNESKTEETEREBHMK
key management during the year was as follows: 87T -
2019 2018
—E-hEFE —T-)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBFIT
Short-term benefits ySREPNI 8,421 5,233
46. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 46. FIAREE

The Company acquired 51% equity interests in LCE Group
from the vendor (a BVI company) in 2017 as disclosed in note
36. This transaction is regarded as indirect transfer of the PRC
subsidiaries of LCE Group by non-tax residents and fall within
the scope as described in the Public Notice [2015] No. 7
(“Public Notice 7") issued by the State Administration of
Taxation (the “SAT").

The capital gain derived from such indirect transfer will be
subject to EIT and the withholding agent should withhold the
EIT amount for settlement with the PRC tax authorities
pursuant to the Public Notice [2017] No. 37 and Public Notice
7 issued by the SAT. The PRC tax authorities would demand
from the withholding agent for the payment of EIT and
impose penalty of 50% to 3 times of the unpaid EIT. The
penalty may be relieved if the share transfer transaction has
been voluntarily reported to the PRC tax authorities.
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46.

47.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+=-_A=+—HILFE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

On 28 December 2017, the Group paid RMB58,358,000
(equivalent to HK$70,000,000) to the vendor. On 25 June
2018, the Company issued consideration shares of
RMB5,414,000 (equivalent to HKS$6,541,000) to the vendor as
part of the consideration (note 36). Neither the Group nor the
vendor has reported the share transfer transaction or has
settled the EIT to the PRC tax authorities upon consideration
being partially settled according to the Agreement. The
directors, after consulting the Group's PRC legal counsel, were
of opinion that a provision of RMB5,581,000 calculated based
on the cash consideration paid to the vendor as of 31
December 2017 and further provision of RMB566,000
regarding the shares granted during 2018 were sufficiently
made. They considered that the risk of having a penalty
imposed by the PRC tax authorities arising from non-
compliance was reasonably low.

Apart from above, the Group has no other material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2019.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@) On 5 March 2020, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with the other shareholder of an indirect owned
subsidiary to acquire entire 30% equity interest in that
subsidiary engaging in provision of mobile payment
service, for a cash consideration of HK$8,100,000
(equivalent to RMB7,262,000). The acquisition was
completed on 6 March 2020.

46.

47.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 @E—Z—NEFE+=-A=+—HILFE

47. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

(b)  On 5 March 2020, the board of directors of the Company
proposed to change the English name of the Company
to “Smartac International Holdings Limited” and adopt a
dual foreign name in Chinese of "R Bk &5 L 1= i B R
/X B]" (the "Proposed Change of Company Name”).
The Proposed Change of Company Name is subject to
conditions being satisfied of (i) passing of a special
resolution by the shareholders of the Company at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company to
approve the Proposed Change of Company Name; and
(ii) approval by the Registrar of Companies in the

Cayman Islands.

(c) After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across the globe. The
Group is paying close attention to the development of,
and the disruption to business and economic activities
caused by, the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its
impact on the financial position, cash flows and
operating results of the Group. Given the dynamic
nature of the COVID-19 outbreak, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of its impact on the
Group's financial position, cash flows and operating
results at the date on which these financial statements

are authorised for issue.
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SMARTAC GROUP CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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